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BEDFORD CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Traasurer = &5 Morhfeld Hoad « Badlord, OH 44146-2201 » 440-435:45T0

October 26, 2001

Board of Education Members and Residents of the Bedford City School Dastrict:

We are pleased to submit to you the Comprehensive Annual Report ("CAFR") of Bedford
City School District (the "District”). This CAFR, which includes an opinion from the firm of
Grant Thornton LLP, conforms to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America as applicable to governmental entities. The 2001 CAFR implements, before the
required date of fiscal year 2003, the governmental financial reporting model established by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board ("GASB®) in their Statement No. 34, Basic Financial
Srarements - and Management's Discussion and Analysis - for Stare and Local Governments.
Responsibility for the accuracy of the data presented and the completeness and fairness of the
presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the Disirict. To the best of our knowledge and
beliet, the enclosed data are accurate in all material respects and are reported in a manner designed
1o present fairly the financial position and results of operations of the various funds and account
groups of the District. This report will provide readers with comprehensive financial data in a
format which will enable them to gain an understanding of the District’s financial affairs, Copies
will be made available to officials of Bedford, Bedford Heights, Walton Hills, Oakwood, the
Cuyahoga County Public Library, major taxpayers, financial rating services and other interested

parties.
The comprehensive annual financial report is presented in three sections as follows:

1. The Introductory Section, which contains a Table of Contents, Letter of
Transmittal, Government Finance Officer's Association ("GFOA™) Certificate of
Achievement, List of Principal Officials and an Organizational Chart of the
District.

2. The Financial Section, which begins with the Report of Independent Certified
Public Accountants, and includes the Management's Discussion and Analysis, The
Basic Financial Statements and Notes providing an overview of the District’s
financial position and operating results, the Combining Statements by Fund Type,
and other schedules providing detailed information relative to the Basic Financial
Statements.
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3. The Statistical Section, which presents social and economic data, financial trends
and fiscal capacity of the District.

District Organization

Bedford City School District is located in northeastern Ohio, approximately fifteen miles
southeast of downtown Cleveland. The District includes the City of Bedford, most of the City
of Bedford Heights, and all of the Villages of Oakwood and Walton Hills.

Formed as Township 6 in Range 11 of the Western Reserve of Ohio in 1823, Bedford
Township consisted of what today is known as the five communities of Bedford, Bedford Heights,
Oakwood, Walton Hills, and Maple Heights. In 1837 the Village of Bedford was formed from
the center of the township and for the next 70-plus years, the two communities - Village of
Bedford and Bedford Township - coexisted. In 1915, residents of the northwest corner of
Bedford Township formed a separate municipality to be called the Village of Maple Heights with
its own separate school district. In 1951, Bedford Township as a povernment ceased to exist when
the Villages of Bedford Heights, OQakwood Village, and Walton Hills Village were formed from
the remaining areas. Today, the District serves as a common bond linking the four communities
of Bedford, Bedford Heights, Oakwood, and Walton Hills,

Bedford City School District is one of the 661 active public school districts (193 city, 49
exempted village, 370 local, and 49 joint vocational school districts) in the State of Ohio and one
of 33 in Cuyahoga County. The district provided, as of June, 2001, education to 3,844 students
in grades K through 12. Statutorily, the District operates under the standards prescribed by the
Ohio State Board of Education as provided in division (D) of Section 3301.07 and Section 119.0]
of the Ohio Revised Code, to provide education services prescribed by charter and further
mandated by State and/or Federal agencies.

Reporting Entily

The District has reviewed its operating entity definition in order to ensure conformance
with the Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 14, The Financlal Reporting
Entity. In evaluating how to define the District for financial reporting purposes, management has
considered all agencies, departments and organizations making up the Bedford City School District
{the primary government) and its potential component units.

The cities of Bedford and Bedford Heights, the villages of Oakwood and Walton Hills, the
Cuyahoga County Public Library, the Parent Teacher Association and the non-public schools
located in the District have not been included in the accompanying financial statements. The
governing bodies of these entities are not appointed by the District, nor are they fiscally dependent
on the District. The District participates in the Ohio School Boards Association Workers'
Compensation Group Rating Program, an insurance purchasing pool, and in the Greater Cleveland
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Schools' Council purchasing cooperative. These entities also do not meet the established criteria
for inclusion in the reporting entity and, accordingly, are excluded from this report.

The School System

General Information

As of June 2001, 3,844 students were enrolled in the District’s seven schools (two primary
schools, two intermediate schools, one sixth grade school, one middle school and one high
school). For the last complete academic year the average class size was 22 students. The
Disirict's five-year plan forecasts total enrollment to remain stable. As of June 30, 2001, the
District employed (full and part-time) 301 professional staff members and 284 non-teaching and
support staff employees. The District operates a variety of facilities to complement the
educational program. These include athletic facilities, a central administration building, a
maintenance facility and a transportation facility.

The high school is fully accredited by the North Central Association of Colleges and
Schools. The curriculum offers a wide range of electives and comprehensive courses of study in
college preparatory, career and technical education and physical education programs. A full range
of extracurricular programs and activities 1s offered. All District schools have library/media
centers, lunch programs and multipurpose rooms or gymnasiums for student activities. The Board
cooperates with community organizations in making District facilities available for evening
athletic, recreational and enrichment activities. Classroom teachers at all levels are supported by
specialists in reading, guidance, art, music and physical education. All elementary schools have
teacher aides. Nurses, psychologists, aides assisting disabled students, and speech pathologists
are employed to work with students at all levels. The District’s Pupil Personnel Services program
includes school health and psychological services, pupil appraisal, counseling and guidance
services, special education services, and speech-language and hearing services. Guidance
counselors are available at all school levels.

The District operates a comprehensive career and technology education curriculum in
cooperation with the adjacent Maple Heights City School District. Career and technology
education students attend either the District’s High School or Maple Heights High School. Career
and technology education courses offered by the District include: Computerized Accounting,
Microsoft Office, Cooperative Business Education, Occupational Work Experience, Occupational
Work Adjusiment, Diversified Cooperative Training, Marketing Education, Automotive
Technology, Manufacturing Technology, Quick-Serve Automotive Care, Electronics Technology,
Engineering Technology, Community Job Skills, Cosmetology, Home Improvement and
Maintenance, Printing and Consumer Science.,

The District offers a program of instruction for students identified as gifted and talented
in grades K through 12. Students are evaluated for entry into this program based on Chio
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Department of Education criteria involving [Q and achievement test scores. In the case of music,
art, drama and dance, students are evaluated on other criteria established by the Ohio Department
of Education,

The educational program is based on a "graded structure.” The primary and intermediate
school buildings house three or four grades each, instead of the traditional K through 6 or 8. This
provides for a more efficient use of teaching personnel and equipment and increases articulation
between grade levels.

A cademic P Highlight
The District’s academic program includes the following, among other attnibutes:

- The Department of Curriculum and Instrection completed the District’s Continuous
Improvement Plan. That Plan provides an educational blueprint to help students achieve academic
success and improve their performance on State-administered proficiency tests.

- A reorganized elementary summer school program more closely mirroring the
school day for students in grades kindergarten through six. Students have demonstrated greater
classroom interest and participation in the new formal.

- Fifty-one elementary teachers participated in the Summer Institute for Reading
Intervention in June 2000 and June 2001, Sponsored by the Ohio Department of Education, the
Institute focused on teaching strategies and techniques to help students in grades kindergarten
through eight improve their reading comprehension and vocabulary.

- With $147,000 in grant money from the OhioReads program, the District launched
a major initiative during the 2000-2001 school vear to help students improve basic reading skills
at the elementary school level. The grants provided for the purchase of computer software, books,
and other maierials as well as training for teachers and more than 100 community volunteers to
assist in this effort.

- Using $83,000 in grant funds, the Electronics Technology program at the High
School was redesigned to better prepare students for the transition from school to the workplace.
A+ electronics and Cisco Certified Network Administrator certifications were added to belter
prepare students to design, build, operate and repair computer networks, Both certifications are
industry-recognized standards of excellence in many technology-related fields.

- The High School's Jobs for Ohio Graduates Program ("JOGS") program was
established during the 2000-2001 school year to assist students who are at risk of not graduating
and finding future employment. Through JOGS, students are better prepared to meet an
employer’s needs and expectations and, at the same time, establish appropriate career objectives.
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- The wiring of all buildings for computer technology was completed during the
1999-2000 school year through the Department of Education's SchoolNet Program. SchoolNet
= & state-wide initiative to wire all classrooms in Ohio for technology — was developed to prepare
Ohio's students to live and work in an increasingly technological world. During the 2000-2001
school year, 86 teachers received up to 20 hours of SchoolNet training. The training provided
hands-on experience in the use of scanners and digital cameras, as well as word processing,
database management, spreadsheet, multimedia, and related software. The training will help
teachers better identify the progress of individual students and improve classroom instruction.

- The District also completed an upgrading of electrical service in the District's five
elementary school buildings through participation in the PowerUp Program. Electrical circuit
boxes, wires and 600-amp. connections were installed or upgraded in labs and classrooms to
accommodate advancements in computer technology. Total cost of the $434, 000 project was paid
in part with a $191 000 grant from the State of Ohio"s SchoolNet Program.

- More than 400 parents annually are actively involved in the educational process,
serving as volunteer tutors, room parents, and field trip chaperones. A pari-time Coordinator of
Adult Volunteers directs the volunteer program. During the 2000-2001 school year, the volunteers
collectively contributed 16,200 service hours to the schools.

- Instruction in art, music, physical education, and library science is integrated into
the curriculum beginning at the first grade level

- Computer technology is available at every grade level for remediation, enrichment,
and programming skills.

- The District offers 200 courses at the High School level, including five Advanced

Placement courses, 11 Honors courses, 12 on-site career and technology education programs,
three foreign language programs and a full complement of music and fine aris classes.

- Approximately 75 % of the High School graduates from the Class of 2001 indicated
they intended to pursue higher education, Approximately 17% of the graduates sought full-time
employment and 4% entered the military upon graduation. The remaining 4% were undecided
at the time of graduation,

- Athletic programs include a full range of interscholastic and intramural sports
programs for boys and girls. Programs include football, volleyball, cross country, golf, soccer,
basketball, swimming, wrestling, baseball, fast-pitch sofiball and track and field.

- The District participates in a joint effort with the four local police departments to
prevent chemical abuse through its Drug Abuse Resistance Education Program. The local fire
departments provide fire prevention safety classes to elementary students.



- The Bedford City Schools Foundation was established in January of 1993 to provide
funds for student scholarships, extended educational activities and projects not provided for by
general District funds, The Foundation has an endowment of $145,000 and hosts three fund-raises
each year.

- The District’s Strategic Plan has identified certain arcas of focus including student
achievement and test performance, public relations, parent and communily involvement,
recruitment and hiring of minority teachers, staff development, and at-risk youth,

- The recently-developed State of Ohio Report Card for 2001 showed the District
meeting 10 of the 27 standards. This was an improvement from 2000 when the District met only
nine of the standards, The District has developed and is implementing a Continuous Improvement
Plan ("CIP") to address the areas identified by the State as below the standard. The CIP contains
action plans for improving student performance, curriculum/instruction, assessment/evaluation,
professional development, student services, facility and parent/community involvement.

Employees

As of June 30, 2001 the District had 585 employees. The number of employees has
decreased by 21 since June 30, 1998. A statewide public employee collective bargaining law
applies generally to public employee relations and collective bargaining.

As of June 30, 2001, 301 of the District's employees were professionals (certified or
licensed by the State Department of Education) serving as treasurer, assistant treasurer, business
manager, classroom teachers, education specialists and certificated administrators, of whom all
had at least a bachelor's degree and 152 held advanced degrees. The 2000-2{(01 starting salary
for a teacher with a bachelor's degree was $29,572; the maximum teacher salary (for a teacher
with a master's degree plus 45 semester hours and 18 years' experience) was $62,319. The
average current base salary of District teachers for 2000-2001 was $47,995, compared to a State
average (Fiscal Year 2000) of 341,714.

All of the District’s teachers and educational specialists (excluding 21 adminisirators) are
represented by the Bedford Education Association (the "Association") which 15 a labor
organization affiliated with the Ohio Education Associalion. The present contract between the
Board and the Association became effective on July 1, 2001 and will be in effect through June 30,
2004. The contract calls for the base salary to be increased by 2% on July 1, 2001, 2% on
January 24, 2002, 3% on July 1, 2002 and 3% on July 1, 2003. All of the District’s classified
support staff (secretarial-clerical, custodial, maintenance, transportation and cafeteria staff)
members are represented for bargaining purposes by the Ohio Association of Public School
Employees ("OAPSE"), with the exception of 14 administrators and 3 confidential secretaries.
The OAPSE contract expires on December 31, 2001, There have been no work stoppages in the
last 13 years. In the judgment of the Board, labor relations with all of its employees are excellent,



Financial Information
Internal Accounting and Budgetary Control

The District's accounting system is organized on a "fund” basis. Each fund is a distinct
self-balancing accounting entity. Reports for governmental and expendable trusts operations are
presented on the modified accrual basis whereby revenues are recognized when measurable and
available, and expenditures are recognized when goods and services are received, Reports of the
District's proprietary operations are presented on the accrual basis whereby revenues are
recognized when earned and expenses when incurred.

In developing the District's accounting system, much consideration was given o the
adequacy of internal accounting controls, Internal accounting controls are designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute assurance regarding the safeguarding of assets against loss from
unauthorized use or disposition and the reliability of financial records for preparing financial
statements and maintaining accountability for assets. The concept of reasonable assurance is based
on the assumption that the cost of internal accounting controls should not exceed the benefits
expected to be derived from their implementation.

The District utilizes a fully automated accounting system as well as an automated system
for payroll. These sysiems, coupled with the manual avditing of each voucher prior (o payment,
ensure that the financial information generated is both accurate and reliable.

At the beginning of each fiscal year, the Board of Education adopis a temporary
appropriation measure for that fiscal year. That appropriation becomes a "permanent”
appropriation upon receipt from the County Auditor of an amended certificate of estimated
resources based on final assessed values and tax rates. The amended certificate is usually received
within three months of the beginning of the fiscal year, Appropriations are amended as needed
thereafter. Usually, material changes in appropriations occur when additional resources are
received in the Special Revenue Funds. However, il is the Treasurer's responsibility to
recommend a decrease in appropriations in any fund if estimates of revenue fall below
appropriation levels.

Annual appropriations may not exceed the County Budget Commission's official estimate
of resources. The County Auditor must certify that the Board of Education's appropriation
measures, including any supplements or amendments, do not exceed the amount set forth in the
latest of those official estimates.

All disbursements and transfers of cash between funds require appropriation authority from
the Board., Budgets are controlled at the object account level within a function and fund. All
purchase order requests must be approved by a building or department administrator, the Business
Manager and certified by the Treasurer; necessary funds are then encumbered and purchase
orders released to vendors. Those requests which exceed the available appropriation are rejected

=Kll=



until additional appropriations are secured.

The accounting system used by the District provides an on-line inguiry system available
to every administrator. Every budgetary account is the specific responsibility of one of the
District administrators. Administrators overseeing accounts have specific budgetary limits which
are approved by the Board al the appropriation level. The Board of Education receives a monthly
financial report which includes a list of all disbursements, a report on investmenis, the cash
positions of all funds, and a budget-to-actual report (both month-to-date and year-to-date) on the
general operating fund and the food service fund. All employees are covered by a blanket bond,
and certain individuals in policy-making roles are covered by a separate, higher limit bond. The
basis of accounting and the various funds and account groups utilized by Bedford City Schools are
fully described in Note 2 of the financial stalements.

gnomi il M 1

The District is well-located at the conjunction of Interstate Highways 480 and 271,
Downtown Cleveland is 200 minutes away, and all the major metropolitan areas of Ohio are
directly accessible via the interstate system. Residential property is middle class, and properties
are well kept. The tax base of $805,969,111 is divided among the four municipalities making
up the District in the following manner: Bedford 32 percent, Bedford Heights 30 percent,
Oakwood 14 percent and Wallon Hills 24 percent. Approximately 30 percent of the tax base is
residential real property, 31 percent is personal tangible property, 9 percent is public utility
tangible property and 30 percent is commercial/industrial property. Each of the four
municipalities actively encourages the maintenance and growth of the tax base.

While there is not an abundance of undeveloped property in the District, the four
communities of the District are committed to maintenance and improvement of real property and
a strong business environment. Bedford Heights has entered into various enterprise zonge
agreements which have created new jobs. A residential development of 45 cluster homes is under
way at Bartlett and Columbus Roads with prices starting at $150,000. Miles Road has been
widened from two to five lanes with infrastructure improvements from Green Road to Brainard
Hoad. Bedford continues to receive federal block-grant funds for other infrastructure
improvements. The Village of Oakwood continues to encourage redevelopment along the
Broadway Boulevard artery. The cities report continuing increases in income tax collections.

The District does not benefit directly from increasing manufacturing operations except
where an addition to real or personal property is involved. Unlike the cities and villages, the
District levies no tax on income. House Bill 920 prohibits school districts from realizing
additional revenue from previously voted millage due to reappraisal of existing property values,
Rather, the District must obtain approval of voters for additional revenues through tax levies.
However, a healthy business environment and well maintained communities contribute
significantly to the District's prospects for continued voter support. Voters in the District have
approved continuing tax levies of § mills, 5 mills, 4.6 mills, and 4.9 mills in 1986, 1991, 1995
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and 1999, respectively. Voters have maintained a 1 mill permanent improvement levy since 1986
(the levy is a S-year levy, most recently renewed in May 2001).

Approximately 10 percent of the District's general operating revenue comes from the State
Foundation tor schools. The State Supreme Court has declared the State's system of funding for
schools unconstitutional and has called for a restructuring which is in progress. No significant
change in State Foundation funding to the District is expected to result.  An additional 8 1o 10
percent of District revenue comes from the Stale's residential taxpayer rebate plan (Homestead
Exemption and Rollback programs).

The District maintains a strategic fiscal plan, which incorporates long-term fiscal planning
and a four to five year levy cycle. The District is on schedule, at the conclusion of the 2001 fiscal
year, with the current long-term fiscal plan. The District has a long history of local support.
Continued voter support and a healthy tax base are crucial (o the long-term financial health of the
District. The reader is directed to the narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the
District's financial condition which 15 found in Management’s Discussion and Analysis in the
Financial Section (page 4).

Independent Audit

State statutes require the District to be subjected to an annual examination by an
independent auditor, The firm of Grant Thormton LLP was selected to render an opinion on the
District's financial statements as of June 30, 2001. An annual audit serves to maintain and
strengthen the District's accounting and budgetary controls. Pursuant to statute, the State
prescribed a uniform accounting system to standardize accounting classification and financial
reporting for all governments in Ohio. The District adopted and has been in conformance with
that system beginning with its financial report for the 1979 year,

Awards

The Government Finance Officers Association ("GFOA") of the United States and Canada
awarded the Bedford City School District a Certificate of Achievement ("COA") for Excellence
in Financial Reporting for its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report ("CAFR") for the year
ended June 30, 2000. This was the fourth consecutive year that the District has achieved this
prestigious award. In order to be awarded a COA, a government must publish an easily readable
and efficiently organized annual financial report. This report must satisfy both accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America and applicable legal requirements.
A COA is valid for one year only. We believe our current report continues to conform to
Program requirements, and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for
another certificate.
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Grant Thornton &

Accauntars and Managemesd Consultaris

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

The Board of Educanon
Bedford City School District

We have audited the accompanying basic financial statements of the Bedford City School District, Bedford,
Ohio (the "District") as of and for the year ended June 30, 2001, as listed in the mble of contents. These
basic financial statements are the responsibiliey of the District's management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these basic financtal statements based on our audst.

We conducted our audit in accordance with andinng smndards penerally accepted in the United States of
Amenca and the standards applicable to financial audits contamned in Gavernment Anditing 3 fandards, 1ssued by
the Compiroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the awdit
to obtamn ressonzble assurance about whether the basic financial sttements are free of matenal
misstaternent.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporing the amounts and
disclosures in the basic financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting prinaples used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluanng the overall basic financal statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As descnbed in Note 3 to the financial statements, the Dismer adopred Governmental Accounnng
Standards Board Statements Nos. 33, 34, 36, 37 and 38 as of and for the year ended June 30, 2001.

In our opinion, the basic financial statements referred to above present faiely, . all matenal respects, the
financial position of the District, as of June 30, 2001, and the results of its operanons and the cash fows of
its propoetary funds for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally sccepted in
the United States of Amenca.
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In accordance with Gorermmont . Luditing Standards, we have also 1ssued a report dated October 26, 2001
on our consideration of the Distnet’s mternal control over financual reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certuin provisions of laws, regulations, contraces, and grants. That report is an integral part
of an audit performed in accordance with Goveroment Auditing Séandards and should be read in conjunction
with this report in considering the results of our audit.

Management's Discussion and Analysis is not a required part of the basic financial starements, but is
supplementary information the Govemnmental Accounting Standards Board requires. We applied limited
procedures, consising prncipally of inquines of management regarding the methods of measuretnent and
presentation of the supplementary nformation. We did not audit the nformanon and express no opinion
thereon.

Chur audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as 2
whole. The combining and indwidual fund statements and schedules kisted i the wble of contents are
presented for purposes of addiional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements of
the Distncr.  Such information has been subjected to the suditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly presented in all material respects in relation to the
basic financal statements taken as a whole.

We did not audit the data inchuded in the Introductory Section and Stansacal Secton of this report and,
therefore, express no opinion thereon.

}jmt Thoclon LLP

Cleveland, Ohso

Ocrober 26, 2001 {except for Note 16, as to which
the date is November 2, 2001 and MNote 20, as
to which the date 15 Movember 21, 2001}



BEDFORD CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2001 (unaudited)

The discussion and analysis of the Bedford City School District’s financial performance
provides an overall review of the District’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2001, The intent of this discussion and analysis is to look at the District’s financial performance
a5 a whole; readers should also review the transmittal letter, noles to the basic financial statements
as well as the statements themselves to enhance their understanding of the District’s financial
performance.

Financial Highlights
Key financial highlights for fiscal year 2001 are as follows:

. In total, net assets increased $4.43 million, a 68 percent increase over fiscal year 2000,
Net assets of governmental activities increased $4.38 million which represents almost a 69
percent increase from fiscal year 2000, Net assets of business-type activities increased
from $0.11 million to $0.17, a 53 percent increase over fiscal year 2000.

. General revenues accounted for $39.64 million in revenue or 91 percent of all revenues.
Program specific revenues in the form of charges for services and sales, granis and
contributions accounted for $3.92 million or 9 percent of total revenues of $43.56 million.

. The increase in net assets of governmental activities was primarily the result of the first
full fiscal year"s collection of the 4.9 mill additional operating levy approved in November
of 1999,

. The District had $37.79 million in expenses related to governmental activities; only $2.65
million of these expenses were offset by program specific charges for services, grants or
contributions. General revenues related to governmental activities of $39.53 million were
adequate to provide for these programs.

. The District recognizes three major governmental funds: the general fund, the debt service
fund and the permanent improvement fund. Management identifies them as major because
they are the funds that receive tax dollars. However, in terms of dollars received and
dollars spent, the general fund is significantly larger than all the other funds of the District
combined. The general fund has $37.95 million in revenues and $34.07 million in
expenses, The general fund’s balance increased $3.50 million in 2001.

. The District recognizes three major enterprise funds: the food service fund, the uniform
school supplies fund and the special enterprises fund., However, the food service activities
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BEDFORD CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2001 (unaudited)
(continued)

are significanily larger than all other enterprise funds combined. The net deficit in the
food service enterprise was reduced from $0.06 million on June 30, 2000 to $0.04 million
on June 30, 2001. The food service deficit has been reduced each fiscal year since 1997
when it was 50,16 million. This decline in the food service deficit is consistent with the
District’s goal of making the food service operation as self-sufficient as possible. Grants
of $0.37 million in 2001 reduced the operating loss.

Using This Comprehensive Annual Financial Report ("CAFR")

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements and notes to those statements.
These statements are presented following the requirements of Governmental Accounting Standards
Board Statement ("GASB") No. 34, and are organized so the reader can understand the Bedford
City School District as a financial whole, an entire operating entity. The statements then proceed
to provide an increasingly detailed look at specific financial activities, (The District is electing
to present the financial statements for fiscal year 2001 using the GASB Statement No. 34 model,
School districts like Bedford will be required to use the new model beginning with the 2003 fiscal

year.)

The Starement af Net Assets and Sratement of Activiries provide information about the
activities of the whole District, presenting both an aggregate view of the District’s finances and
a longer-term view of those finances. Fund financial statements provide the next level of detail.
For governmental funds, these statements tell how services were financed in the short-term as well
as what remains for future spending. The fund financial statements also look at the District's
most significant funds with all other non-major funds presented in total in one column. In the case
of the Bedford City School District, the major governmental funds are the general fund, the debt
service fund and the permanent improvement fund; the major enterprise funds are the food service
fund, the uniform supplies fund and the special enterprises fund.

Reporting the District as a Whole:

While this document contains the large number of funds used by the District to provide
programs and activities, the view of the District as a whole looks at all financial transactions and
asks the question, "How did we do financially in 20017, The Statement of Net Assers and the
Starement of Activities answer this question. These statements include all assets and liabilities
using the accrual basis of accounting similar to the accounting used by most private-sector
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BEDFORD CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2001 (unandited)
{continued)

companies. This basis of accounting takes into account all the current fiscal year's revenues and
expenses regardless of when cash is received or paid.

These two statements report the District's net assets and changes in those assets. This
change is net assets is important because it tells the reader whether the financial position of the
District as a whole has improved or diminished. The causes of this change may be the result of
many faclors, some financial, some not. Non-financial factors include the District's property lax
base, current property tax laws in Ohio restricting revenue growth, facility conditions, required
educational programs and other factors.

In the Statement of Ner Assers and the Statement of Activiries, the District is divided into
two distinet kinds of activities:

1.}  Governmental Activities -- Most of the District's programs and services are
reported here including instruction, support services, operation and maintenance of plant, pupil
transportation and extracurricular activities.

2.)  Business-type Activities -- These services are provided on a charge for goods or
services basis to recover all of the expenses of the goods or services provided, The District's food
service program is reported as a business-type activity,

Reporting the District's Most Significant Funds
Fund Financial Statements

The analysis of the District's major funds begins on page 20. Fund financial reports
provide detailed information about the District's major funds. The District uses many funds to
account for a multitude of financial transactions. However, these fund financial statements focus
on the District's most significant funds.

Governmental Funds

Maost of the District's activities are reported in governmental funds, which focus on how
money flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end available for spending
in future periods. These funds are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual
accounting, which measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily be converted to
cash. The governmental fund statements provide a detailed shori-term view of the District's
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BEDFORD CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2001 (unaudited)
(continued)

general governmental operations and the basic services it provides. Governmental fund
information helps you determine whether there are financial resources that can be spent in the near
future to finance educational programs, and what the change in those resources has been from the
previous fiscal year. The relationship (or differences) between governmental activities as reported
in the Statement of Ner Asseis and the Statement of Activiries and the modified accrual statements
for the povernmental funds is reconciled in the financial statemenis.

Proprietary Funds

Proprietary funds use the same basis of accounting as business-type activities; therefore,
these statements will essentially match the information provided in statements for the District as
a whole.

The District as a Whole
Recall that the Sraremenr of Net Assets provides the perspective of the District as a whole,

showing assets, liabilities and the difference between them (net assets). Table 1 provides a
summary of the District’s net assets for fiscal year 2001 compared to fiscal year 2000:

Table 1
Met Assets
{In Millions)
Gevermmsntel MFMQ"IM
Ackivities Activities Total
2001 2000 go01 000 2001 2000
LEET
Current ard ODther .60 B53.05 $0.35 #0.50 BES.PA  BAL A4S
Capital 15,78 15.68 004 Q.05 15.80 15. 73
Total e e N8 N R RS
LisbikiTies
Long= Lerm $14.41 #1597 B0.05 $0.04 448 ®B15.21
Other &0.19 58.08 n.1% 0.4d E0.38  S8.48
Total Te.50 7RIS .26 0,44 T, A5 Ty 89
Met Asuety ﬂEITﬁ' 54,38 $0.16 %0.11 092 R4S



BEDFORD CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2001 (unaudited)
(continued)

The increase in net assets from fiscal year 2000 to fiscal year 2001 is primarily due to an
increase in tax revenues. See further discussion on Governmental and Business-type activities on
pages 9 and 10.

Table 2 shows changes in net assets for fiscal year 2001. Since this is the first year the
District has prepared financial statements following GASB Stuatement 34, revenue and expense
comparisons for fiscal year 2000 are not available.

Table 2
Changes in Net Assets
(In Millions)
Government Busimers- type

aetivities activitins
—l —2001 Istal

Progran Beverisd
Charges for Services ¥ .54 F0.90 $1.54
Operating Grants 1.79 0.37 217
Capital Grants Q.21 = n.2u
Deneral Bewenus
Property Taxes 32,16 . 32.16
Grarts & Entitlements 4.22 - &.22
Other 1.15 0.1 i.26
Total Revenuss 42 17 138 £5 %%
Program Expenaes
Irstruction 18,89 - 18.89
Support Services:
Pupi L 2.19 - 2.19
Ingtructional Staff 1.51 - 1.51
Board of Education Q.18 =
Admimistration 1]
Fiscal
Bus | reBs

Operation and Haintenarce of Plant
Pupil Trarsportation
Central
operation of Won-Inscrecrional Services
Extracurricular Activities
Debe Serwvice:

° SosNpooN
SBEZEEEE
ok et e
SEEERLERE

Interest ard Fiscal Charges To a.ma

Food Service 1.22 1.22
Undform Schoal Supsl les 0.02 o.02
Summar School 0.0& 0,0k
Adult and Commmnity Educsation 0.0& 0.0%
Recraat|on 0.01 0.0
Total Experses Ir.me 1.1% 3902

Change in Het Assets 4.38 0.0% [

Mot Assets - Begirmirg of Year 5.38 o1 [

Met Agsets - [rd of Year m M t1n.ﬂ
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BEDFORD CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2001 {unaudited)
(continued)

Governmental Activities

Over the past several fiscal years, the District has remained in stable financial position,
In May of 1999, the District asked the voters for an additional 6.5 mill continuing property tax
levy for general operations. That request was turned down. The following November, the voters
approved a reduced 4.9 mill continuing operating levy. Additional operating revenue, therefore,
did come to the District for the final six months (January through June) of fiscal year 2000, Fiscal
year 2001 saw the first full year's collection on the increased millage.

The nature of property taxes in Ohio creates the need to routinely seek voter approval for
operating funds. The overall revenue generated by a levy will not increase solely as a result of
inflation. As an example, the District would receive from a home valued at $100, 000 and taxed
at 1.0 mill, $35.00 annually. If three years later the home were reappraised and increased o
$200,000 (and this inflationary increase in value is comparable to other property owners) the
effective tax rate would become .5 mills, and the District would still receive 535,00 annually.

The District is heavily dependent on property taxes and is hampered by a lack of revenue
growth. Thus, the District must regularly return to the voters o maintain a constant level of
service. Property taxes made up 76.26 percent of revenues for governmental activities in the
Bedford City School District for fiscal year 2001.

Instruction accounts for 49.99 percent of governmental program expenses. The Sratement
aof Activiries shows the cost of program services and the charges for services and grants offsetting
those services. Table 3 shows, for governmental activities, the total cost of services and the net
cost of services. That is, it identifies the cost of these services supported by tax revenue and
unresiricted State entitlements. Comparisons to 2000 have not been made since those data are not
available.
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BEDFORD CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2001 (unaudited)

{continued)
Table 3
Met Cost of Governmental Activities
(In Millions)
Total Cest Het Cost
of Services of Services
20a1 2001
Program Expanaes
Tratruetion S18.8% T.56
Support Serv|ces;
Pupil 2.07
Irstructional Etaff 1.41
Board of Education o,i8
Administration 2.55
Fiaeal
Bums i remsy

Operation and Mainterance of Plant
Pupil Transportation
Central
Operation of Hon-Instructional Services
Extracurricul ar Activwities
Debt Service:

C XSS BN Y S K
UERAEFERRES
A Y Ay
SBNEREE

Interest and Flscal Charges [ .| 0.
Total Expenses £37. 79 $35.15

The dependence on tax revenues and state subsidies for governmental activities is apparent.
Almost 92 percent of instruction activities are supported through taxes and other general revenues,
For all governmental activities, general revenue support is 93 percent.

Business-type Activities

The most significant business-type activity of the District is the food service operation.
The program had revenues of $1.17 million and expenses of $1.22 million in fiscal year 2001.
The food service operated at a deficit afier operating revenues and state and federal grants., This
deficit will be offset by a transfer from the general operating fund of the District. However, the
deficit in fiscal year 2001 was only $0.04 million, a reduction from the deficit of $0.06 million
in fiscal year 2000. Since fiscal year 1997, when the deficit was $0.16 million, the support
required from the general fund has been reduced each fiscal year. Management develops a
detaled cashflow plan for the food service annually, which is monitored on a monthly basis
throughout the year. General fund support for the food service is an integral part of this plan, and
in fiscal year 2002 is expected to be less than in fiscal year 2001.

=10-



BEDFORD CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2001 (unaudited)
{continued)

The District's Funds

Information about the District’s major funds starts on page 20. These funds are accounted
for using the modified accrual basis of accounting. (See Notes 2 and 3 for discussions of
significant accounting methods and policies.) As previously discussed, the District will remain
stable in 2002, but will be unable to meet inflationary cost increases in the long-term without
additional tax levies.

G | Fund Budeeting Highlieht

The Dnstrict’s budget is prepared according to Ohio law and is based on accounting for
certain transactions on a basis of cash receipts, disbursements and encumbrances. The most
significant budgeted fund is the General Fund.

During the course of fiscal year 2001, the District amended its general fund budget several
times, but no change was significant. The District uses a modified site-based budget technigue
which is designed to tightly control site budgets while providing flexibility for site management.

The District prepares and monitors a detailed cashflow plan for the general fund annually.
Actual cashflow is compared to monthly and year-to-date estimates, and a monthly report is
prepared for top management and the Board of Education.

Debt Service Fund Highlights

The debt service fund is one of three governmental funds receiving the majority of its
revenues from property taxes. There is no source of revenue other than property taxes for the
debt service fund. Tax rates for the debt service fund are set annually by the Budget Commission
of Cuyahoga County in consultation with the Treasurer of the District to retire the annual principal
and interest on bonded debt approved by the voters.

Permanent Improvement Fund Budgeting Highlights.

The permanent improvement fund is the third fund of the District which receives money
from property taxes, The voters approved in 2001, a renewal of a five-year one mill property tax
levy intended to finance the maintenance and improvement of the capital assets of the District.
This levy will generate approximately $600,000 annually for calendar years 2002 through 2006.
The District has renewed this levy every five years since 1986, Capital maintenance and
improvements areé planned for the life of the current levy and are reviewed annually.



BEDFORD CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2001 (unaudited)
(continued)

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capital Assets

At the end of fiscal year 2001, the District had, at cost, $40.51 million invested in land,
buildings, vehicles, furniture and equipment of which $40.31 was in governmenial activities. That
total carries an accumulated depreciation of $24.72 million. Table 4 shows fiscal year 2001
balances compared to fiscal year 2000.

Table 4
Capital Assets & Accumulated Depreciation at June 30, 2001
(In Millions)
Governmental Activities
2001 2000
Govermmental Activities
Lard and [Improvemants 12.28 32,28
Bulldinge and |mprovensnis 31.32 30.TE
Furniture & Equipment 3.40 .24
Wehicles 3.aor 3.13
Construction in Progress, Vehicles 0.23 .00
Construction in Progress, Buildings 0.0 .00
Tokols @t Cost &0 %1 N
Liess Accumulated Deprociation
Billdirge and |Wprevenenia L3000 [1R.L5)
Furniture & Equipment (2.30) (2.101
Wehicles )] (2.18)
Tornl Accunulated Depreciation L85 503 (23733
Governmental Activities
Copital Assets, Net $15.73 B15. 48
Busi . sctiviti
2001 2000
Bisiness-type Activities
Furnfture and Eguipment ®0. 20 80,70
Lows Accumdlated Dopreciation {0,953 (0,153
.I.H-‘II'E'BH'[!H Activities
Caplital Assets, Met E‘E ﬂlﬂ-

Because the government-wide Sraremenr of Ner Assers reports all govermment assets, a
significant portion of the net assets reported there typically reflect a district’s investment in capital
assefs. To draw the financial statement user’s atiention to this important information, accounting
principals generally accepted in the United States of America ("US GAAP") require the amount
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BEDFORD CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2001 (unaudited)
(continued)

of net assets invested in capital assets to be reported as a separate category of nel assets. The
specific amount reported for governmental activities is calculated as shown in Table 5. The
"related debt” is the total of the principal on general obligation and energy conservation bonds.
The calculation shows that the depreciated value of the District's capital assets exceeds the total
of the related debt.

Table 5
Net Governmental Assets Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt
(In Millions)
Governmental Copital Aszets 240,51
Less: Accumulated Depreciation [
Less Outstanding Principal of Related Debt 11943

Wet Assers Irvested i Capltsl Assers,
Ker of Related Debe 53.81

Debt

At June 30, 2001, the District had $11.94 million in bonds outstanding, and $0.82 million
due within one year, Table 6 summarizes bonds and notes outstanding.

Table 6
Outstanding Debt, Governmental Activities at End of Year
(In Millions)

Beginmirg outstanding
—PlEpogs —af Yepe

Facilities

Aecgquisition 50.24 £0.22

Library

Construction 1.28 1.21

Fazilitles

Renowat ion 1011 #.70

Energy Conservation

[E.8. 2641 0,45 044

Ernergy Conservatian

[H.8. 2641 T 0,57
£12.710 311,74
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BEDFORD CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2001 (unaudited)
{continued)

For the Future

The Bedford City School District is stable. As the preceding information shows, the
District is heavily dependent on property taxes. Property tax revenue does not increase solely as
a result of inflation. Therefore, in the long-term, the current program and staffing levels will be
dependent on increased funding to meet inflation.

On March 24, 1997, the Ohio Supreme Court rendered a decision declaning cerfain
portions of the Ohio school funding plan unconstitutional, The court stayed the effect of its ruling
to allow the State’s legislature to design a plan to remedy the perceived defects in that system.
Declared unconstitutional was the State's "school foundation program” which provides significant
amounts of monetary support to the District,

On September 6, 2001, the Ohio Supreme Court issued its latest opinion regarding the
State's school funding plan. The decision identified aspects of the current plan that require
modification if the plan is to be considered constitutional.

In general, it is expected that the decision would result in an increase in State funding for
mast Ohio school districts, However, as of October 26, 2001, the Ohio General Assembly was
still analyzing the impact this Supreme Court decision will have on funding for individual school
districts. Further, the State of Ohio, in a motion filed September 17, 2001, asked the Court to
reconsider and clarify the parts of the decision changing the school districts that are used as the
basis for determining the base cost support amount and the requirement that changes be made
retroactive to July 1, 2001.  As of the date of these financial statements, the School District is
unable to determine what effect, if any, this decision will have on its future State funding and on
its financial operations.

The State Legislature has also effected the deregulation of electric public utilities. Electric
deregulation took place January 1, 2001. Under prior law, an electric company's taxable
production equipment was assessed at 100% of true value, while all of its other taxable property
was assessed at 88% of true value. This legislation provides the assessment rate for the laxable
transmission and distribution property of an electric company remains at 88% of true value, but
all other taxable property of the electric company is now assessed at 25% of true value,

Prior law assessed all taxable property of a rural electric company at 50% of true value,
This legislation provides the assessment rate for taxable transmission and distribution property of
a rural electric company remains at 50% of true value, but all other taxable property of a rural
electric company is now assessed al 25% of true value. To help offset loss of revenue, for the
purpose of raising revenue for public education and state and local government operations, an

-14-



BEDFORD CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2001 (unaudited)
(continued)

excise tax was levied and imposed on electric distribution companies for all electricity distributed
by such company beginning with the measurement period that includes May 1, 2001, at the
following rates per kilowatt hour ("kWh") of electricity distributed in a thirty-day period by the
company through a "meter of an end user in this state®, Thirty-seven percent of the KWh tax is
to be collected at the state level for distribution to school districts and other local governments for
property tax replacement funds. The Department of Education will pay to each school district their
share of school district property tax replacement funds. The Department of Education will report
to each school district the apportionment of the payments among the school district's funds based
on the certifications from the tax commissioner.

The Bedford City School District does not anticipate any meaningful growth in revenue
as a result of any of these changes. In fact, there is concern that there is no guarantee that the
District will be held harmless. Based on these factors, the Board of Education and the
administration of the District must maintain careful financial planning and prudent fiscal
management in order to preserve the financial stability of the District.

The Bedford City School District has committed itself to the highest standards of financial
excellence for many vears, The District has received the Govermnment Finance Officers
Association Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting each year since
1997. The commitment continues with this financial report using the GASB Statement No, 34
reporting model.

Contacting the School District’s Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, and investors and
creditors with a general overview of the District’s finances and to show the District’s
accountability for the money it receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional
financial information, contact J. K. Bymne, Treasurer of Bedford City School District, 475
Northfield Road 44146, or e-mail at jbymegbedford. k12.0h. us.
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Bedford City School District

Stalemant of Nat Azzalz
Jume 30, 2001
Governmantal Business-typa
Activitins Activities Teodal
Asscis
Equity in Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents §7.787.274 §272158 58,068 430
Racetvablas:
Taxes - Current 408 425 560 - 49 425 550
Taxes - Delinguent 2,560 043 - 2 580 043
Accounts 43 875 7,500 51,375
Intergowernmental 3,314,487 E5 021 3,568 508
intarfund Loans 110,000 (113,000) .
Materials and Supplies Inventory 307,029 25,287 332 316
Resiricted Aszels 6,014 858 - 6,014 B56
Mondepraciable Capltal Assats 2283183 - 2283183
Depreciable Capital Assats, Net 13,473, 418 4% 953 13 515,371
Total Assets BE, 350,727 281,017 B5,651,044
Liabilities
Accounts Payable 455 9532 789 466,721
Accruad 'Wages and Benefits 3,854,951 78,251 4,033,202
Dua Cither Govarnments 35,900 . 35,800
Deferred Revenuea - Taxes 51,838 001 - 51,036,001
Deferred Revenus - Intergovernmeantal 3,800,985 - 3,800,985
Long Term Liabilties:
Dua 'Within Ona Year B20,000 . B20,000
Due Within Mare Than Cne Year 13,588 154 a7 T 13,633,815
Tofal Liabdities 74,585 943 128,741 T4 726,724
et Assets
Invested in Capltal Assets Met of Related Debt 3,811,548 41,953 3,853 851
Restricted for
Capital Projects 248 419 - 249 418
Dabt Sarvice 1,354,436 . 1,354,435
Other Purposes 388,005 - 3BB,085
Unresificted 4 256 186 143,223 4 379,418
Total MNet Assets a. Tdd $165176 $10,924. 820

Sea Accompanying Maotes to the Basic Financial Statements
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Bedfard City School District
Statemant of Activtiss
For [he Secs' Year Endad June 30 2007

Program Revenues

Charges for Cperating Capital
Services Grants and Grants and
Expenses and Sales Confrivutions Contributions
Governmental Activities
Instruction 518,893,342 $304 133 §1,137. 912 5 -
Suppart Senvices:
Fupil 2,183,048 gE,7T1 25,188 -
Imstructional Stafi 1,505 481 - 85,917 33210
Board of Education 184 482 - - .
Administration 2 554 SBB - 4,510 .
Fiscal [as5,B28 - - -
Businass 467,088 - = x,
Operation and Maintenance of Plant 6,062, 7B 36,618 - 177 844
Pupil Transpartation 2 606,748 18,303 50,912 -
Cantral 262,074 - 13,004 -
Cperation of Non-Instructional Services 58,300 - 454,611 -
Extracurricular Activities 563,058 a7.065 - .
Interest and Fiscal Charges 702,849 - . -
Tatal Gavernrmental Activities __ d77g35ET4 B4, 831 1,782085 211,18
Buslness-type Activitics
Faod Service 1,215,852 T8, 069 373657 -
Uniform School Suppliss 18,874 16,468 145 -
Summer Schaal 44 413 45 183 - -
Adult and Community Education 37,384 11,833 1z -
Recrasbon 8,152 83 . -
Special Enterprises - _ 20,250 - -
Total Business-type Activities i 1,324,774 800,201 73,834 -
Totals __ 530,118,348 §1,543,032 52165868 _  §211.151
General Revenues
Property Taxes Levied for
Ganeral Purposss
Debt Bervice
Capital Outlay

Grants and Entillernents not Restricted to Specific Programs
Paymant in Lieu of Taxes
Investment Eamings
Transier to Business-type Activities
Galn on Sale of Capital Assats
Mizcallaneous
Total General Revenuss
Change in Net Assets
Met Assets - Baginning of Year (See Nole 3)
Met Assets - End of Year

See Accompanying Motes fo the Basic Financial Statements



Met [Expense) Revenue

and Changes in Net Assats

Govarnmantal Business-typa
Activities Activities Takal
{Elmgl 1“] W [Elmlimi
{1I‘mlmj = [1.4”.&5#;
(184,482) # {184,482)
(2,550,078) . (2,550,078)
1995, 828) : |585,828)
{357,096) ‘ {357,096)
(5,648,220) - (5,848,220)
(2,828,833) - (2,628,933)
{2609,0M0) - (280,070)
{307, GEE) " {301 B85
(471.903) : {471.00%)
{702,845) - [702,848)
(35,147,537) - (35,147 537}
. (44,226) {44,228)
z {2.281) (2.281)
778 ¥7e
- {25,519) {25,519)
233 239
- 20, 250 20,250
= (30,739) (20, 739)
{35,147 537) {§0,738)  (35,188.276)
20,487 343 - 30,487 333
1,046 374 - 1,096,374
578,269 - 578,268
5,218,092 - & 215,092
41,975 - 41,975
732,915 - 732,915
(107.960) 107,960 -
247 200 - 24T 800
238 538 - 235 538
38,528,384 107950 39536344
4,380,847 §7.221 4,438,068
5,378,887 107,955 6,480 852
510,750,744 $165,176 $10.624 920



Bedford City School District

Baiance Shoot
Govammental Funds
June 30, 2007
Mon-majar
Permanent  Governmenlal
Ganeral Debt Service  Improvemeant Funds
Assats
Equity in Pooled Cash and Gash Eguivalent=  §5 128 047 §1.019,207 $EB3E 118 %1,01a,072
Imvastments - 225,000 - .
Recaivables:
Taxes - Currant 489,425 560 1,728,218 822 913 .
Taxes - Delingueani 2,580,043 81,723 48,605 -
fccounts 40,265 - 65,804 5,745
Intergovernmantal 3,314 487 139,454 150,000 278,385
Interfund Loans GG 400 ) 2 -
Materials and Supplies Imventory 307,029 - - -
Rastricted Assets:
Equity in Pooled Cash and Cash
Equivalents 204984 - = -
Total Assets _$62679.865 _ $3,203.642 _ $2,026,440 $1,302,182
Liabilities, and Fund Balances
Lizbiltias
Accounts Payable 2312024 L 530 461 $4E 054
Accrued Wages and Benefits 3,655,611 - - 8o, 140
Intarfund Loans Payabla - - - 550,400
Duie to Other Govednments 4831 - - 30,560
Deferred Revenue - Taxes 43,308,225 1,708,712 818,064 -
Dafarred Revenua - Intergovernmentel 3,314 487 1308, 454 216,804 130,200
Todal Liabilities S8, 705,478 1,848, 204 1,165,328 BST. 773
Fund Balances
Reserved for Encumnbrances BET. 714 = 484, 7R 175,688
Reserved for Educational Materlals 204 BB - . -
Reservad for Materials and Supplies
Invantany 307 o286 - - -
Reserved for Rediremant of General
Long-term Obligations - 1,354,438 - -
Unreserved - Undesignated 4,684 650 - ) are azz 258,721
Total Fund Balances 5 BB4 387 1,354 436 BE1, 111 434,408
Total Liabilities and
Fund Balances _SB2ETRBES 53,203,642 2 352,026,440 $1,302,182

Sea Accompanying Notes to the Baslc Finencial Statements



Tatal
Gavernmantal
Funds

$6,003,484
225,000

o, 07, 691
2,730 3T
112 814
3,882 346
BE5, 400
307,029

204,004

$60.212.129

$380 549
3,954 851
559,400
35900
51,936,001
3,800 885

&0,677. 788

1,348,191
204,004

307 029
1,354 436

5,318,603
£,534, 343

PR bl ool

$68,212 128

Total Gevernmental Fund Balances

Armaunts reparted for governmental sctiviiss i the Siafement of
Mat Agsars are diferant becauss

Capial azsats used in governmental aclivibes are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported In the funds,
MNondepreciable Capital Assets
Depreciable Capital Assets, Mat

Long-term Habilities, Including bonds payable, are not dues and
peyabde in the current perod, and therafore ara not reported in
the funds.

Due Within One Year
Due Within BMore Than One Year

Internal servica funds are used by managamant to charge tha

costs of dental and prescripbion diug msurance | and the ¢osls of
goods warehoused and distributed to Individual fends. The

gssels gnd liablities of the internal serdce funds are includad in
governmental activities in the Statement of MNet Assets,

Net Assets of Governmental Activities

Th

$8,534 343

2,283,183
13.473,418

(820,000}
(13.586,194)

874,004



Bedford City School District
Statement of Revenuss, Expendifures and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds
For the Rescal Year Ended June 30, 2001

Ciebd Perrmanent
General Sarvice Improvement
Revenues
Taxes $30,527,555 $1.,097.478 578,964
Tuition and Fees 254 377 - -
Earnings on Investments 732 415 - -
Intergovernmental 5,084, 158 100,713 47,159
Extracwrricular Activibes - = -
Charges for Services 115,014 - -
Misceallameous 235,538 - =
Total Revenues 3T .954 555 1,188,181 626,127
Expanditures
Current;
Instruction 17,814,004 - -
Support Sarvices:
Pupils 2 1600 682 - -
Instructional Staff 1,388,113 = -
Board of Educetion 184 482 = -
Administration 2 543 gAY -
Fi=cal ga2 467 -
Business 425,743 - =
Oparation and Malntenance of Plant 5,285,127 - 224 405
Pupil Transportation 2,522 630 - 298,164
Cantral 161,258 - -
Community Serdices = = =
Extracumicular Activities 387, 306 - -
Capital Gutlay - - B.B3D
Diebt Service;
Principal 285,000 485 i
Interest b, 524 BB, 325 -
Total Expenddures 34,070,237 1,113,335 531,418
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenuss
Crver (Under) Expenditures 3, BB4 318 B4 856 B4 708
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Sale of Asssts 1,880 - 248 110
Ciparating Transfars In - . -
Ciparating Transfers Cwut (388, 080) - -
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (383 390) = 245,110
Net Change in Fund Balances 3,500,928 B4 866 340,818
Fund Balance - Beginning of Year 2,383 455 1,269 570 £20.293
Fund Balance - End of Year 5,684 3BT %£1,354 436 £EE1, 111

Ses Accompanying Motes to the Besic Financial Statemants




Mon-majar Todal
Governmental  Gevernmental
Funds Funds

- £32 204 001
- 254 37T
40,847 773,582
1,828,131 8,165, 161
236 821 236 B21

- 115,014
50,708 ZB5 E45
2,255,708 47 034, 581
1,487 567 18,305 865
27,774 2,178,358
148,077 1,517,140

- 164 482
5,840 2540 537

- BE2, 45T

4 385 330,176

483 437 5852 860

- 2,620,784
12,870 204 928
53T TET BaT TET
207,243 oG08, 540

- B850

- TED,DDO

- 702 640
2,018,730 38,633,711

{BE3, 23] 3,400,870
= 247 EDO
277,120 277,120

- {2B5,080)
277,120 130,840
{385,802) 3,540,710
E2D,311 4,953 833

5434 409 §8,534 343

MNet change in Fund Balances - Total BGovernmental Funds 53,540,710

Amounts reported for govemmenial sciivitias in the Statement of

Activitiozs are diffarant becauss:

Governmeantal Funds report capital outlays as expendifures. Howevar,

In the Statement of Actlvities the cost of thase assets s alloceled owver

the estimated usaful lves of the assats as depreciation expenze.
Bulding assets capitalization GET 443
Vehicle assels capitalizalion 107 443
Buildings consfruction in progress 8,547
‘Yehicles construction in progress 225310
Furniture & equipment capitalizatian 156,657
Building assels depreciation {718,302)
Vehicle assels depreciation {183, 02)
Furniture & equipment deprecistion {186, 452)
Sale of vehicle prior to full depreciation (B BT )

Repayment of bond principal is an expendiure |n the govesnmental funds,

bt the repayment reduces long-term kabllitles in the Statemeant of MNet

Azgals 750,000

The intarnal service funds used by managemeant are not reportad in the
govarnment-wide Statement of Activities. Governmental fund expenditures and
the retated Internal service fund reévenues are eliminated. The nel revenue
(expense) of the internal service funds is allocated amoeng the

governmental activities. (B4

Same expensas reparted in the Statement of Activities, such es

compensated absances 4o not reguire the use of current financial

resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in govarnmantal

funds {net). 11,174
Change in Net Assets of Governmental Activities __§4,380 84T

=23



Bedford City School District

Slatement of Revenues, Expanditures and Changes in Fund Batance
Budget and Actual (Budget Basia) - General Fund
For the Fescal Year Ended June 30, 2001

FRevenues

Taxes

Tuitian

Eamings on Investments
Extracurricular Activities
Unrestricted Granis in Ald - State

Total Revenues
Expenditures
Current
Instructian:
Rasguilar
Special
Vocational Education
Adult/Continuing
Otiver
Suppail Senises
Pupd
Instructional Staff
Board of Education
Administration
Fiscal
Business
Dperation and Maintenance of Plant
Pupdl Transportation
Central
Cperation of Non-Instruciional Services
Extracurnicular Activities
Debt Service;
Prinzipal
Intarest

Total Expenditures
Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures

Other Flnancing Sources (Uses)
Advances n
Refund of Prior Year Expenditures
Cperating Transfers Out
Advances Out
Cantingencies

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Met Change in Fund Balames

Fund Balance - Beginning of Year
Encumbrances - End of Year

Fund Balance - End of Year

Ses Accompanying Motes to the Basic Financiel Statemants

‘Wariance with
Final Budget
Criginal Fimal Positive
Budget = Budget = Actual  (Negative)
§28 662 810 528 D52 671 $29 537 929 5485 254
TS5 000 143 564 143,864 -
500,000 741,680 Ta2814 (B, TEE)
25,000 260 2085 260, 256 =
__5JOE063 5048458 6,090,823 142,355
35,868 973 25 147,078 36, 7E5 5268 618, B47
13,522 578 13,413 868 13,193,828 219,840
2,558 509 3,000,331 2,805,145 195,242
1,286 548 1,287,470 1,217,837 78,533
1,403 1,403 - 1,403
507 454 G07 A5 B41,784 &5, 710
2.217.57T 2227 323 2,180,029 A7, 284
1,490,414 1,513,442 1,355,804 156,638
247 B35 249 8849 175,541 73,948
2,784 B04 27702919 2,635 022 183, 807
1,003 497 1,105 457 1,004 626 100,871
311,828 344 530 333,535 11,064
8,104 026 5512278 5,407 402 104 BTE
2,829 874 2, T43074 2,685, 104 57,870
168,372 221,372 216,805 4 453
24 538 34, 253 33,402 BE1
268, 085 I29 BI5 325,787 3,508
285 000 285,000 285,000 5
. S4700 54700 54524 1
35 177,615 25,844 BTT 34 BSS BR3 1,287,704
791,358 202,402 2,108,043 1,206 641
847,871 ar5.4m 875,471 -
- 219,140 219,140 -
(227, 000) (523 BAS) (353 184) 130, 491
(125, 0] (703,000 [F02,800) 100
(118, 800) (103, 750) - 103,750
477,071 (135,824) (28,517 aad 341
1,268 420 66, 5T8 2,207 560 2,140,982
3,244 735 3244 T35 3,244 735 -
- - _B80785 880,786
§4,513,164 $3.311, 313 £6, 333,081 £3.021.768







Bedford City School District

Siglamaent of Fund Net Assels

A=zsels
Equity in Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables;
Accounts

Intargovesnmantal

Matedials and Supplies Inventory
Tatal Current Asseats

Capital Assets, Nal
Total Assets
Liabilities
Accounts Payabla
Accrued Wages and Senafits

Interfund Loans Peayable
Total Currant Lisbiltias

Long-ferm Liabilities
Compensated Absences Payable

Total Liabilities
Met Assels
Imveatad In Captial Assets
Unrestricted {Deficit)

Total Net Assets [Deficit)

Proprislary Funds
June 30, 2000

Business-type Acthvities - Enterprise Funds

Unifarm Nan-major Total
Food Sehool Special Enterprise  Enterprise
Sarvice Supplles  Enterprises Funds Funds
563,648 §75.507 560 258 352 542 5272156
- - 7,500 - 7,500
53,881 512 - 514 55, 021
26,287 . x " 25 287
143,927 8.8 b7, 758 53,060 358 Bh4
38,618 = - 3,334 41,853
181,746 7a.018 B7.768 66, 384 401,817
- - - TEg Tag
T8 251 - - - 7B, 251
100,000 - - - 190,000
178,251 - - 10,768 188,020
4‘.!',?2} - - - 47 TE
275,872 - - 10,768 236741
38,618 - - 3,334 41 853
(82 845) 78,018 B7, 758 42 291 123,223
_(544.226) 578,018 387,758 _ $45625 _$165,176

See Accompanying Motes to the Basic Financial Statements



Governmental Aclivilies -
Internal Service Funds

Total
Internal

Gervice
Funds

$946,787
3.810

950,397

950 297
75,403

T 75403

75,403

ET4SM

5874094



Bedford City School District
Hatemeant of Revanuss,
Expanzas and Changes in Fund Nal Azsels

Froprietary Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2001

Business-lype Activilies - Enlarprise Funds

Lnifarm Man-rmajar Tatal
Faad &choal Special Enterprizse  Enfarprise
Service Supplies  Enterprises Funds Funds
Operating Revenues
Tuition and Fees 5 - - 5 - 546 0aa B45 080
Sales 758,069 16,468 - - 814,537
Charges for Services - i o 20,250 18,334 350584
Total Oparating Revenues 798,069 18,468 20,2450 B4, 414 800,201
Operating Expensas
Salaries and Wages 453,693 - - 73,367 oG5 900
Fringe Banefits 128,954 - - 8,162 137,116
Purchased Sarvices & 440 . - 7,212 15,652
Depreciation 8 604 - - 333 88937
Materials and Supplies 576,361 18874 - B84 506,113
Total Operating Expenses 1,215,952 18 B4 = B0 048 1,324 774
Operating Income [Loss) (417,883} (2 408) 20,250 (24 534) (424 573)
Mon-Operating Revenues [Expanses)
State and Foderal Granis 324,272 . - - 324,272
Donated Commodities 48,385 - - - 48,385
Other Revenues - 145 - 2 177
Total Mon-Operating Revenues {Expenzes ) __3T3 857 145 - a2 473,834

MNet Incoma {Loss) Before Operating Transters {44,226) (2261) 20250 (24502}  {50,738)

Operating Transfers in el - - 44 BEY 107 980

Change in Net Asscts 18,066 [2.261) 20,250 20,167 57,221
Mot Asseis (Daficit] Beginning of Year  63,241) 78,260 67,508 25,458 107 955
Wet Assels (Deficit) End of Year [$44,226)  $T6019 _ S8BT TS $45625 §165176

Ses Accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements



Gaovernmental Acthvitias -
Interrial Servce Funds

Total
Internal
Sarvice
Funds

i24)

(94}

a75, 088




Bedford City School District
Stmfement of Cash Rows
Pragrialary Funds
For the Ascal Yesr Ended June 30, 2001

Business-tvpe Activities - Endarprise Funds

Unifarm Mon-major
Foad Sehool Special  Enterprise
Service Suppllies  Enferprises Funds

Increase (Decrease) in Cash

and Cash Equivalents
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Cash Received from Tuition and Fees 5 - 5 - g - LEBO
Cash Received Tram Sales 803,513 15,600 - -
Cash Received from Other Operations - . 12,750 64,711
Cash Received from Seli-insurance Premiums - - - .
Cash Payments for Personal Services (612,553} - - {3B,871)
Cash Paymants for Purchased Services (8,240} - - {50,867
Cash Payments for Matesials and Supplies (519 426) s S {50
Cash Fayments for Other Expenses - (16,874} - {784
Met Cash Provided by (Used for} Operating Activities (338 908} {3,274) 12,750 {25,081)
Cash Fiows fram Moncapital Financing Actiifles
Cash Recaived from Granfs 314,517 - -
Cither Rievanues - 145 - 3z
Dperating Transfers 83,291 - - 44 GG
Cazh Recelved - ImMerfund Loans 100,000 - " -
Cash (Used) - Intergovernmental . = - { 3B, 0001}
Cash (Used) - Interfund Loans {220,000] - - {SB 000}
ket Cazsh Provided by (Used for)
Moncapital Financing Activilies 257 BOB 145 = {51 299
Met Increase (Decreass) in Cash and Cash Equlvalents {T8,008) (3,129) 12,750 (T6,380)
Cash and Cash Eguivalenis - Beginning of Year 142 84T 78 635 g7, 504 128,932
Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year $63 640 575507 580,258 552,542
Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net
Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities
Cperating Income {Loss) (3417 BET) (32,408) 520,250 (524 534
Adjustmants to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss) fo
Het Cash Provided by (Used far) Operating Activities:
Depraciation 8, G604 - - 333
Daonated Commodities Usad 45 385 - - -
Changes in Oparating Assels and Liabllithes:
Decrease (Increase) in Recelvables 5,444 (512} (7,500) 247
Decresse [Increasa) in Matenisls and Supplies Inventory T2 - - -
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Fayabls (171} [356) - 512
Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Wages and Banefis B854 - i1,649]
Total Adjusimenls BOSFT [BEE) (r.200] _[857)
MNet Cash Provided by (Used for}
Operating Activities (5336 B0O& 3,274 $12.750 [§25,081)

See Accompanying Moles to the Basic Financial Statements



Govarnmental Activities -
Infarnal Service Funds

Total
Entarprise

Funds

34850
819,113
77,521

(851 424)

{58,437)
{518,518}
18,688)

__(352,521)

314,517
77
107,960
100,000
| 38,000)
(278 000)

206 B4

e hre=N

{145 88T)
418,023

———

_$272,156

(3424573

8.8ar
43 386

i2,321)
7,721

(15)
8,345
72,052

($352 521)

Tatal
Intermal

Emrvice

Funds

15,523
821,672

[921,027})

9,428
_EELﬁEJ

S

6,739
Ba0, 046

_$945,787

{3,810

10,443

8 833

30,030



Bedford City School District
Starement _nl'.ﬂi!m..u!ury Nat Azssels

Fidueiary Funds
June A0, 2001
Private Purpese
Trust
Assets
Equity in Pogled Cash and Cash Equivalents BT TEB
Accounts Recelvable L m il
Total Assets T3, T3R8
Liabilities and Fund Balances
Liabilities:
Accounts Payabla -
Undistributed Manies 2,800
Due to Students -
Cue to Ciher Governmanis -
Tatal Liabilities 2,800
Mot Assats:
Hald in Trust 70,838
Total Met Assets __§70,838

Saa Accompanying MNotes o the Basic Financial Statements

-32-

§32,456
161
32,617

1,058

30,727
B31
32 617



Bedford City School District
Stalement of Changes in Fiduciary Ned Assets
iary Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2001

Private Purpose
Trust
Additions

Interest 52 543
Cihar 7.3
10,244
Daductions 5, T62
Change [n Met Azsels 4 482
Met Assels Beginning of Year B, 356
Met Assets End of Year 0,838

Ses Accompanying MNotes to the Basic Financial Statements



BEDFORD CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2001

NOTE 1 - DESCRIPTION OF THE DISTRICT AND REPORTING ENTITY

A. Description of the District

The Bedford City School District (the "District”) is a city school district as defined by
Section 3311.02 of the Ohio Revised Code. The District is one of the 661 active public school
districts (193 city, 49 exempted village, 370 local, and 49 joint vocational school districts) in the
State of Ohio and one of 33 in Cuyahoga County, and provides education to 3,844 students in
grades K through 12, The District also provides preschool education to 34 handicapped students.
The District is located in northeast Ohio, approximately 15 miles southeast of the City of
Cleveland and entirely within the boundaries of Cuyahoga County. The District covers
approximately 20 square miles and includes the City of Bedford, most of the City of Bedford
Heights, and the Villages of Walton Hills and Oakwood. The operation of the District is governed
by an elected five-member Board of Education.

B. The Reporting Entity

In evaluating how to define the governmental reporting entity, the District follows the
provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board ("GASB") Statement No. 14, The
Financial Reporting Ensity, under which the financial statements include all the organizations,
activities, functions, and component units for which the District is financially accountable.
Financial accountability is defined as the appointment of a voting majority of the component unit's
board and either (1) the District's ability to impose its will over the component unit, or (2) the
possibility that the component unit will provide a financial benefit to or impose a financial burden
on the Distnict. On this basis, the District’s financial reporting entity has no component units but
includes all funds and account groups that are part of the District,

MNon-public schools located within the boundaries of the District include: St. Pius, Chanel,
5t. Mary's and New Covenant Christian Academy. These non-public schools arc operated
independently of the District. The District receives auxiliary services money from the Stale for
the support of these non-public schools and serves as the primary recipient having administrative
responsibilities with respect to these grants. The accounting for these receipts and disbursements
is reflected in a special revenue fund in accordance with GASB Statement No. 24, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Certain Grants and Other Financial Assistance, but the non-public
schools' operations are not reflected in the accompanying financial statements.

The Chio Schools Council (the "Council") is a jointly poverned organization among eighty-
eight school districts. The jointly governed organization was formed o purchase quality products

-34-



BEDFORD CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
JUNE 30, 2001

(Note 1 continued)

and services at the lowest possible cost to the member districts. Each distnict supports the Council
by paying an annual participation fee. In fiscal year 2001, the District paid fees of $1,947 to the
Council. The Council's Board consists of seven superintendents of the participating districts
whose term rotates every year. The degree of control exercised by any school district is limited
to its representation on the Board, Financial information can be obtained by contacting Dr.
Kathleen Neal, the Execulive Secretary of the Ohio Schools Council at Rockside Square Building
2, 6133 Rockside Road, Independence, Ohio 44131. The District participates in the Council's
electric purchase program which was implemented during fiscal year 1998. This program allows
school districts to purchase electricity at reduced rates, if the school district will commit to
participating for an eight-year period. The participants make monthly payments based on
estimated usage. Each June these estimated payments are compared to their actual usage for the
year and any necessary adjustments are made, In 1997, Energy Acquisition Corporation, a non-
profit corporation with a self-appointing board, issued $119, 140,000 in debt to pre-purchase eight
years of clectricity from Cleveland Electric [luminating ("CEI") for the participants. The
participating school districts are not obligated in any manner for this debt. If a participating
school district terminates its agreement, that district is required to repay savings to CEI and CEI
will refund the remaining prepayment related to that participant to Energy Acquisition
Corporation,

The District also participates in the Council's prepaid natural gas program which was
implemented during fiscal year 2000. This program allows school districts to purchase natural
gas at reduced rates, if the school district will commit to participating for a twelve-year period.
The participants make monthly payments based on estimated usage. Each month these estimated
payments are compared to actual usage and any necessary adjustments are made.

The City of Hamilton, a municipal corporation and a political subdivision duly organized
and existing under the laws of the State of Ohio, issued $89,450,000 in debt to purchase twelve
years of natural gas from CMS Energy Corporation for the participants. The participating school
districts are not obligated in any manner for this debt. If a participating school district terminates
its agreement, the district 18 entitled to recover the amount, if any, of its contributions to the
operating fund which are not encumbered for its share of program administrative costs.

The Lakeshore Northeast Ohio Computer Association ("LNOCA") is a jointly governed
computer service bureau among 16 public school districts and an educational service center . The
primary function of LNOCA is to provide data services to the 17 members. Major areas of
service provided by LNCOA include accounting, payroll, inventory, career guidance services,

-35-



BEDFORD CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
JUNE M, 2001

{(Mote 1 continued)

handicapped student tracking, pupil scheduling, attendance reporting and grade reporting, and
Internet access. Each school district is represented on the LNOCA board of directors by its
superintendent or designated representative. Each year, the Board of Directors elects a Chairman,
a Vice Chairman and a Recording Secretary. The Treasurer of the fRscal agent is a nonvoling,
ex-officio member of the Board of Directors. The Cuyahoga County Educational Service Center
serves as the fiscal agent of LNCOA. Each school district supports LNOCA based upon a per
pupil charge dependent upon the software packages used. The degree of control exercised by a
participating school district is imited to its representation on the Board, Financial information
can be obtained by contacting the Treasurer of the fiscal agent at 7800 Wall Street, Valley View,
Ohio 44125.

The following entities which perform activities within the District's boundaries for the
benefit of its residents are excluded from the accompanying financial statements because the
District is not financially accountable for these entities nor are they fiscally dependent on the
District,

(1.} Cuyahoga County - functions allocated to counties by Ohio law, such as elections,
health and human services, and judicial.

(2.)  The Cities of Bedford and Bedford Heights - municipal corporation responsibilities.

(3.)  The Villages of Oakwood and Walton Hills - limited functions allocatad to villages.

(4.) Cuyahoga County Library District - public library.

The following support organizations are currently active within the District: building-level
Parent Teacher Associations and the Bedford Schools Foundation, PTA Council, Band and
Orchestra Boosters, and Athletic Boosters. Each of these organizations is operated independently
of the District and is not part of the District’s reporting entity. While each of these organizations’
efforts is aimed at helping the District and/or associated school, the District is not involved in the
selection of directors and is not financially accountable for any of the above organizations,
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NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the District have been prepared in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America ("US GAAP") as applied to
governmental units. The GASB is the accepted standard setting body for establishing governmental
accounting and financial reporting principles. The District’s significant accounting policies are
described below.

A._Fund Accounting

The District uses funds to maintain its financial records dunng the fiscal year. Fund
accounting is designed to demonstrate legal compliance and to aid financial management by
segregating transactions related to certain District functions or activities.

A fund is defined as a fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts
recording cash and other financial resources, together with all related liabilities and residual
equities or balances, and changes therein, which are segregated for the purpose of carrying on
specific activities or altaining certain objectives in accordance with special regulation, restrictions
or limitations.

The various funds of the District are grouped into the categories governmental, proprietary
and fiduciary,

Governmental Funds - Governmental funds are those through which most governmental
functions of the District are financed. The acquisition, use¢ and balances of the District's
expendable financial resources and the related current liabilities (except those accounted for in
proprietary funds and fiduciary trust funds) are accounted for through governmental funds. The
following are the District's major governmental funds:

General Fund - The general fund is the operating fund of the District and
15 used to account for all financial resources except those required (o be accounted
for in another fund. The general fund balance is available to the District for any
purpose provided it is expended or transferred according to the general laws of
Ohio.
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(Note 2 continued)

Debt Service Fund - The debt service fund is used to account for the
accumulation of resources received from property taxes for the payment of general

obligation bond principal and interest,

Permanent Improvement Capital Projects Fund - The permanent
improvement capital projects fund 18 used to account for financial resources to be
used for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other than those
financed by proprietary funds or trust funds).

The other governmental funds of the District account for grants and other resources whose
use 1§ restricted to a particular purpose,

Proprietary Funds - Proprietary funds focus on the determination of the changes in net
assets, financial position and cash flows and are classified as either enterprise or internal service.

Enterprise Funds - Enterprise funds may be used to account for any activity for
which a fee is charged to external users for goods or services. The District’s major
enterprise funds are:

Food Service Fund - This fund accounts for the financial transactions
related to the food service operations of the District.

Uniform School Supplies Fund - The fund accounts for the purchase and
sale of school supplies for use in the Distnict. Profits derived from such sales are
used for school purposes or activities connected with the school.

Special Enterprises - This fund accounts for financial transactions related
to rental of the District’s High School athletic facilities.

Internal Service Funds - Internal service funds account for the financing of
services provided by one department or agency to other departments or agencies of the
District,
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{(Note 2 continued)

Fiduciary Funds - Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held by the District in
A trustee capacity or as an agent for individuals, private organizations, other governmental units
and/or other funds. These include public purpose trust, and agency funds. Apgency funds are
custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve measurement of results of
operations. The government-wide financial statements do not include activities of fiduciary and
agency funds.

B. Basis of Presentation

Government-wide Financial Statements The statement of net assets and the statement
of activities display information about the District as a whole. These statements include the
financial activities of the primary government, except for fiduciary funds. Internal service fund
activity is eliminated to avoid “doubling up” revenues and expenses, The statements distinguish
between those activities of the District that are governmental and those that are considered
business-type activities,

The government-wide statements are prepared using the economic resource measurement
focus. This is the same approach used in the preparation of the proprietary fund financial
statements but differs from the manner in which governmental fund financial statements are
prepared. Governmental fund financial statements therefore include a reconciliation with brief
explanations o betler identify the relationship between the government-wide statements and the
statements for governmental funds.

The government-wide statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses
and program revenues for each segment of the business-type activities of the District and for each
function or program of the District's governmental activitics. Direct expenses are those that are
specifically associated with a service, program or department and are therefore clearly identifiable
to a particular function. Program revenues include charges paid by the recipient of the goods or
services offered by the program and grants and contributions that are restricted to meefing the
operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues which are not classified
as program revenues are presented as general revenues of the District, with certain limited
exceptions. The comparison of direct expenses with program revenues identifies the extent to
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(Note 2 continued)

which each business segment or governmental function is self-financing or draws from the general
revenues of the District.

Fund Financial Statements Fund financial statements report detailed information about
the District, The focus of governmental and enterprise fund financial statements is on major funds
rather than reporting funds by type. Each major fund is presented in a scparate column. MNon-
major funds are aggregated and presented in a single column. Internal service funds are combined
and the totals are presented in a single column on the face of the proprietary fund statements.
Fiduciary funds are reported by fund type.

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by is
measurement focus. All governmental fund types are accounted for using a flow of current
financial resources measurement focus. The financial statements for governmental funds are a
balance sheet, which generally includes only current assets and current liabilities, and a statement
of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances, which reports on the sources (i.e.,
revenues and other financing sources) and uses (i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) of
current financial resources.

All proprietary fund types are accounted for on a flow of economic resources measurement
focus. With this measurement focus, all assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of
these funds are included on the statement of net assets, The statement of changes in fund net
assels presents increases (i.e., revenues) and decreases (i.e., expenses) in net total assets. The
statement of cash flows provides information about how the District finances and meets the cash
flow needs of ils proprietary activities.

Fiduciary funds are reported using the economic resources measurement focus.

C. Basis of Accounting

Basis of accounting determines when transactions are recorded in the financial records and
reported on the financial statements. Governmeni-wide financial statements are prepared using the
accrual basis of accounting. Governmental funds use the modified accrual basis of accounting,
Proprietary and fiduciary funds also use the accrual basis of accounting.
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Revenues - Exchange and Non-exchange Transactions  Revenue resulting from
exchange transactions, in which cach party gives and receives essentially equal value, is recorded
on the accrual basis when the exchange takes place. On a modified accrual basis, revenue is
recorded in the fiscal year in which the resources are measurable and become available. Available
means that the resources will be collected within the current fiscal year or are expected to be
collected soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current fiscal year. For the
District, available means expected to be received within sixty days of fiscal year-end.

Non-exchange transactions, in which the District receives value without directly giving
equal value in return, include property taxes, grants, entitlements and donations. On an accrual
basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied,
Revenue from grants, entitlements and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all
eligibility requirements have been satisfied. Eligibility requirements include timing requiremenis,
which specify the year when the resources are required to be used or the fiscal year when use is
first permitted, matching requirements, in which the District must provide local resources to be
used for a specified purpose, and expenditure requirements, in which the resources are provided
to the District on a reimbursement basis. On a modified accrual basis, revenue from non-
exchange transactions must also be available before it can be recognized.

Under the modified accrual basis, the following revenue spurces are considered to be both
measurable and available at fiscal year-end: property taxes available as an advance, interest,
tuition, grants, student fees and rentals.

Deferred Revenue Deferred revenoe arises when assets are recognized before revenue
recognition criteria have been satisfied.

Delinguent property taxes and property taxes for which there is an enforceable legal claim
as of June 30, 2001, but which were levied to finance fiscal year 2002 operations, have been
recorded as deferred revenue, Grants and entitlements received before the eligibility requirements
are met are also recorded as deferred revenue.

On governmental fund financial statements, receivables that will not be collected within
the available penod have also been reported as deferred revenue.
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Expenses/ Expenditures On the accrual basis of accounting, expenses are recognized at
the time they are incurred. The fair value of donated commeodities used during the year is
reported in the operating statement as an expensé with a like amount reported as donated
commesdities revenue,

The measurement focus of governmental fund accounting is on decreases in net financial
resources (expenditures) rather than expenses. Expenditures are generally recognized in the
accounting period in which the related fund liability is incurred, if measurable. Allocations of
o08t, such as depreciation and amortization, are not recognized in governmental funds.

D, Budgetary Process

The budgetary process is prescribed by provisions of the Ohio Revised Code and entails
the preparation of budgetary documents within an established timetable. The major documents
prepared are the tax budget, the cerfificate of estimated resources, and the appropriation
resolution, all of which are prepared on the budgetary basis of accounting. The certificate of
estimated resources and the appropriations resolutions are subject to amendments throughout the
year, with the legal restriction that appropriations cannot exceed estimated resources, as certified.
All funds, other than agency funds, are required to be budgeted and appropriated. The primary
level of budgetary control is at the object code function level within each fund, Budgetary
modifications may only be made by resolution of the Board of Education.

Tax Budget - Prior to January 15, the Superintendent and Treasurer submit to the Board
of Education a proposed tax budget for the fiscal year commencing the following July 1. The
budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing for all funds. Operational
cxpenditure recommendations are developed assuming "committed costs”. Public hearings are
announced and conducted to obtain taxpayers' comments. The express purpose of this tax budget
document is to reflect the need for existing (or increased) tax rates and to provide a basis for the
development of the first permanent appropriations for the coming fiscal year.

By no later than January 20, the Board-adopted budget is filed with the Cuyahoga County
Budget Commission (the "Budget Commission") for determination of tax rates. The Budget
Commission will determine the appropriate tax rates and will prepare a certificate of estimated
resources for the District. A hearing may be held by the Budget Commission where the Budget
Commission members discuss the proposed budget with District officials.
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Board Strategic Fiscal Planning - The Board of Education holds an annual full-day
workshop during February or March to review the financial “health” of the District, and to

develop target figures for appropriations for the fiscal year which will begin in July., A five-year
strategic fiscal plan is updated every year during this workshop. Trends of the previous years are
reviewed and, when appropriate, levy plans are made. The Board of Education examines facilities
and curriculum, and analyzes the impact of District needs on finances, both short and long-term.
Target figures for the coming fiscal year are developed in the context of the District’s strategic
fiscal plan.

Estimated Resources - By Apnl 1, or a later date as determined by the Budget
Commission, the Board of Education accepts, by formal resolution, the tax rates as determined
by the Budget Commission. Prior to June 30, the District must revise its budget so that total
contemplated expenditures from any fund during the ensuing year will not exceed the amount
stated in the certificate of estimated resources. The revised budget then serves as the basis for the
appropriation measure. On or about July 1, the cerfificate is amended to include any
unencumbered cash balances from the preceding year. The certificate may be further amended
during the year if projected increases or decreases in revenue are identified by the Treasurer of
the District. The amounts reported in the budgetary statements reflect the amounts in the final
amended certificate 15sued during fiscal vear 2001,

Appropriations - Upon receipt from the County Auditor of an amended certificate of
estimated resources based on final assessed values and tax rates or a certification saying no new
certificate is necessary, the annual appropriation must be legally enacted by the Board of
Education at the fund, function and object level of expenditures, which are the legal levels of
budgetary control, Prior to the passage of the annual appropriation measure, the Board may pass
a temporary appropriation measure to meet the ordinary expenses of the District. The
appropriation resolution, by fund, must be within the estimated resources as certified by the
Budget Commission and the total of expenditures and encumbrances may not exceed the
appropriation totals at any level of control. Any revisions that alter the total of any fund
appropriation or alter total function appropriations within a fund, or alter object appropriations
within functions, must be approved by the Board of Education. The Board may pass supplemental
[und appropriations provided the total appropriations by fund do not exceed the amounts set forth
in the most recent certificate of estimated resources, During the fiscal year 2001, several
supplementary appropriations were legally enacted; however, none of these amendments were
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significant. The budget figures which appear in the statements of budgetary comparisons represent
the final appropriation amounts, including all supplemental appropriations.

Encumbrances - As part of formal budgetary control, purchase orders, contracts and other
commitments for the expenditure of moneys are recorded as the equivalent of expenditures on the
non-US GAAP budgetary basis in order to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation and
to determine and maintain legal compliance. Expenditures plus encumbrances may not legally
exceed appropriations. Om the US GAAP basis, encumbrances outstanding at vear end are

reported as a reservation of fund balance for subsequent-year expenditures for governmental
funds.

Lapsing of Appropriations - At the close of each year, the unencumbered balance of each
appropriation reverts to the respective fund from which it was appropriated and becomes subject

to future appropriations. Encumbered appropriations are carried forward to the succeeding fiscal
vear and are reappropriated.

E. Cash and Cash Equivalents

To improve cash management, cash received by the District is pooled. Interest in the pool
is presented as “Equity in Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents™ on the financial statements.

During fiscal year 2001, investments were limited 1o a Bedford City School District
Facilities Acquisition Bond, and the State Treasury Asset Reserve ("STAR Ohio").
Nonparticipating investment contracts such as nonnegotiable certificates of deposit are reported
at cost.

STAR Ohio is an invesiment pool managed by the State Treasurer's Office which allows
governments within the State to pool their funds for investment purposes. STAR Ohio is not
registered with the SEC as an investment company, but does operate in a manner consistent with
Rule 2a7 of the Investment Company Act of 1940, Investments in STAR Ohio are valued at
STAR Ohio's share price which is the price the investment could be sold for on June 30, 2001.

Following Ohio statutes, the Board of Education has, by resolution, specified the funds to
receive an allocation of interest earnings. For fiscal year 2001, the District elected to limit the
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distribution of interest to the general fund, the auxiliary services fund, non-expendable trust fund
and the building fund.

For presentation on the financial statements, investments of the cash management pool and
imvestments with original maturities of three months or less at the time they are purchased by the
District are considered to be cash equivalents. Investments with an initial maturity of more than
three months are reported as investments.

F. Restricted Assets

Restricted assets represent cash and cash equivalents and other current assets whose use
is limited by creditors, grantors or legal requirements. Restricted assets in the general fund
in¢clude amounts required by sfatute to be set-aside for the purchase of texthooks and other
instructional material. See Note 17 for additional information regarding statutory reserves and
Note 18 for additional formation regarding restricted assets.

G. Inventory

On government-wide financial statements, inventories are presented at the lower of cost
or market on a first-in, first-out basis and are expensed when used.

On fund financial statements, inventories of governmental funds are stated at cost while
inventories of proprietary funds are stated at the lower of cost or market. For all funds, cost is
determined on a first-in, first-out basis. Inventory in governmental funds consists of expendable
supplies held for consumption. The cost of inventory items is recorded as an expenditure in
governmental funds when purchased. Inventories of proprietary funds consist of donated and
purchased food.
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H. Capital Assets

General capilal asseis are those assets not specifically related to activities reported in the
proprictary funds. These assets generally result from expenditures in the governmental funds.
These assets are reported in the governmental activities column of the government-wide statement
of net assets but are not reported in the fund financial statements, Capital asscts utilized by the
proprietary funds are reported both in the business-type activities column of the governmeni-wide
statement of net assets and in the respective funds,

All capital assets are capitalized at cost (or estimated historical cost) and updated for
additions and retirements during the year. The District maintains a capitalization threshold of ong
thousand dollars. The District does not possess any infrastructure. Improvements are capitalized;
the costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially

extend an asset's life are not.

All reported capital assets except land and construction in progress are depreciated.
Improvements are depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the improvements. Depreciation
is computed using the straight-line method over the following useful lives:

Gowarrmanial s s s - Ty

Activities hetivinTes
Dascr oyl an Estimated Lives Estimated Lives
Buildings and Improvements 10-30 years nda
Conputers 5 years 5 years
Furniture and Equipment 5-20 years 12 years
Wahicles 12 years nia

I. Interfund Balances

Om fund financial statements, receivables and payables resulting from shori-term interfund
loans are classified as "interfund loans receivable/payable”. These amounts are eliminated in the
governmental and business-type activities columns of the statement of net assets, except for the
net residual amounts due between governmental and business-type activities, which are presented
as internal balances.
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J. Compensated Absences

The District reports compensated absences in accordance with the provisions of GASB
Statement No. 16, Accounting for Compensated Absences. Vacation benefits are accrued as a
liability as the benefits are earned if the employees' rights to receive compensation are attributable
{0 services already rendered and it 15 probable that the Distrct will compensate the employees for
the benefits through paid time off or some other means.

Sick leave benefits are accrued as a liability using the termination payment methad. An
accrual for eamned sick leave is made to the extent that it is probable that the benefits will result
in termination payments. The hability 13 based on the District’s past experience of making
termination payments,

The entire compensated absence liability is reported on the government-wide financial
statements. For governmental fund financial statements, the current portion of unpaid
compensated ahsences is the amount expected Lo be paid using expendable available resources.
These amounts are récorded in the fund from which the employees who have accumulated unpaid
leave are paid. The noncurrent portion of the liability is not reported. In proprietary funds, the
entire amount of compensated absences is reported as a fund liability.

K. A | Liabilities and Long-term Obligati

All payables, accrued liabilities and long-term obligations are reported in the government-
wide financial stalements, and all payables, accrued liabilities and long-term obligations payable
from proprietary funds are reported on the proprietary fund financial statements.

In general, payables and accrued liabilities that will be paid from governmental funds are
reported on the governmental fund financial statements regardless of whether they will be
liquidated with current resources. However, claims and judgements, compensated absences and
special termination benefits that will be paid from governmental funds are reported as a liability
in the fund financial stalements only Lo the exient that they will be paid with current, expendable,
available financial resources. [In general, liabilities that mature or come due for payment during
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the fiscal year are considerad to have been made with current available financial resources. Bonds
and other long-term obligations that will be paid from governmental funds are not recognized as
a liability in the fund financial statements when due.

L. Fund Balance Reserves

The District reserves those portions of fund equity which are legally segregated for a
specific future use or which do not represent available expendable resources and therefore are not
available for appropriation or expenditure. Unreserved fund balance indicates that portion of fund
equity which is available for appropriation in future periods. Fund equity reserves have been
estahlished for encumbrances, texthooks, inventories of supplies and materials, and property taxes.

The reserve for property taxes represents taxes recognized as revenue under US GAAP
but not available for appropriation under Stale stalule,

M. Net Assels

MNet assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities, Net assets invested in
capital assets, nel of related debt consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation,
reduced by the outstanding balances of any borrowings used for the acquisition construction or
improvement of those assets. Net assets are reported as restricted when there are limitations
imposed on their use either through the enabling legislation adopted by the District or through
external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors or laws or regulations of other governments,

Operating revenues are those revenues that are generated directly from the primary activity
of the proprietary funds. For the District, these revenues arc primarily sales for food service and
uniform school supplies, tuition and fees for summer school, and charges for services for self-
insurance programs. Operating expenses are necessary costs incurred to provide the good or
service that is the primary activity of the fund.
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O. Interfund Activity

Transfers between governmental and business-type activities on the government-wide
statements are reporied in the same manner as general revenues.,

Exchange transactions between funds are reported as revenues in the seller funds and as
expenditures/expenses in the purchaser funds. Flows of cash or goods from one fund to another
without a requirement for repayment are reported as interfund transfers, Interfund transfers are
reported as other financing sources/uses in governmental funds and after non-operating
revenues/expenses in proprietary funds. Repayments from funds responsible for particular
expenditures/expenses (o the funds that initially paid for them are not presented on the financial
stalements,

P. Proprietary Activity Accounting

Under guidelines of GASB Statement 20, Accounting amd Fimancial Reporting for
Proprietary funds and Other Governmental entities that use Proprietary Fund Accounting the
District has elected not to apply Financial Accounting Standards Board Statements and
Interpretations issued after November 30, 1989 to its business-type activities and enterprise funds.

Q. Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with US GAAP requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and
accompanying notes. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

Extraordinary items are transactions or events that are both unusual in nature and
infrequent in occurrence, Special items are transactions or events that are within the control of the
Board of Education and that are either unusual in nature or infrequent in occurrence. Neither type
of transaction occurred during fiscal 2001,
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NOTE 3 - CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES AND RESTATEMENT OF
FUND BALANCE

For fiscal year 2001, the District has elected early implementation of GASB Statement
No. 34 Basic Financial Statements - and Management's Discussion and Analysis - for State and
Local Governments. GASB 34 creates new basic financial statements for reporting on the
District’s financial activities, The financial statements now include government-wide financial
statements prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and fund financial statements which present
information for individual major funds rather than by fund type. Non-major funds are presented
in total in one column. The government-wide financial statements split the District’s programs
between business-type and governmental activities. The beginning net asset amount for the
business-type activities equals fund equity of the enterprise funds from last year. The beginning
net asset amount for governmental programs reflects the change in fund balance for governmental
funds at June 30, 2000, caused by the elimination of the internal service funds and the conversion
to the accrual basis of accounting.

Goverrmental Fund Balance at Jume 30, 2000 B, 908 B3E
Internal Service Furds Balance 475, 0ed
Capital Assets, Mot of Depreciation 15,677,539
Lafg-Term Lishilities 15, 147

Governmental Activities Met Assets at Jurs 30, 2000 m

In addition, for fiscal year 2001, the District has implemented GASB Statement No. 33,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Non-exchange Transaciions; GASB Statement No 36,
Recipient Reporting for Certain Shared Non-exchange Revenues; GASE Statement No. 37, Basic
Financial Statemenis - Management's Discussion and Analysis - State and Local Governments:
Omnibus; and GASB Statement No. 38, Cenain Financial Statement Note Disclosures. At June
30, 2000, there was no effect on fund balance as a result of implementing GASB Statements 33,
36, 37, and 38.
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NOTE 4 - FUND BALANCE DEFICITS

Fund balances/retained earnings at June 30, 2001 included the following individual fund
deficits:

Special Reowenue Funds

Career Development (51,124
Tithe VIE {5, 008y
vesat lonal Education 1, D&D)
Tigle 1 {50, el
Preachool Handicapped {6, 685
Mizcelianecus Federal Grants (11,513

Enterprise Funds
Food Service fhd, 2240

Special revenue fund deficits resulted from operations which exceeded grants, or for
which funds were not yet available under modified accrual accounting. The food service fund
operations are expected to require general fund support. The general fund is liable for any deficits
in these funds and will provide operating transfers when cash is required, not when accruals occur,

NOTE 5 - BUDGETARY BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

While the District is reporting financial position, results of operations and changes in fund
balance/retained earnings on the basis of US GAAP, the budgetary basis as provided by law is
based upon accounting for certain transactions on a basis of cash receipts, disbursements and
encumbrances. The Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances Budget
and Actual (Budget Basis) is presented on the budgetary basis to provide a meaningful comparison
of actual results with the budget. The major differences between the budget basis and the US
GAAP basis are as follows:

{1.) Revenues are recorded when received in cash (budget basis), as opposed to when
susceptible to accrual (US GAAP basis).

(2.} Expenditures are recorded when paid in cash (budget basis), as opposed to when
the fund liability is incurred (US GAAP basis).

{3.) Outstanding year-end encumbrances are treated as expenditures (budget basis),
rather than a reservation of fund balance (US GAAP basis).

The following table summarizes the adjustments necessary 1o reconcile the US GAAP basis
statements to the budgetary basis statements for the general fund:
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Met Charge in Fund Balance

L= GAAP Basis $3, 500,528
Het Adjustment for

Reverue Aicrumls LRT1,179)
Advances 1n s, 471
Het Adjustment for

Experditure Accruals 286, D2
Encumbrsnces (880, T84
Advances Out
Budget Basis Elﬁl?iiﬁﬂ

NOTE 6 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS

A. Legal Reguirements
State statule requires the classification of moneys held by the District into three categories:

Active Deposits - Those deposits necessary to meet current demands on the District. Such
deposits must be maintained either as cash in the District treasury, in commercial accounts payable
or withdrawable on demand, including negotiable order of withdrawal ("NOW") accounts, or in
money market deposil accounts.

Inactive Deposits - Those deposits the District has identified as not required for use within
the current two year pericd of designation of depositories. Inactive deposits must either be
evidenced by certificates of deposit maturing not later than the end of the current period of
designation of depositories, or by savings or deposit accounts, including, but not limited to,
passhook accounts.

Interim Deposits - Interim deposits are those moneys which are not needed for immediate
use but which will be needed before the end of the current period of designation of depositories.
Interim deposits must be evidenced by time certificates of deposit maturing not more than one
year from the date of deposit or by savings accounts, including passbook accounts,

Interim moneys may be invested in the following securities:
. United States Treasury Notes, Bills, Bonds, or any other obligation or security

issued by the United States Treasury or any other obligation guaranieed as to
principal and interest by the United States;
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2,

Bonds, notes, debentures, or any other obligations or securities issued by any
federal government agency or instrumentality, including but not limited to, the
Federal National Mortgage Association, Federal Home Loan Bank, Federal Farm
Credit Bank, Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation, Government National
Mortgage Association, and Student Loan Marketing Association. All federal
agency securities shall be direct issuances of federal government agencies or
instrumentalities;

Written repurchase agreements in the securities lisied above provided that the
market value of the securities subject to the repurchase agreement must exceed the
principal value of the agreement by at least two percent and be marked to market
daily, and that the term of the agreement must not exceed thirty days;

Bonds and other obligations of the State of Chio;

MNo-load money market mutual funds consisting exclusively of obligations described
in division (1) or (2) of this section and repurchase agreements secured by such
obligations, provided that investments in securitics described in this division are
made only through eligible institutions;

The State Treasurer's investment pool (STAR Ohio);

Certain bankers' acceptances and commercial paper notes for a period not o
exceed one hundred and eighty days from the date of purchase in an amount not
to exceed twenty-five percent of the interim moneys available for investment at any
one time; and,

Under limited circumstances, debt interests rated in either of the two highest rating
classifications by at least two nationally recognized rating agencies,

[nvestmenis in stripped principal or interest obligations, reverse repurchase agreements and
derivatives are prohibited. The issuance of taxable notes for the purpose of arbitrage, the use of
leverage and short selling are also prohibited. An investment must mature within five years from
the date of purchase unless matched to a specific obligation or debt of the District, and must be
purchased with the expectation that it will be held to maturity. Investments may only be made
through specified dealers and institutions. Payment for investmenis may be made only upon
delivery of the securities representing the investments to the treasurer or qualified trustee or, if
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the securities are not represented by a certificate, upon receipt of confirmation of transfer from
the custodian.

Protection of the District’s deposits is provided by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation ("FDIC"), by eligible securities pledged by the financial institution as security for
repayment, by surety company bonds deposited with the treasurer by the financial institution or
by a single collateral pool established by the financial institution to secure the repayment of all
public monies deposited with the institution.

The following information classifies deposits and investments by categories of risk as
defined in GASB Statement No. 3, Deposits with Financial Instirutions, Investmenis (including
Repurchase Agreemenis) and Reverse Repurchase Agreemenis.

B. Deposits

At June 30, 2001, the carrying amount of the District’s deposits was ($1,761,487) and the
bank balance was 5247 630. Of the total bank balance, 5200,000 was covered by federal
depository insurance, and 347,630 was secured by a pool of government securities held by the
pledging financial institution s trust department in the District’s name. Although all state statutory
requirements for the deposit of money had been followed, noncompliance with federal
requirements could potentially subject the District to a successful claim by the FDIC,

C. Investments

The District's investments are required to be categorized to give an indication of the level
of risk assumed by the District at year end. Category | includes investments that are insured or
registered or for which the securities are held by the District or its agent in the District’s name.
Category 2 includes uninsured and unregistered invesiments for which the securities are held by
the counterparty”’s trust department or agent in the District's name. Category 3 includes uninsured
and unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the counterparty or by its trusl
department or agent, but not in the District's name. STAR Ohio is an unclassified investment
sinee 1t 15 not evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book entry form.

Investmenis at June 30, 2001 consisted of a Bedford City School District School Facilities
Acquisition Bond (Category 1) with a carrying value of $225 000 and an investment in STAR
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Ohio with a carrying value of 512,295,102, The carrying value of these investments approximate
their fair values at June 30, 2001. At June 30, 2001, the carrying value of the District's deposits
and investments, classified in accordance with GASB Statement Mo, 3, is as follows:

Trvastnents $12,520, 102
Demard Depoaits T

carrying Value 10, 50.615

The classification of cash and cash equivalents, and investments on the basic financial
statements is based on criteria set forth in GASE Statement No, 9, Reporting Cash Flows of
Propriecary and Non-expendable Trust Funds and Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary
Fund Accounsing. Using that criteria, the above amounts are included on the basic financial
statements as follows:

Cash and Cash
i Iy TmentE

GASE Sratement 9 %10,533, 615 $225, 000
[nvestments Which &re Part of
& Cash Managemsnt Pool:

Irvestment im State Tressurers

Investnant Pool 12,295 102 12,295, 102
GASE Statement 3 EHI?EIII“EH w

NOTE 7 - PROPERTY TAXES

Property taxes are levied and assessed on a calendar year basis. Second half distnibutions
occur in a new fiscal year, Property taxes include amounts levied against all real, public utility
and tangible personal (used in business) property located in the District. Real property taxes are
levied after April 1 on the assessed value listed as of the prior January 1, the lien date. Public
utility property taxes attached as a lien on December 31 of the pnior year, were levied April | and
are collected with real property taxes. Assessed values for real property taxes are established by
State law at thirty-five percent of appraised market value. All property is required to be revalued
every six years, Public utility property taxes are assessed on tangible personal property at eighty-
eight percent of true value (with cenain exceptions) and on real property at thirty-five percent of
true value. Tangible personal property taxes are levied after April 1 on the value listed as of
December 31 of the current year. Tangible personal property assessments are twenty-five percent
of true value. Since property taxes are assessed and levied on a calendar year basis, the District
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receives property taxes from two taxing years during the District’s fiscal year, The assessed values
upon which the fiscal year 2001 taxes were collected are as follows:

2000 Second 2001 First

Half Collections Eolf Collections
Amounit Percent Amourit Percenit
ResidentiolsAgricul tural SRS T2 002 XN BE2E, 540,310 40, TFaX
Othar Real Estate b, B0 F50  31.04% 2533, 970, 350 31.31%
Public wtilicy Personal SE,TEOXE0 TATX 51,895 040 & 44X
Tangible Perschal Property 163,417,945 22,408 171,559,571 ZL.29%
Total IM 100, 00% Hﬂﬁ!ﬁﬂp J0=0, %

The full tax rate applied to real property for the 2001 collection year is 562,50 per 31,8
of assessed valuation. After adjustment of the rate for inflationary increases in property values,
the effective tax rate was $31.31 per $1,000 of assessed valuation for real property classified as
residential/agricultural and $39.97 for all other real property. Real property owner's tax bills are
further reduced by homestead and rollback deductions, when applicable. The amount of these
homestead and rollback reductions 18 reimbursed to the District by the State of Ohio.

Real property taxes are payable annually or semi-annually. I paid annually, payment is
due December 31; if paid semi-annually, the first payment is due December 31, with the
remainder payable by June 20. Under certain circumstances, State statute permits alternate
payment daies to be established.

Tangible personal property taxes paid by multi-county laxpayers are due September 20.
Single county taxpayers may pay annually or semi-annually. If paid annually, payment is due
April 30; if paid semi-annually, the first payment is due April 30, with the remainder payable by
September 20. The District receives property taxes from Cuyahoga County. The County Auditor
periodically advances to the District its portion of the taxes collected. Second-half real property
tax payments collected by the county by June 30, 2001, are available to finance fiscal year 2001
operations. The amount available to be advanced can vary based on the date the tax bills are sent.

Accrued property taxes receivable represent delinguent taxes outstanding, the late
setflement of personal property taxes, and real property, tangible personal property and public
utility taxes which became measurable as of June 30, 2001, and for which there is an enforceable

legal claim. Although total property tax collections for the next fiscal year are measurable, only
the amount available as an advance at June 30 is intended to finance current year operations, The

receivable is therefore offset by a credit to deferred revenue for that portion not intended to
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finance current year operations. The amount available as an advance at June 30, 2001
was$1,790,300 and is recognized as revenue, Of the total amount available at June 30, 2001,
51,669,502 was available to the general fund, $84,637 was available to the debt service fund, and
536,161 was available to the permanent improvement fund.

NOTE 8 - RECEIVABLES

Receivables at June 30, 2001 consisted of taxes, accounts receivable (billings for user
charged services), interfund loans, and intergovernmental granis and entitlements. All receivables
are considered collectible in full due to the ability to foreclose for the nonpayment of taxes, the
slable condition of State programs and the current year guarantee of Federal funds. A summary
of the intergovernmental receivables by fund follows:

General Fund $3,314, 487

Spacial Revonus
Career [avel cpmoent 5,007
Tigle I 142
Title ViE 2040, 303
Wocational Education L1t
Title | &, 795
Tigle VI 2 Dbk
Freschool Handicapped 5,114
rug Free Education LHT
Title VIR 13, 98
Miscellanecus Federal Grants 10,250

Deot Service

Bond Fetirement 139, 48
Capital Prejects
Parmanent |mprovensnts 15@, 000
Enterprise
Food Saryice 53,71
Uniform Scheal Supplies 512
Eecreation 518
Tatal %3937, 347
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NOTE 9 -CAPITAL ASSETS

The following is a summary of changes in the District's capital assets at June 30, 2001:

Balance Balance
&30 Addli £iong beductions 30001
Govornmental Activities
Lard and 1mprovements %2, 685,185 ¥ - $ - 53,885, 185
Buildings and [mprovemsnts 30, 756 I3p EQT 44 (132,17 51,520,598
Furni ture & Equipeant X, 250, 83% 158,597 - IR, 158
Vahiclen X, 130,00 107, et [1E3, 6540 3074, BLH
Cormptruction In Progress, Vehicles - 25, 510 - 285,310
Censtrueticn In Progress, Buildings 60T T
Totals st Cost 39, 409, 073 1, 15@ 540 (265, B41Y L0, 352, T2
Loss Accumulated Depreciation
Bulldings and Improvemsnts (1%, 59 4630 (719,302} 13€,17a (20,036,550}
Furniture E Equipment 2,101, 110) [ 198,450 . (2,299, 400
vehicies (2,180,511 (I9E.01%) 153,597 (2,219,731)
fotal Accumulated Depreciation (2%, 780 488 1,910 Eid)* 206 17% (s 556, 131)
Goverrmantal Activities
Capital Assats, Hat MSSTLEN LI MB.6T)  B1.J36.59
Business-type Activities
Furni ture and Eguipment 205 054 £ - £ - 5205, 084
Less Accumulated Depreciation (036, 1689 {89373 : (143,08%)
Business-typs Activities
Capital Assets, Mer 350,890 $(8,937) - LI BLRG
* Depreciation was chorged to governmental functiors as fol Lows:
Iretruct ion RI95 434
Fuplls 21, 560G
Imgtructional Staff 12,781
Administration 5,051
Fiscal 3.3
Busirees 9,405
Operation and MalnTenance 115,005
Fupil Transportation 78,507
Central 77,
Community Sarvices 270, w el
Extracurricular activities — o
Total Depreciation Exparsa 2111 11

The voters of the District authorized financing for the construction of the new public
library building, furnishing and equipping that building and improving its site (the "Library
Project™). The Library Project was completed in 1991 and, upon its completion, the District
leased the Library Project assets to the Cuyahoga County Public Library as the Bedford Branch
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of that county-wide library system. The lease term extends for 20 years rent free, with an
automatic 20 year extension. During the extension period, the lease may be terminated without
cause by either party. Included in the District's governmental activities capital assets at June 30,
2001 is 52,062,414 related to the Library Project assets. At June 30, 2001, in addition to
$225,310 in bus bodies under construction, planned capital asset acquisition for the summer and
fall included approximately 350,000 in playground equipment and approximately $500,000 in
modular classroom unils,

NOTE 10 - RISK MANAGEMENT

A. Property and Liability

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees and natural disasters. During
fiscal year 2001, the District contracted for property and general liability insurance, and boiler
and machinery coverage through the 32-member Greater Cleveland Schools Council Group
Purchasing Consortium. The carrier for District property insurance is Crum and Forster Insurance
Company, and for boiler and machinery is Travelers Insurance. Aggregate property coverage is
approximately $83 million with a $1,000 deductible. Apgregate boiler and machinery coverage
is approximately $30 million with a $1,({x) deductible. The policy is renewable on July 1, 2002
for each coverage, There have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage from last year.
Casualty and fleet insurance coverage was provided by Coregis Insurance Company, with a
combined single limit of $2 million and $250 comprehensive and $500 collision deductibles. The
renewal date is July 1, 2001. Education and umbrella liability insurance coverage was provided
by Mationwide Insurance, with a combined single limit of $7 million each occurrence and
combined aggregate of $10 million. The policies are renewable on February 1, 2002. The
Treasurer is covered by a $100,000 surety bond and the Superintendent, Board of Education
President, and Business Manager are covered by $166,000 position bonds. Settled claims have
not exceaded commercial coverage in any of the past three years,

B. Workers Compensation

For fiscal year 2001, the District participated in the Ohio School Boards Association
Workers' Compensation Group Rating Program ("GRP"), an insurance purchasing pool. The
GRP's business and affairs are conducted by a three member Board of Directors consisting of the

President, the President-Elect and the Immediate Past President of the Ohio School Boards
Association ("OSBA"). The Executive Director of the OSBA, or his designee, serves as
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coordinator of the program. Each year, the participating school districts pay an enrollment fee
to the GRP to cover the costs of administering the program.

The intent of the GRP is to achieve the benefit of a reduced premium for the District by
virtue of its grouping and representation with other participants in the GRP. The workers'
compensation experience of the participating school disiricts is calculated as one experience and
a common premium rate is applied to all school districts in the GRP. Each participant pays its
workers' compensation premium to the State based on the rate for the GRP rather than its
individual rate. Total savings are then calculated and each participant’s individual performance
i5 compared to the overall savings of the GRP. A participant will then either receive money from
or be required to contribute to the "equity pooling fund". This "equity pooling” arrangement
insures that each participant shares equally in the overall performance of the GRP. Participation
in the GRP is limited to school districts that can meet the GRP's selection criteria. The firm of
Gates McDonald & Company provides administrative, cost control and actuarial services to the
GRP.

C. Employee Medical Benefits

The District has elected to provide employee dental and prescription drug benefits to full
time employees through a self-insured program, while hospitalization and medical benefits are
provided with a fully-insured program. Full time is defined as the full 186 day academic year,
or 1,700 hours for non-certificated employees. Employees working shorter calendars pay a
prorated portion of the health care premiums. The District maintains a self-insurance internal
service fund to account for and finance its uninsured risk of loss in the drug and dental programs.
Dental claims are limited to $2,500 per covered individual per year, with a lifetime limit of
%1,000 on orthodontia. There is no limitation on prescription drug benefits as this type of
coverage 15 not subject to catastrophic loss. A third party administrator, Medical Mutual of Ohio,
reviews and pays all claims. The District pays the following monthly into the self-funded benefits
fund, which represents the entire premium required: dental - $25.70 (single), $77.07 (family);
drug - $59.90 (single), $164.70 (family). These premiums are paid by the fund that pays the
salary for the employee and 15 based on historical cost information.

The claims liability of $75,403 reported in the fund at June 30, 2001 is based on the
requirements of GASB Statement No. 10 Accounting and Financial Reporting for Risk Financing
and Related Insurance Isswes, which requires that a liability for unpaid claims cost, including
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estimates of cost relating to incurred but not reported claims, be reported. Changes in the fund's
claims liability amount in fiscal 2000 and 2001 were as follows:

Balence Bt
Beginning of CurFent Claim Balance at
Year Yeur Clafims Payments Erd of Year
2000 52, 633 795,129 2,916 54, Bik
2001 $44, BLG B3], 504 921,027 75,403

The balance available in the fund to pay the cost of future claims was $918,001 and
$913,746 at June 30, 2001 and 2000 respectively.

NOTE 11 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS

The employees of the District are covered by either the School Employees Retirement
System of Ohio ("SERS") or the State Teachers Retirement System of Ohio ("STRS"). The State
of Ohio accounts for the activities of these retirement systems and the amounts of the funds are
not reflected in the accompanying financial statements. Under both SERS and STRS, a member
15 eligible for retirement when the member reaches age 60 and has five or more years of service
credit; reaches age 55 and has 25 years or more of service credit; or has 30 or more years of
service credit at any age.

A. School Employees Retirement System

All employees of the District performing duties that do not require a certificate issued by
the Ohio Department of Education are required to contribute to SERS, a cost-shaning multiple
employer defined benefit pension plan. SERS provides retirement and disability benefits, annual
cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits o plan members and beneficiaries. Authority o
establish and amend benefits is provided by State statute per Chapter 3309 of the Ohio Revised
Code. SERS issues a publicly available, stand-alone financial report that includes financial
statements and required supplementary information. That report may be obtained by writing to
the School Employees Retirement System, 300 East Broad Street Suite 100, Columbus, Ohio
43215. Plan members are reguired to contribute 9 percent of their annual covered salary and the
District is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. The current District rate is 14
percent of annual covered payroll. A portion of the Distnict’s contribution is used 1o fund pension
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obligations with the remainder being used to fund health care benefits. Of the 14 percent District
portion, 5.5 percent was the portion used to fund pension obligations. For certain employees, the
District pays the 9 percent member conftribution as an employee benefit. The contribution
requirements of plan members and employers are established and may be amended, up to statutory
maximum amounts, by the SERS Retirement Board. The District's contributions to SERS for the
fiscal years ended June 30, 2001, 2000, and 1999 were $997,872, $995,070, and 51,018,860
respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year.,

B. State Teachers Retirement System

All full-time certified District employees participate in STRS, a cost-sharing multiple
employer public employee retirement system administered by the State Teachers Retirement
Board. STRS provides basic retirement benefits, disability, survivor, and health care benefits
based on eligible service credit to members and beneficiaries. Benefits are established by Chaper
3307 of the Ohio Revised Code. STRS issues a publicly available financial report that includes
financial statements and required supplementary information. The report may be oblained by
writing to the State Teachers Retirement System, 275 East Broad Street, Columbus, Ohio 43215-
3771,

Plan members were required to contribute 9.3 percent of their annual covered salary and
the Dastrict 18 required to contribute 14 percent, an actuanally determined mate, Of the |4 percent
District portion, 6.0 percent was the portion used to fund pension obligations. For certain
employees, the District pays the 9.3 percent member contribution as an employee benefit,
Contribution rates are established by STRS, upon recommendation of its consulting actuary, not
to exceed stautory maximum rates of 10 percent for members and 14 percent for employers. The
District's contributions to STRS for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2001, 2000, and 1999 were

52,166,800, $2,227,019, and §2,235,024 respectively, equal to the required contributions for each
year,

C_ Ell I ! E'l i! ;'l l

Effective July 1, 1991, all employees and members of the Board of Education not
otherwise covered by the School Employees Retirement System or the State Teachers Refirement
System are required to choose either Social Security or the School Employees Retirement
System/State Teachers Retirement System. In 2001, all employees and three members of the
Board were covered by STRS or SERS, while two Board members opted for Social Security.
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NOTE 12 - POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

The District provides comprehensive health care benefits to retired teachers and their
dependents through STRS, and to retired non-certificated employees and their dependents through
SERS. Benefits include hospitalization, physicians' fees, prescription drugs and reimbursement
of monthly Medicare premiums. Benefit provisions and the obligation to contribute are
established by the systems based on authority granted by State statute, Both systems are funded
On a pay-as-you-go hasis,

All STRS benefit recipients and sponsored dependents are eligible for health care coverage.
The STRS Board has statutory authorily over how much, if any, of the health care costs will be
absorbed by STRS. Most benefit recipients pay a portion of health care costs in the form of a
monthly premium. By Ohio Law, the cost of coverage paid from STRS funds is included in the
employer contribution rate, currently 14 percent of covered payroll. The STRS Board allocated
employer contributions equal to 8.0 percent of covered payroll to the Health Care Reserve Fund
for which payments for health care benefits are paid. For the District, this amount equaled
$1,280,261. The balance in the Health Care Reserve Fund was $3.419 billion at June 30, 2000
(the latest available information). For the year ended June 30, 2000, net health care costs paid by
STRS were 283,137,000 and STRS had 99,011 eligible benefit recipients.

For SERS, coverage is made available to service retirees with ten or more years of
qualifying service credit, and to disability and survivor benefit recipients. Members retiring on
or after August 1, 1989, with less than twenty-five years of service credit must pay a portion of
their premium for health care. The portion is based on years of service up o a maximum of 75
percent of the premium. Employer contributions to fund health care benefits were 8.45 percent
of covered payroll, In addition, SERS levies a surcharge to fund health care benefits equal to 14
percent of the difference between a minimum pay and the member's pay, pro-rated for the partial
service credit. For fiscal year 2001, the minimum pay was $12,400. The surcharge, added to
the allocated portion of the 14 percent employer contribution rate, provides for maintenance of
the asset target level for the health care fund. For the District, the amount contributed o fund
health care benefits including the surcharge, equaled $505,061 for the 2001 fiscal year.

The surcharge, added to the unallocated portion of the 14 percent employer contribution
rate, provides for maintenance of the asset target level for the health care fund. The target level
for the health care reserve is 150 percent of annual health care expenses. Expenses for health care
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2000 (the latest available information), were $140.7 million and
the target level was $211 million. At June 30, 2000 SERS had net assets available for payment



BEDFORD CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
JUNE 30, 2001

{Mote 12 continued)

of health care benefits of $252 million. SERS has approximately 38 ({00 participants currently
receiving health care benefits.

NOTE 13 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

The changes in the District's long-term obligations during the year ended June 30, 2001
consist of the following:

Balance Balance Due Within
July 1, 2000 Additfons Reductions Jume 30, 2001 One Year

Governmental activities

Gareral Obllgation Bonds £11,615,000 L C3480,000) $11,135,000 3535, 000
Energy Conservation Bonds 1, a0, 000 - (270, 000 ) B10,000 285, 000
Compersated Absences 2, 472 343 - (171, 968 2,661 1%

SIS 0F.30 5 - (RTS1060) 316,405,094 T

Busirsss-type Activities

Compensated Absences 41,91 5L BO7 5 - BLT, T3 3

The District's voted legal deblt margin for general obligation bonds was $62,756,656 with
an unvoted legal debt margin of $580,969 and an unvoted energy conservation legal debt margin
of §6,443,722 at June 30, 2001. General obligation bonds will be paid from property taxes.
Energy conservation bonds and compensated absences will be paid from the general fund.
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A. Bonds Outstanding

The following is a schedule of the District's bonds outstanding at June 30, 2001:

Outstanding Frincipal Amount
Interast Jasus  Meturity Begirning Mt Redemptions Outstanding
PuUrpase EaLe Date Date of Tear _lsswes  During Teer _End of Year
Facilities
Acouisition 5.250 Feb 1996 Dec 205 5240, 000 5 - $1%, 000 5275, 00D
Library
Corstruction 5,728  Jun 1993 Dec 2011 1,265, 000 = &0, 000 1,205, 000
Facilities
Reravalion 5.853 Jun 1993 Des 2093 90,170,000 - L%, OOD P, 0%, 00D
Energy
Corservot ion
[H.B. 2847 5087 Jun TREE Jun 2003 645, 000 - 205 , 00D s, 0D
Enargy
Comzarvat o
[H.BE. 2641 L 626  Feb 1996 Jun 2008 435, D) = &5 000 XT0, 600
:1;,&95@:11 § = IETSGIMI} i‘r'1|9|!|5ll.'l'.'l[}
B. Future Debt Reguirements

The District's future annual debt service requirements for bonded debt are as follows:
—— Gerersl Obl|gstion Ronds

Tesr
Ending
dune 30 Eciocipal  lnokefest —letal
2002 $535,000  $435,745 81,170,745
2003 S&5 000 &07 423 1,162, 423
2004 #45 , 000 575,720 1,220,720
2005 710,000 540, 135 1,250,135
2004 775,000 500,410 1,275,410
2007 850, 000 456, 141 1,306, 151
2008 &30, 000 408,770 1,334 770
2009 1,070,000 R a8 1,359, 259
010 1,095,000 73,638 1,%7E,a%8
2011 1,185,000 212,538 1,397,588
2012 1,170,000 138,094 1,309,094
2013 1,180,000 45 B0& 1,245, B06
2014 435,000 15, 488 450, 488
2015 15,000 1,478 14,575
Fail ) 15,000 788 15,788
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Emer Consarvat | on
Yoar

Ending

—dune 30 Erincipsl IntErest ~detal
2002 =485, 000 S0, TTE $325,Tr2
2003 205,000 26, 049 321,047
2004 75,000 10,478 BS,ATE
2005 75, 000 T, 2m m2, 2am
@006 __ 80,009 —3. 760 — 5. 760

= AL A - FLiT - T

C. Compensated Absences

The criteria for determining vacation and sick leave benefits are derived from negotiated
agreements and State laws. Non-certificated employees earn ten to twenty days of vacation per
year, depending upon length of service. Accumulated unused vacation time is paid to classified
employees upon termination of employment. Teachers do not earn vacation time,

Each employee earns sick leave at the rate of one and one-fourth days per month, Sick
leave may be accumulated to a maximum of 220 days (certificated employees), 230 days (non-
certificated employees) and 265 days (administrators), Upon retirement or termination after 25
years of service, payment is made for 30 days plus 1/10th of the days remaining up to a maximum
of 47.5 days (certificated employees), or one-fourth of the days (non-certificated employees), or
33.5 days {(admimistrators). For purposes of retirement, the employee receiving such payment
must meet the eligibility requirement provisions set by STRS or SERS,

NOTE 14 - INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS

Short term interfund loans at June 30, 2001 are as follows:
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Fund Receivebie Fayable
G=neral BS0F, &00
Specinl Reverus
Public School Support 52, 400
Career Develogment 12,000
Title 11 5.000
Title W1 B 210,000
Vocational Educaticn [-1UM [ e
Title [ 150,000
Title Wi 30,000
Brug Fres Education 25,000
Preschool Handicapped 10,000
Title WIR 25,000
Wiscel laness Federal Grang 20,000 £559, 400
Enterprise
Food Service 100,000
Adule Communiry Education 114, oo
Iﬁﬂl-i[b:l Iﬁ-ﬁﬂ'l-f.[!'l:l

For fiscal year 2001, the general fund reported transfers out of $385,080 and other
governmental funds and enterprise funds reported transfers in of $277,120 and $107,960
respectively. The transfers with other governmental funds primarily relate to the timing of grant
receipts of special revenue funds and the funding of reserves for capital expenditures. The
transfers with enterprise funds primarily relate to the operating loss of the food service fund.

NOTE 15 - CONTINGENCIES

A, Grants

The District received financial assistance from federal and state agencies in the form of
granis, The disbursement of funds received under these programs generally requires compliance
with terms and conditions specified in the grant agreements and is subject to audit by the grantor
agencies. Any disallowed claims resulting from such audits could become a liability of the general
fund or other applicable funds. However, in the opinion of management, any such disallowed
claims will not have a material adverse effect on the overall financial position of the District at
Tune 30, 2001.

B. Litigation

As of June 30, 2001, the District was a party to various legal proceedings, seeking
damages or injunctive relief arising in the ordinary course of business. The ultimate disposition
of these proceedings is not presently determinable. The District carries adeguate insurance
coverage for most risks including property damage and personal liability and the District's
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{MNote 15 continued)

management does not believe that any potential claims not covered by such insurance would have
a material effect on the financial condition of the District.

C. School Finance

As of June 30, 2001, there were pending several challenges to real estate market valuation
filed by property owners within the District. [If successful, these challenges will result in a
decrease of real property market valuation and thercfore real estate property tax revenue received
by the District. However, in the opinion of management, the disposition of all valuation
challenges is not expected in the aggregate to have a material adverse effect on the financial
position of the District.

NOTE 16 - STATE SCHOOL FUNDING DECISION

On September 6, 2001, the Ohio Supreme Court 15sued its latest opinion regarding the
State's school funding plan. The decision identified aspects of the current plan that require
modification if the plan is to be considered constitutional, including:

1.) A change in the school districts that are used as the basis for determining the base cost
support amount. Any change in the amount of funds distributed to school districts as a result of
this change must be retroactive to July 1, 2001, although a time line for distribution is not

specified.

2.) Fully funding parity aid no later than the beginning of fiscal year 2004 rather than
fiscal year 2006.

The Supreme Court relinguished jurisdiction over the case based on anticipated compliance
with its order. In general, it is expected that the decision would resull in an increase in State
funding for most Ohio school districts. However, as of October 26, 2001, the Ohio General
Assembly was still analyzing the impact this Supreme Court decision will have on funding for
individual school districts On November 2, 2001, the court granted this motion for
reconsideration, The Court may reexamine and redetermine any issue upon such reconsideration.
Further, the State of Ohio, in a motion filed September 17, 2001, asked the Court 1o reconsider
and clarify the parts of the decision changing the school districts that are used as the basis for
determining the base cost support amount and the requirement that changes be made retroactive
to July 1, 2001. On November 2, 2001, the Court granted this motion for reconsideration. The
Court may reexamine and redetermine any issue upon such reconisderation. As of the dale of
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these financial statements, the District 15 unable to determine what effect, if any, this decision and
the reconsideration will have on its future State funding and on 1ts financial opérations.

NOTE 17 - STATUTORY RESERVES

Substitute House Bill 412, as amended, required the District to "set aside” certain
percentages of defined revenues for (1) textbooks and instructional material purchases, (2) capital
and maintenance expenditures and (3) to establish a budget reserve. It also required five year
budget projections, amended the Fiscal Walch and Fiscal Emergency Statutes, created a State
School District Solvency Fund and amended "spending reserve” provisions. During the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2001, the reserve activity (cash-basis) was as follows:

Eoucational Capital Budget

Harerials M | ERrEnicd Stabilfzation

Reseri Feserye Rogarsy Todal
S5et-Aside as aof
June 50, 2000 £53, 587 (853,201 170,211 £170, 857
Current Year Set-aside

Aegul rement 37,643 839,643 b 1,679, 285

Gualifying Disbursements (658 T34 (1,391 837} (170, 2113 (2,250,384

Tatal Set-aaids for

Fistiire Fiseal Yesrs ;E,m M 5 - !“E!Eii

Sot-aside Reserve Balsnce
as of June 30, 2001 M ¥ - g - 204, TR

The District had qualifying disbursements during the fiscal year that reduced the capital
maintenance reserve set-aside amounts below zero. This amount may be carried forward to reduce
future fiscal year requirements. Amounts not spent by year-end or offset by similarly restricted
resources received during the year must be held in cash at year-end and carmed forward to be used
for the same purposes in future years. Effective April 10, 2001, Am, Sub. Senate Bill 345
amended O.R.C. Section 5705.29, effectively eliminating the requirement for the District o
establish and maintain a budget stabilization reserve. During 2001, the District expended the
budget stabilization reserve amount pursuant to this State statue and, as a result, no budget reserve
exists at June 30, 2001,
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NOTE 18 - RESTRICTED ASSETS

The following table represents the detail of restricted assets:

Equity in Pocled Caskh and Cash Equivalents 2,356, 1
Irvestment 225, 000
Recefivables:
Taxes 2,791 459
Accounts 2,568
[nTergoverrmantal — &7 857
Restricted Assets &, 01&, 858
Less Liabilities Payable from
Restricted Assots 3,323 908
Restricted Met Azssts 52, E91,950

NOTE 19 - ELECTRIC UTILITY DEREGULATION

The State Legislature has effected the deregulation of electric public utilities, Electric
deregulation took place January 1, 2001. Under prior law, an electric company's taxable
production equipment was assessed at 100% of true value, while all of its other taxable property
was assessed at B8 % of true value, This legislation provides for the assessment rate for the taxable
transmission and distribution property of an electric company to remain at 88% of true value,
while all other taxable property of the electric company 18 now assessed at 23 % of true value.

To help offset loss of revenue, for the purpose of raising revenue for public education and
statc and local government operations, an excise tax was levied and imposed on electric
distribution companies for all electricity distributed by such company beginming with the
measurement period that includes May 1, 2001, at the following rates per kilowatt hour (kWh)
of electricity distributed in a thirty-day period by the company through a "meter of an end user
in this state". Thirty-seven percent of the kWh tax is to be collected at the state level for
distribution to school districts and other local governments for property tax replacement funds.
The Department of Education will pay to each school district their share of school distnct property
tax replacement funds. The Department of Education will report to each school district the
apportionment of the payments among the school district's funds based on the certifications from
the tax commissioner

As of the date of these financial statements, the District is unable to determine what effect,
if any, this decision will have on it5 financial operations.
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NOTE 20 - SUBSEQUENT EVENT

On November 21, 2001, the District issued $9,096,300 of Various Purpose Improvement
Refunding Bonds { the "Bonds™) for the purpose of advance refunding the District's Library
Construction Bonds and Facilities Renovation Bonds (together the "Refunded Bonds"). The Bonds
carry interest rates ranging from 4 percent to 5 percent with a final maturity date of December 1,
2013, Proceeds from the Bonds are to be deposited in an escrow account for the payment of (i)
interest on the Refunded Bonds when due on each June 1 and December 1 from December 1, 2001
through December 1, 2003, and (ii) the principal of and redemption premium on all of the
Refunded Bonds upon their redemption on December 1, 2003, as provided in the Escrow
Agreement, The Authorizing Legislation for the Bonds and the Escrow Agreement provide for
the irrevocable call for optional redemption of all of the Refunded bonds on December 1, 2003
at a redemption price equal to 101 percent of the principal amount redeemed.
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Combining Statements - Non-major Funds
N {or Special R Fund

Special revenue funds are established o account for revenues from specific sources which
legally, or otherwise, are restricted to expenditures for specific purposes. A description of the
District"s non-major special revenue funds follows:

The Public School Support Fund accounts for proceeds of local fund raising at the
building level,

The Other Grant Fund accounts for proceeds of specific revenue sources, except for state
and federal grants that are legally restricted to expenditure for specific purposes.

The Venture Capital Fund accounts for state grant funds awarded to the District and to
schools within the District for the purpose of cumculum improvement.

The District Managed Student Activities Fund accounts for all costs {excluding
supplemental coaching and advising contract) of the adult-led student activities.

The Auxiliary Services Fund accounts for educational programs run by the District with
state funds on behalf of four non-public schools within the boundaries of the District,

The Disadvantaged Pupil Program Fund accounts for funds which are provided for the
improvement of the educational and cultural status of disadvantaged pupils.

The Career Development Fund accounts for moneys received and expended in
conjunction with Vocational Education Career Development projects funded by the State of Ohio,

The Teacher Development Fund accounts for state funds spent on teacher in-service and
training.

The Educational Mobility Assistance Program Fund accounts for state funds provided
to assist in the reduction of racial isolation within a school district.

The Education Management Information Services Fund accounts for state funds
provided for costs associated with the requirements of the management information system,

The Data Communications Fund accounts for state funds provided for Ohio Educational
Computer Network Connections.

The Disadvantaged Pupil Impact Aid Fund accounts for moneys received by the District
from the State Foundation Program for disadvantaged pupil impact aid.

The SchoolNet Professional Development Fund accounts for a limited number of
professional development subsidy grants,

The Ohio Reads Fund accounts for moneys received by the District from the Stale
intended to improve reading outcomes.



Combining Statements - Non-major Funds
{continued)
The Summer School Subsidy Fund accounts for moneys provided by the State 1o
reimburse the District for the costs of remedial summer school.

The Vocational Education Enhancement Fund accounts for moneys provided by the
State to enhance vocational educational and to replace vocational educational equipment.

The Extended Learning Opportunity Fund accounts for moneys provided by the state
to promote extended learning opportunities for students,

The Miscellaneous State Grants Fund accounts for miscellaneous state grants not
otherwise designated.

The Title I1 Fund accounts for federal funds used to strengthen education through the
purchase of special equipment and materials.

The Title VIB Fund accounts for federal funds used to help provide full educational
opportunities to handicapped children.

The Yocational Education Fund accounis for federal funds for cooperating development
of vocational education programs.

The Title 1 Fund accounts for federal funds used to meet the needs of educationally
deprived chaldren.

The Title VI Fund accounts for federal funds given to the state used to meet state
determined educational needs.

The Drug Free Education Fund accounts for federal funds which support drug abuse
education and prevention programs.

The Preschool Handicapped Fund accounts for federal funds which support the
improvement and expansion of services for handicapped children ages three through five.

The Goals 2000 Fund accounts for federal funds which support a broad range of
educational improvement goals.

The Title VIR Fund accounts for federal funds used to hire additional classroom teachers
in grades one through three,

The Miscellaneous Federal Grants Fund accounts for miscellaneous federal grants not
otherwise designated.

N :or Capital Proiects Fund
Capital projects funds account for financial resources used for the acquisition or

construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by proprietary funds and trust
funds). A description of the District's non-major capital projects funds follows:
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Combining Statements - Non-major Funds
(continued)
The Building Fund accounts for proceeds from the sale of bonded debt for construction
purposes, and for all capital acquisitions made with the proceeds.

The Capital Replacement Fund accounts for monies transferred from the general fund
for the purpose of vehicle replacement.

The Vocational Equipment Fund accounts for reimbursements from the state and
transfers from the General Fund intended to be used for the purchase of vocational education
equipment,

The SchoolNet Fund accounts for moneys received from the State of Ohio for wiring of
classrooms, computer workstations and related technologies.

The Power Up Technology Fund accounts for State grant money spent on electrical
upgrades. This grant has a local matching requirement which may be transferred to and spent
from this fund.

Non-major Enterprise Funds
Enterprise funds are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business

enterprises where the intent of the District is that the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of
providing goods or services be financed or recovered primarily through user charges, or where
the District has decided that the periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred
and/or net income is appropriate for management control and accountability, A description of the
District’'s non-major enterprise funds follows:

The Summer School Fund accounts for the operation of the summer school program.

The Adult and Commumnity Education Fund accounts for the operation of the Adult High
School and the Adult and Community Education program.

The Recreation Fund accounts for the operation of the swimming pool when it serves the
community for open swim, lessons, youth competition, and facility rentals,

Internal Service Funds
Internal service funds account for the financing of goods or services provided by one fund
of the District to other funds of the District on a2 cost-reimbursement basis.

The Warehouse Fund accounts for the purchase of bulk supplies, which in turm will be
re-purchased by the operations of the many separate funds of the District.

The Self-funded Benefits Fund accounts for the transactions of the District’s self-funded
dental and prescription drug benefits programs.

The Computer Network Fund accounts for amounts sent to the District by the State of

Ohio to assist with the costs of belonging to a computer consortium class "A" Department of
Education compuler network site.
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Bedford City School District

Combining Balance Shesl
Governmental Funds
June 30, 2001
Hon-major Mon-rmajor Total
Special Capital Mon-major
Revenue Projects. Governmental
Funds Funds Funds
hssets

Equity in Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents 786,603 $251.589 1,048,072
Receivablas:

Accounts 5,745 - 5,745

Intergovernmental 278,385 - 278, 365

Total Assets $1,050 613 §251 588 $1.302 182
Liabilities, and Fund Balances

Liabilities:

Accounts Payabla $48 064 $- §48,064

Acciued Wages and Bensfits 93 140 . 29,140

Interfund Loans Payable 555 400 - 559,400

Dua fo Cther Govemmants 30, BE8 - 30,969

Defarred Revanus - Intergovernmental 129,839 261 130,200

Total Liabilites 867,512 261 867,773

Fund Balances:

Resarvad for Encumbrances 164 65T 21,03 175,688

Unreserved - Undesignated 28, 444 230,277 258,721

Tatal Fund Balances 183,11 251,308 434,409
Total Liabilities and
Fund Balances gign_,ﬁu 1,568 51,302 182
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Bedford City School District
Combining Staterment of Revenues, Expandiures snd Changes in Fund Balsnces
Mon-major Govemmental Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007

Revenues
Eamings on Invastments
Intergovarnmantal
Exiracumcular Activities
Miscellanaous

Total Revenuas

Expenditures
Courrent

Insiruction

Support Senvicas:
Pupils
Instructional Staft
Administration
Business
Cparation and Maintenanca of Plant
Ceniral

Community Services

Extracurricular Activities

Total Expenditures

{Deficiency) of Revenues
{Under} Expendiures

Other Financing Sources
Cperating Transfers |n

Total Other Financing Saurces

Met Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances - Beginning of Yaar

Fund Baiances - End of Year

Mon-major  MNon-major Tatal
Special Capital Mon-majar
Fewenue Projects Governmental

_Funds _ Funds Funds

54,028 356819 340,647
1,892 087 238,034 1,928, 131
238,821 - 236,821
50,104 - B0, 109
1,983 085 272,853 2,255,708
1,487 567 - 1,487 567
27,774 - 27,774
148,552 1,475 148,027
5,840 - 5,840

4 385 - 4 385

- 493 437 493 437
12,870 - 12,870
EaT TET - 537, THT
201,243 - 201,243
24238198 454 12 2,818,730
{440, TE) {222 250) {663, 022)
117,004 166,116 277,120
111,004 166,116 2T 120
(329,759} (58,143) [J8E.502)
__ 612860 307,451 820,311
$183,101 §251,308 $434 409

T T=



Bedford City School District

Combining Balsnce Shest
Non-major Spacial Revenus Funds
June 30, 2001
Destrict
Publia Managed
Schoal Cther Vanture Studant Auxiliary
Suppait  Grant Capital Adivities Sarvices
Assols
Equity in Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents 584,107 58,651 516,350 48,807 $138,281
Recervables:
Accounts 20T - - 3,674 -
Infergovennmeantal = = - - -
Total Assets §86,178 $B.651 5163539 $53.581 5138281
Liabilities and Fund Balances
Liabllit|es:
Accounts Fayable Ea29 286 - 2121 $18,818
Accrued Wages and Bensafits - = . - 22,142
Interfund Loans Payable 2,400 - - - =
Due to Other Govarnments 2,788 88 J84 a10 16,303
Defarrad Revenue - Intergovarnmental . = 18511 - 22 843
Total Liabilities 5,905 372 15,895 FICER] 80,206
Fund Balance [Defleit);
Fesarved for Emcumbrances 8,972 2,478 A4 22 007 BB,075
Unreserved - Undesignated {Deficit) 71,211 5801 - 28,643 -
Total Fund Balance {Deficit] 80,183 8,279 464 Boeso 5B,075
Total Liabilities and Fund
Balances $86,178 $8.851 $16.356 353,581 5138261




Education

Disadvantaged Managament SchoolMat Vocational
Pupil Calsel Teachar Infarrmation Cata Professional Cihio Education
__Program Development Development Servicas Communications  Developmeant Reads Enhancement
2605 26 802 513,786 27 341 512,000 2,000 34| 5425
- 5,007 - - . = = -
$305 $12,000 _  $13,785 527,341 $12000 $2,000 511 £425
g - - 5 - §- 5- £1,000 5 - 516
- 1,124 = 2 5 . = 3
- 12,000 - - - - = -
- - 11,224 - T E43 = e = .
- 13,124 11.224 - ¥ E4d 1,000 " 15
- - 2541 - 4 36T 1,000 - 410
BOS 1,124) - 7,341 - - 11 "
BOS 1,124) 2541 _f__?_ ﬁ___[ ; 4 357 1,000 1 410
§805 §12.000 $13,765 52T 341 $1 2,000 $2,000 $11 §425

=18-
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MNon-major Spacis’ Revanus Funds {continued)

Assels

Equity in Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents

Recsivables:
Accounts
Intergovernmantal

Total Assets

Liabilitics and Fund Balances
Liabilitias
Accounts Payable
Accrued Wapges and Benefits
Interfund Loans Payable
Due ta Other Govammeants
Daferred Revenue - Intergovernmental
Total Liabilities

Fund Balance (Defelt):
[Reservad far Encumbrances
Unreserved - Undesignated (Deficit)
Toial Fund Balance [ Deficit)

Tatal Liabilities and Fund
Balances

Bedford City Sehoal District
Combining Balsnce Sheaf

Jeme 30, 2000

Extended Miscallanaous

Learning State Vocational
Cppartunity Granis Title 11 ___Tithe V1B __ Education
$35,900 532 62T 317,164 524,828 $£28,553
- - 162 200,303 33,803
£35 900 $32627 £17,328 $225220  §62.846
5 - $2.474 % - 320,237 $2,284
- - . . 1,080
& - 5,000 210,000 0,000
- BR . 10,532

35 352 3684 10860 - =

6,352 8258 15,860 230,237 73,808
3,548 28,371 1,488 3,887 5,240
: = . (B,875) (17,000}
3,548 26371 1488 5008 (11,080
$38.500 532 63T 517,326 §225 229 $62 648




Total

Dirug Miscellanegus Man-major
Fraa Preschooal Soals Federal Special Revenue
Title | Tille Vi Education Handicapped 2000 Title VIR Grants Funds
$156.910 527,736 £2T. 048 £4 BER 822029 £11,002 $11,889 786,503
- - - - - = = 5.740
6747 2 264 487 5114 - 13,808 10,230 278,385

$163,707 $30,000 $28,333 510,000 $22,026 $25,000 $22,119 $1,050,613

E- 5 - L 3 - %- 5- i- 548 064
54 467 - - 6,665 % 3 13,632 5,140
180,000 30,000 25,000 10,000 . 25,000 20,000 553,400
3 . B g - . " 30,969
i - 2,883 s 18,829 - - 129,939
Zi4,467 30,000 27,883 16,685 18,829 25,000 33,632 857 512

gaa 7,262 450 505 3,200 - 746 154 B57
{51,758} (7,262) - (7,180 - - {12,258) 78 444
{50, 760) . 450 (6,685) 3.200 = (11513 183100

$183,707 $30,000 $28,333 510,000 $22 028 §25,000 527 118 $1.050,613

=A1=



Bedford City School District
Combining Slatement of Revenies, Expandifires
and Changs= in Fund Bafances
MNon-major Special Revenue Funds
For the Ascal Year Ended June 30, 2001

Drisirict
Public Managed
Echool Cither Venture Shiden Auxilary
Support  _ Grant _ _ Capital _ _Actiites _Services
Revenues
Earnings on Investments - §- g - £ - 4028
Intergovemmental - - g.489 . 417,585
Extracurricular Acthities 135,758 - - g7, 085 -
Mizzallanesus - 50, 108 - - -
Tolal Revenues 138,756 50,108 §.4849 87,085 421,613
Expenditures
Currant:
Instruction 109, 450 og 158 58,639 - -
Support Services:
Pupils - - - - =
Instructional Staff 16,1589 12,764 - - -
Administration = - * - =
Business 4,385 - - - -
Cantral & = = - -
Community Senvices = = - - 450 304
Extracurricular Activities 2,000 . - 169,243 -
Total Expenditures 131,804 111,546 £8.,633 188,243 450 304
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Crvar [Uinder) Expenditures 7. {61,837) (49,150} _ [102,178] (38,681}
COther Financing Sources
Diperating Transfers In - - az 84,500 -
Total Other Financing Sources - . a2 84,500 -
Het ehange in Fund Balance T.762 (B1.83T) (439 088) (7.BTE] {38,681}
Fund Balance (Deficit) - Beginning of Year 72421 70,116 45,532 58,328 b5 TEE
Fund Balance [Deficit) - End of Year $80 183 $8,279 5464 $50,650 §58,075




Ed

uEationd

Educatian

Cisadvantaged Mabilty Management Pupil
Pupil Carear Teachar Assistance  Information Impact Crata
Program Development Development  Program Services Aid Communications
$- 5 - 5 - 5 - £ - $- 5-
- 31,551 T.844 - 16,328 175,722 4 357
31,551 7 848 = 16,348 175,722 4 357
- 31,E21 . - 175,722 -
- 18,798 - . - -
- a1, 821 18,796 - - 175,722 =
# {270) (10948) - 16,348 - 4,357
- - 11,141 - - -
. . - 11,141 - - -
- {270) (10,948) 11,141 16,348 . 4,357
805 {B54] 13,485 {11,141) 10,893 - - i
$905 (§1,124) §2541 _ § - §27,341 $ - $4,357
{eontinued}




Bedford City School District
Combining Stalement of Rewenwes, Expandiures
and Changsas in Fund Balanoses
Mon-major Special Revenus Funds (confinuwed)
For the Fecal Yesr Ended June 30, 2007

SchoolMNet Surmmer Wocational Extended
Professional Cihia Bchoal Education Learning
Development _ Reads  Subsidy  Enhancement Oppariunity
Fevenues
Earnings on Investmenis §- % - ¥ - - % -
Intergovarnmental 4,000 T.739 B,3B5 30,000 16,346
Extracurricular Activities - n . i -
Misceflaneous 5 . = - -
Total Revenues 4 000 7,739 B,3B5 30,000 18, 346
Expenditures
Current:
Instruction 4,000 7.9ad B,385 20,500 12,600
Support Services,
Fupils - - 5 -
Instiuctional Staff - - - -
Administration 1,000 - . 2
Business = = . . .
Central = - - - -
Cammunity Services = . - - -
Extracurricadar Activities . - = - 5
Total Expendilures & 000 7,088 B 385 28,550 12,600
Excass |Deficiency) of Revenues
Crver {Under) Expenditures {1,000) (260) - 410 A 548
Other Financing Sources
Qperating Transfers IR - - - - -
Total Other Financing Sources - = - = -
Met change in Fund Balance {1,000 (250} . 410 3,548
Fund Balanse (Deficit) - Begmning of Year 2,000 261 = 2 i
Fund Balance (Deficit) - End of Year $1,000 11 § - 5410 §1.548




Miscallansaus Drug
Gtate Wocaticnal Fres Praschoal Goals
 Grants Title |1 Title VIB  Education Title | Title Vi Education  Handicapped 2000
5 - 5 - £ - 5 - 5- 5 - 5 - L § -
72,243 4 pe2 245,882 108,368 233,710 15,324 2655 36,583 26,171
72,243 4082 295892  10B388 233710 15324 28568 38583 28,171
138102 - 278,691 84 330 406, 368 10,817 B.OTE 11,323 -
" {120) 2 20,288 = 1,403 8,203 = -
3,660 24 67T - 14 148 - 10 8,430 24,023 22,871
5 - - 4 635 - - . - -
- - - 12,775 - E - . *
- - 39,185 - 26, T45 8,342 - o231 -
138,657 24 557 315.856 118,176 332,114 18,572 23,700 40,577 22,871
(67 414)  (18.575)  [19.964) (7.808) (08 404) (3.248)  {21054) {3.964) 3,200
a 50 5 i3 250 - =2
. 50 5 13 50 - 2z - Py
(67.414)  (19,525)  (19,950) [T.7TB5)  (07.444) (3.248)  (21,032) (3,804) 3,200
893,7ES 20,881 14,851 {3,285) 45 884 3244 21,482 2.681) -
$26,371 51,468 [55,008] ($11,0680) (550,760} § - 5450 i 6, 685) 53,200
(eantinued)
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Bedford City School District
Combining Slatermen! of Revenues, Expandifumes
and Changaes n Fund Balancas
Mon-major Specia! Revenue Funds (eerlinued)]
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007

Talal
Miscellanasous Han-majer
Federal Gpecial Revenus
CTitle VIR Grants Funds
Revenues
Earmings on Investments 5 - 5 - 54024
Intergovernmental 62 284 104,500 1,682 087
Ewtracurricular Activities - - 236,821
Mizcellansous - - 60,108
Tatal Revenues 62 284 104,500 1,983,055
Expenditures
Current:
Instruction 62,288 75,017 1,487,567
Support Sendces:
Fupils - - 27,774
Insiruchional Staff - - 14B,552
Administration - - 5,540
Business - - 4 385
Ceniral - a5 12,870
Community Services - - 037, TET
Exiracurricular Activitias - - 201,243
Tatal Expendituras 62,208 TH11Z2 2423818
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Creer (Undar) Expenditures - = 20,397 {440, 763)
Other Financing Sources
Cperating Transfers In - 4,23 111,004
Tatal Cther Financing Sources - 4 .20 111,004
Met change in Fund Balance - 33,628 (328,759)
Fund Balance |Deficit) - Beginning of Year - (45, 141) 512,860
Fund Balance [Deficit) - End of Year 5 - (511,513} 5183101




Bedford City School District

Combining Balance Sheasl
Nan-major Caplal Projects Funds
June 30, 2001
Total
jor

Capital Yocational Power Up  Capital Projects

Building Replacement Eguipmenl SchoclMel Technobegy Fufids

Assois

Equity In Fooled Cash and Cash Equivalents 526,112 $163,000 _ $42,165 §21,282 ¥ - 5251564

Total Assets and Othar Debits $25,112 $163,000 §42 165 §21.392 5 - §251,569

Liabilities and Fund Balances

Liabilitios:

Deferrad Revenue - Inlergovermmental 5 - 5 - i - 5261 _ § - 5261
Total Liabilities — T - 261 . 281

Fund Balances.
Resersed for Encumbrances - - - 21,031 - 21,031
Uniresersed - Lindesignated 253,112 163,000 42 165 - - 230,277
Tatal Fund Equity 25112 163,000 42 165 21,001 - 251,308

Total Liabilities and Fund

Balances _$25112 _ §183000  $42165  $31392 | § - $251,569




Bediford City School District
Comibining Statemant of Revenwes, Expandiires

and Changas in Fund Balances
Mon-mafor Capial Projects Funds
For the Fzcal Yesr Ended June 30, 20071
Tatal
Mon-major
Capital ‘Wacational Power Up  Capital Projects
Building  Replacement Equipment SchoolMet Technology Funds
Revenues
Earmings oh IAvestments 536,619 5 - £ - g - £ - 538,819
Irtergovernmernital - - 24 BA3 33,210 177,841 235,034
Tolal Revenues 28618 - 24 883 3,210 177,841 272,653
Expenditures
Currant
Suppar Servicas:
Instructional Staff - = - 1,475 - 1,475
Cxperation and Maintenance of Plant 313,301 - - - 180,138 463,437
Total Expenditures 213,34 - - 1,475 180,136 44 812
Excess [Deficiency) of Revanues
Crvar [Under) Expendilures {2TE,682) - 24,883 31,735 2,195} (222,258
Cther Financing Sources
Operating Transfers In - 163,000 aag n 2185 168 118
Total Other Financing Sources - 163,000 Ban 31 2195 188,116
Net Change in Fund Balance (2T6682) 163,000 25,773 31,766 - (26,143}
Fund Balance [Deficit) - Baginning of Year 301,784 = 16,392 {10,735) - 307 451
Fund Balance - End of Year §25.112 §163,000 $42,165 _ $31,031 i - $251,308




Bedford City School District
Combining Slatement of Fund Net Assels
Mon-major Enlarpise Funds

June 30, 2007
Total
Adult and Mon-major
Summer  Community Enterprise

_ School  Education  Recreation  Funds

Assets
Equity in Poaled Cash and Cash Eguivalenis 31,229 513,172 56,741 352,542
Feceivables:
Intergowernmental - - 518 518
Total Currant Assels 31,24 13,172 B BER 53,080
Capital Asssets, Net - - 333 3334
Total Assets 31,248 13472 11,863 55,384
Liabilities
Accounts Payable . 768 . 788
Interfund Loans Payabie . 10,000 - 10,000
Total Curren) Liabiities - 10, 78S - 10,7848
Total Liabilities - 10,769 . 10,768
Neot Assels
Imvested n Caplal Assels - - 3,234 3,334
Unrestricted 41,229 Z,403 B,E58 42 I8
Total Met Assels $31,228 _ $2.403  $11.883 _ §45.623

-BE-



Bedfard Clty School District
Combining Slatemsnt of Revenuss,

Expensss and Changes in Fund Net Assels

Non-major Enferpnse Funds

For the Fscal Year Ended June 20, 2007

Operating Revenues
Tuithon and Fees
Charges for Services
Tatal Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses
Salaries and Wages

Fringe Banafits
Purchased Services

Degreciation
Matarials and Supplies
Total Operating Expenses
Cperating Income (Loss)
Man-Dperating Revenues
Cther Revenues
Total Mon-Operating Revenues
Meat Income (Loss) Before Cperaling Transfers
Crparating Transfers In
Change in Met Assats
Mot Assels Beginning of Year

Het Assets End of Year

Tatal
Adult and Mon-majar
Summer  Community Enterprise
School Education  Recreafion Funds

£45 150 se40 £ - 548 0aa
- 10,843 B3y 19,334
45 180 11,833 8391 65,414
40,642 25, 801 84914 73,357
3655 arar i 8162

- r.aor 105 T.212

. a 333 333
115 &78 80 B34
a7 37,384 8152 @348
Eri:] (25,551) 238 (24 534)

. 32 . 32

= 32 - 32
e (25,519} 235 (24.502)
20,170 24 494 - 44 869
20,848 {1,020} 239 20,167
10,281 3423 11,754 25458
$31,229 $1,403 $11,6893 545,625



Bediord City School District
Combined Sfatament of Cash Fows
Non-major Enlerphise Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2004

Increase (Decrease) in Cash

and Cash Equivalents

Cash Flows from Oparating Activities:
Cash Recetvead from Tuition and Fees
Cash Recehved from Other Operations
Cash Payments for Personal Sanvices
Cash Payments for Purchased Services
Cash Payments for Materials and Supplies
Cash Payments for Other Expensas

Wet Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Moncapital Finencing Activities.
Cther Revenues
Cperaling Transtars
Cash (Used)] - Intergovernmental
Cash [Used] - Inferfund Laans
Met Cash (Used for)
Moncapital Financing Activities

MNet Incresse (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalants

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Baginning of Yaear
Cash and Cash Eqguivalents - End of Year

Reconciliation of Operating Income [Loss) to Mat
Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities

Oparating Incoms {Loss)

Adjustments to Reconclie Operating Income {Loss) 1o

Mel Cash Provided by [Used for) Operating Activities:
Depreciation
Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities:

Decrease (Increasa) in Recenables

increasa (Decreasa) in Accounts Payable

Increass {Decrease] in Accrued Wages and Banefits

Total Adjustments
Met Cash Provided by (Used for)
Operating Activities

=81

Adult and
Summer  Community

Tatal
Man-majar
Enterprisa

_ Bchool = FEducation Recreation _ Funds

£ - IR0 5 - $E80
45,1060 10,843 BB38 B4 771

- {31,247) (7624)  (38,BT1)
{44.297) {6,585) {105) (50,007)

" . (80} (90)
(115) {573) - _{red
___T7e ({26,688 819 (25,081)
3 32 - a2
20,170 24 408 - 44 BRY

- {38,000) = {38_000)
{38,000} - {58, 000]
(37.820) (13,469 - {51,299

{37.052) (40,157

819 (76,380
7322 128932

6A 281 53,329
$31.22% $13172

$B,141 552 542

$778  (§25651)  $239 _ ($24.534)
i 333 33

i . 247 247
5 512 i 517
- {1,842} - [1,648)
- {1,137) 580 {357}

5778 [$26 6E8)

$818 {325,081}




Bedford City School District

Combinng Statement of FundNet Azssts

intermal Sendice Funds
June 300 2007
Total
Imternal
Sel-funded Computer Sarvice
WWarenouse  Benefits Mabwark Funds
Assets
Equily in Pocled Cash and Cash Equivalents 531,B1B §5914.391 B5TH F848 TET
Receivablas:
Aooounts . 3,610 - 3610
Tatal Curreni Asssts 31,818 418,001 ETB f50 347
Tatal Assats 31,818 518,001 5TE 85D, 35T
Liabllities
Accounts Payable e 75403 - 75,403
Tatal Current Liabilties - 75,403 - 15 403
Tatal Liabikties - 75,403 - T 403
Het Assets
Unrastricted 31,818 842 598 oTB 874 95
Total Net Assels _ $31.B18  $842 508 $578 5874594



Bedford City School District
Combining Satement of Revenues,
Expsnses and Changes in Fund Nal Assels
Infernal Sarvice Funds
For the Ascal Year Ended Jume 30, 200H

Self-funded Compuber Service

Operating Revenues

Chafges fof Services $15523 3925282 § - $040, 805
Total Operating Revanues 15523 925,282 - B40a0s
Oparating Expenses

Purchased Services = 931,584 - 431 584
Materials and Supplies 8,315 - - 8,315
Total Operating Expenses 8,315 931 584 - 540 A0g
Change in Net Assets 6,208 (6,302) - (4}

Net Assats Beginning of Year 25810 B48, 800 578 _ @&Fs5.088
et Assets End of Year $31,818  $842.598 $57E  $874,894



Bediord City School District
Combined Statement of Cash Flows
internal Sanvice Funds
For the Hecal Year Ended June 30 2001

Total
Intermial
Salf-funded Computer Safice
Wiarshouse Banafils Nabwark Funds
Increase (Decrease] in Cash
and Cash Equivalents
Cash Flows fram Operating Activities:
Cash Recelved from Other Operations 515523 3 - 5 - 516,523
Cash Received from Self-insurance Premiums - B21,672 = g21,872
Cash Paymants for Purchased Sarvices = {821,027 - (921,027)
Cash Payments for Clher Expenses 8, 420) - - (9,.428)
Met Cash Provided by Operating Activities &, 054 G456 - 6,738
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 6,054 645 . 6,738
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year 25,724 B13,748 STB 840,048
Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year 531,818 5814381 $578 3046 787
Raconziliation of Oparating Income [Loss) to Net
Cash Provided by Operating Activithes
Cparating Income (Loss) $5,208 (§6,302) § - (504}
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income |Loss] to
Wet Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities:
Changes in Operating Aseete and Liabilties:
Decrease (Increasa) in Receiables - [3,810) - (3.810)
Increasa {Decreasa) in Accounts Payable 1114) 10,557 - 10,443
Total Adjustments (114) 6,847 - 6,833
Met Cash Provided by
Dperating Acthvities 56,064 5645 5 - $6,730




Individual Fund Schedules of Revenues, Expenditures/Expenses and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual (Budget Basis)
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Bedford City School District

Echedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual (Budget Basia) - General Fund

Taxms
Tuition

Eami

ngs on Invesiments

Crther
Linrestricted Grants in Ald - State

Total Revenues

Expendiiures

Cument:

Irsdruction:
Regular

Salaries and Wages
Fringe Benefis
Purchased Services
Materials and Supplies
Capital Qutlay - New
Capital Oullay - Replacemant
Other

Total Regular

Spacial

Salaries and Wages
Fringe Benafits
Purchased Sarvices
Materials and Supplies
Capital Qullay - Replacemant
Other

Total Special

Vocational Educatan:

Ad

Salaries and Wages

Fringe Benefits

Purchased Senices

Materials and Supplies

Capital Dutlay - Hew

Capital Outlay - Replacement
Total Vocational Educatian

uit'Continuing:
Fringe Benefits
Total Adult/Continuing

Othear;

Purchased Sarvices
Taotal Other

Total Instruction

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2001

Wariance with
Final Budget
Original Final Positie
Budget Budgst Actusl (Megative]
520662510 529052871 529537929 8485 258
75,000 143,064 143,964 .
500,000 741,680 732,814 (8, TEE)
25,000 180,702 190,702 -
5,708,053 5,048 458 5,090,823 142,355
35,068,573 _ 36,077,488 _ 35,606,332 618,847
0,688 175 8,825 075 9,823,827 1,248
2 605 416 2 605 416 2,514,632 60,784
254,218 113,100 81,258 21,841
615,643 BOT 899 710,358 87,541
18,119 18,350 15,641 3,700
37,206 38,716 33,312 4,804
2,798 4,312 4,290 13
13522576 13413868 _ 13103528 218,540
2255779 2 347 779 2,171,644 178,135
578,425 B18,425 602,704 13,721
13,221 13,221 12,306 825
12,599 14,181 11,825 2,356
2,310 2310 1,599 an
6,475 6,475 4,561 1,894
2,860,509 3,000,391 2,605,149 155,242
940,343 948,343 BET, 346 &1,097
253,227 253,227 244 412 B.815
3,445 5,189 3,576 1,613
37463 36,641 28,533 7,108
36,330 45 681 45,681 .
6,740 7.380 7,389 -
1,286,548 1,297,470 1,217,937 78,533
1,403 1,403 1,403
1,403 1,403 - 1,403
507,494 807 494 841,784 65,710
507,434 907494 841,784 85,710
§16,186.030 $1B620626  $18,058,798 561,828
[continued})



Bedford Clty School District

Schedule of Reverwes, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Budget Basis) - General Fund {continued |
Far the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2001

Support Bervices;
Pupil
Salaries and VWages
Fringe Benefita
Purchased Services
Materials and Supplies
Capital Oullay - New
Capital Outlay - Replaceament
Othar
Total Pugpil

Instructicnal Staff;
Salaries and Wﬂﬂl
Fringe Benefis
Purchased Sorvices
Materiats and Supplies
Capital Quilay - New
Capital Dulay - Replacemeanl
Other
Total Instructional Staff

Baard of Education:
Salaries and Wages
Fringe Benefils
Purchased Services
Materials and Supplies
Other
Total Board of Education

Acdministration:
Salaries and Wages
Fringe Banafils
Purchased Services
Materials and Supplies
Capital Outlay - New
Capital Ouflay - Replacemant
Other
Tatal Adminigiration

Fiszal:
Salarles and Wages
Fringe Baneafits
Purchased Services
Mataeriaks and Supplies
Capital Cutlay - New
Capital Qutlay - Replacament
Other
Tatal Fiscal

-&7-

‘Variance with
Final Budgei
Ciriginal Final Foaitive

Budget Bucget Actual [Megativa]
51,315,685 51,315,685 31,312 488 53,218
360,268 360 268 357 678 11,500
409,226 412,452 388,335 24117
100,358 107,077 109,304 5,773
21,741 21,741 20,143 1,588
1,000 1,000 - 1,000

300 100 100 -

22417 577 2227 323 2,180 028 4T 264
876,855 876,955 836,631 40,324
298,239 250 144 257 230 41,974
165,982 1668 472 107,813 60,658

89,164 103,576 05 053 8,523
42,026 42,980 42,230 750
7,988 11,685 10,144 1.541
10,050 10,630 7.703 2827
1,450 414 1,513 442 1,356 804 156 636
15,000 15,000 2440 5,560
- - (3.458) 3,458
225 B40 225 Bad 161,242 G, 588
i) G600 7o 330
8,413 B A4S B 447 ]
247 B55 248 BAS 175,941 73,548

1,925,364 1,911,364 1,787,021 114,343

T28 448 534 558 E18.312 15,345
77 855 T8 824 83.625 16,158
23,583 25774 18,934 £.840

2,250 2,128 4 288 838
5,458 8025 B, 15T 1.832

31,702 38144 28845 5,498

2,794,804 2,702,918 2,538,022 163,857
278,764 250,764 280,855 108
107,045 107,045 100,072 6873

G4, 335 84,335 68,965 (4.631)
10,853 10,853 T.871 2,882
5,000 5,000 - 5000
£ 000 5,000 . 5. 000
 B22.500 622,500 £37 061 85,439
51,093,487 _ $1,105497 _ §1004626 3700871
{contimued)



Badford City School District
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Aclual (Budget Basis) - General Fund (continued)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 20071

Variance with
Final Budget
Crriginal Final Fosimve
Budget ~  Budget _Actual (Megalive)
Business:
Salaries and Wapges $108,825 5220825 $220,708 $218
Fringe Benefits 64,337 64 337 63,374 283
Purchased Sennces 40,053 45,842 40,165 a8,777
Materials and Supplies 5117 5117 3618 1,458
Capital Outiay - New 2,000 4,437 2,567 1,670
Capital Qutlay - Replacement - 450 484 B
CH b 1,350 3,350 2618 732
Tolal Business 311,829 244 554 433,535 11,064
Dperation and Maintenance of Plant
Salaries and Wapes 2,051,364 2,074,364 2,074,231 133
Fringe Benefits 848,502 249 vz 761,239 SH 483
Purchased Sensces 1,810,296 2237 122 2,236,584 238
Materials and Supplies 250,556 204, 983 204 353 &20
Capital Outlay - New 42 BE1 a0,550 45 281 4 158
Capital Outlay - Reptacement g, 7a2 a3, 782 83409 283
Cther ——hilm. TG V95 580
Total Operation and Maintenance of Plant 5 104,026 5512278 5 407 402 104 876
Pupd Transportation:
Salaries and Wages 1,611,660 1,611,660 1,589,758 21,205
Fringe Benalits 400,170 400,170 384 582 15,568
Purchased Services 338 427 263 027 260167 12,850
Materials and Supplies 304 467 448 467 443 629 5 838
Capital Outiay - New 3,500 1,000 778 222
Capital Qutlay - Replacemant 178,000 16,000 14,677 1,323
Othae 1,750 1,750 1.916 234
Total Pupil Transporiation 2 528 974 2,743 074 2685104 57,970
Central;
Salaries and VWages 155,366 93,366 g2 8y 494
Fringe Beanefis 24 323 38,323 35,716 2,607
Purchased Services 81,850 79,150 7.7 429
Materialz and Supplies 5833 5,833 5.053 70
Capital Qutlay - Mew - 1,600 1,480 140
Capital Cutlay - Replacemant 1,000 2,100 2,087 13
Tatal Central 168 372 231,372 216,800 4 483
Tolal Support Services 16,358,352 16,620,393 15,808.372 721,021
Ciperation of Mon-Instructional Services:
Community Services:
Salaries and Wages 24 538 30,538 28678 A0
Fringe Benefils - 3,725 3.724 1
Total Community Services 24,538 283~ 33A02 BE1
Total Operation of Non-instructional
Services §24 538 $34263  §3ja402 $861
[continued)
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Bedford City School District
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Budget Basis) - General Fund [continued)

For tne Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2001

Extracurricular Activities.
Academic and Subject Onented
Salaries and Wages
Total Academic and Subject Onented

Sparts Orientad!
Salaries and Wages
Fringe Benefits
Purchased Services
Total Sports Oriented

School and Public Sanvice Qriented:
Salaries and Wages
Fringe Bansfits
Total School and Fublic Serace Onented

Total Extracurricular Astivities

Debt Service:
Frincipal
Interest
Total Dedit Servce

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues
Crver Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Advances In
Refund of Prior Year Expenditures
Operating Transfers Out
Advances Out
Contingencies
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Het Change in Fund Balance
Fursd Balance - Beginning of Year

Encumbrances - End of Year

Fund Balance - End of Yaar

Vartance with
Final Budged
Criginal Final Posifive
Budget Budget Actual [Megative]
§ - £2.000 §1874 5126
= 2000 1874 126
258,855 258,855 258,529 2,325
- 38,500 38 488 12
" 2,000 1,215 TR
258, 655 297,355 204 732 3123
9,240 26,240 25,682 57H
= 4100 4,019 81
8,240 30,340 249 BB E&O
268,085 329,685 325,787 3,508
285 000 285 000 285 000 .
54,700 54,700 54,524 178
335,700 338,700 399,524 78
35,177,615 35,944 BTT 34 656,883 1,287,754
791,358 202,402 2,109,043 1,806 641
847 874 875,471 a75,471 -
- 219 140 215140 -
(227,000) (523 885) {393 154) 1310 4531
[ 125, 0007 (703,000) (702.900) 108
(118,900} (103,750) e 103,750
477,071 {135 824) 98,517 234 341
1,268,420 B& 578 2,207,560 2,140,982
3,244,735 3,244,735 3,244 735 -
s - BB0 78S BBO, 786
54,513,164 $3.311,313 £a6,333,081 $3,021,798




Bedford City School District
Senedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual (Budget Basis) - Public School Support
Special Revenue Fund - For the Fecal Year Ended Jumne 30, 2001

Variance with
Final Budget
Crigiral Final Posifive
Budgat Budgel Aciual (MNegative)
Revenuaes
Othar § - $13T7 675 $137 675 5 -
Taotal Revenues - 137 673 137 &7 -
Expanditures
Currant:
Imstruction:
Regular,
Purchased Senvices 18,480 70,083 45,510 20,573
Materials and Supplies 28,840 #3311 54,687 28 524
Capital Dutlay - Mew 2,406 2,526 2,167 359
Capital Ouflay - Replacement 300 300 - 300
Other . 6,940 12,754 8817 3,837
Total Regular 57,088 168,974 115,281 53,603
Special
Matetials and Supples 5 5 - 5
Total Special ] ] - 5
‘Wocational Education:
Materials and Supples 1,101 1,176 881 185
Tatal Vocational Educatian 1,11 1,176 a91 185
Total Instruction 58,172 170,155 116,272 53 883
Support Services:
Pupil
Capital Outlay - New 293 283 - 203
Total Pupil 793 253 - 283
Instructional S4aif.
Salaries and Wages [2,385) 11,921 11,810 11
Fringe Benefils 1.871 5,244 4 487 777
Materiais and Supplies 2,085 2424 728 1,696
Other - __550 550 -
Total Instructional Staff 1,667 20,139 17 655 2 464
Administration:
Purchased Services 1,177 1,177 - 1177
Materials and Supplies 2,600 2 500 - 2,500
Cither 9,820 11,970 - 11,970
Total Administration 13,487 16,647 - 15,647
Business:
Materiais and Supplies __ sm 5810 4317 _1,063
Taotal Business 501 5,510 4517 1,093
Total Support Serices $15,058 541,684 §22172 $18. 517
[continued)
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Badford City School District
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balanco
Budget and Aciual (Budget Basls) - Public Scheol Support (continuead)
Epecial Revenus Fund - For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2001

Extracumcular Acthities:
School and Public Service Oriented:
e
Total School and Public Sanvice Crianded

Tatal Extracurricular Activities

Total Expendiiures

{Deficiency) of Revenues
{Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Acvances In
Refund of Prior Year Expenditures

Advances Cul
Total Other Financing Sources (Lises)

et Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance - Beginning of Year

Encumbrances - End of Year

Fund Balance - End of Year

Variance with
Final Budget
Crriginal Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual [Megative}
L $2,370 32000 _ $370
- 2370 2,000 ara
2370 2,000 370
74,130 214,214 140, 444 73,770
{74,130} {78,539) (2, 768) 73,770
- 2400 2,400
- g g .
{10,000} (10,000} {10,000} -
(10,000} (7.581) {7,591} -
{84,130} (B4,130) (10,360) 73,770
B4, 130 B4,130 B4, 130
& - 10,337 10,337
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Bedford City School District

Echedule of Revenuas, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budgel and Actual (Budgel Basss) - Other Grant

Special Revenus Fund - For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2001

Ravanuas
Other
Total Revenues

Expenditures
Current;
Insbruction:
Regular.
Purchased Services
Materials and Supplies
Capital Outlay - New
Oiher
Tatal Regukar

Special;
Capital Outlay - New
Total Special

Vocalional Education
Balaries and Wages
Fringe Benafits
Furchased Services
Materials and Supplies
Capital Qutlay - New
Total Vocational Education

Total Instruction

Support Services:
Imstructional Staff,
Salaries and Wages
Fringe Benefits
Purchased Services
Materials and Supplias
Tatal Instructional Staff

Total Suppar Senices
Total Expenditures

[Deficlency) of Revenues
{Under) Expanditures

Oiher Financing (Uses)
Refund of Prior Years Receipts
Total Other Financing (Lises)

Variance with
Final Budget
Ciriginal Final Positive
_ Budget Budgat Actual [Megathe)
548 318 §49 317 350,315 oG8
49 316 49 317 50315 898
g4T 847 471 A76E
11,668 11,462 11,122 340
BTG 7o Bro <
2,002 2 802 - 2802
16,388 16,181 12 453 3718
500 S00 500 =
500 500 500 2
2,733 3,282 3. 252 =
TET a8 458 -
13,5563 8,968 8 558 -
5,234 8,083 8 083 -
67,766 60,252 68 470 T
80,053 a0 053 89 2 THZ
106, G541 106, 734 102,234 4,500
1. 725 2180 2160 -
1,766 334 328 &
2,700 700 E00 1082
1,800 10,758 10,507 291
13,881 13,852 13 585 38T
13,881 13,052 13,585 397
120,832 120,726 115,828 4 8BSy
{71,616} (71,408) {65,614 5 895
- {207) (207 .
£ - ($207) [£207) 5 -
{continued)
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Bedford City School District
Bchedule of Revenues, Expendilures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual (Budget Basis] - Other Grant [continued)

Special Revenuwe Fund - For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2001

Met Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance - Baginning of Year
Encumbrances - End of Year
Fund Balance - End of Year

Variance with
Final Budgst
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual {Megative)
($71,616) ($71,646) [$65,721) $5.925
T1.818 71,616 71,616

- - 2,756 2 756
_§ - $ - $8,651 $8,651
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Bedfard City School District
Schedule of Revenses, Expendilures and Changes in Fund Balanos
Budget and Actual [Budpget Basis) - Venture Capital
Special Revenue Fund - For the Flscal Year Ended June 30, 2001

Variance with
Final Budget
COriginal Final Fositive
Budget Budget  _ Actual __(Negative)
Revenuss
Unrestricted Grants in Aid - State 25,000 525,000 25000 %
Todal Revenues 20,000 25,000 25,000 -
Expandliuras
Current:
Instructicn:
Regular;
Salaries and Wages 9,000 B,400 5,400 3,000
Fringe Benafia 7,70 4 265 3,438 826
Purchased Services 21,300 16,742 11,870 4772
Materials and Supplias 26, 6B6 2,051 28,405 4,546
Capital Culkay - MNew 3,007 6,490 5,450 -
Other 5,962 4266 4126 180
Tofal Regular 73,134 73,134 55,830 13,304
Total Instruction 73,134 73,134 58 B30 13,304
Todal Expanditures 73,134 73,134 58,830 13,304
{Ceficiency) of Revenues
(Under) Expendiures (48,134) (48 134) {34 B30) 13,304
Other Financing Sources [Uaes)
Cperating Tranafers In - - a2 B2
Contingancies (& 50 {2 5059, - 2,508
Total Dther Financing Sources (Lises) [2.509) 12, 209) B2 2891
Net Change in Fund Balance | 501, B43] {50,643} {34,748 15,885
Fund Balance - Beginning of Year 50,643 50,643 50,643
Encumbrances - End of Year - - 264 4654
Fund Balance - End of Year . $ - $16,359 £16,350




Bedford City School District

Schedule of Revenues, Expendilures and Changeas in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual {Budget Basis) - District Managed Student Activities
Special Revenue Fund - For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2001

Rivenies
Other
Total Revenues

Exzpenditures
Current:
Extracurricular Activities:
Academic and Subject Oriented:
Salaries and Wages
Fringe Benefits
Furchased Senices
Malerials and Supplies
Cither
Tedad Academic and Subjec! Orlented

Occupation Oriended:
FPurchased Services
Matenals and Supplies

Tolal Decupation Oniented

Eports Criented.
Salaries and Wapges
Fringe Benefits
Purchased Services
Malerials and Supplies
Capéal Ouliay - Mew
Capital Outiay - Replacement

Toltal Sports Qriented

School and Public Service Criented:
Purchased Services
Matenals and Supplies
Capital Qutiay - Mew
Capital Qutiay - Replacement
Qther
Total School and Public Seanvice Oniented

Total Exracurricular Aclivities

Total Expenditures

{Deficlency] of Revenues
{Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Operating Transfers In
Advandes In
Refund of Prior Year Expendifures
Advancas Cul
Total Ciher Financing Sources | Uises)

=105~

Varlance with
Firal Busdget
Ciriginal Final Positive
Hudget Bugget Actual _{MNegative}
5 - $93,387 393387 5 -
. 83,387 83,387 -
235 T35 500 235
13 13 7 &
1,071 2,754 1,973 TH1
1,584 14,235 10,545 Ba4
29 29 & 28
2832 14 770 13,025 1,745
1,504 2,481 1.580 201
1,104 3,607 2012 1,585
2,588 5,088 3592 249
1,845 B217 ¥.380 BAT
125 1,283 g247 435
8,425 &8 577 £ Be8 4708
28,620 118,522 111,871 B,651
f: E] 1,736 491 1,245
2827 5627 5,812 15
&2 243 190 862 178,070 12,842
6,684 32,354 29,381 2973
5127 12 683 7 308 EBTS
510 510 500 10
152 a . |
234 653 653 =
12,708 45 503 37,842 8 B51
70,581 258,323 432 528 25,794
70,581 258,323 232 528 25,704
{70,581} [164,8386) {138,142) 25,7094
i B4 500 84,500
= 3,000 3,000
2 4 4 z
(10,000) (13,000} {13000) -
(510,000} £84 504 S84 504 5 -
[comtmued)



Badford City School District
Schedule of Revenues, Expendifures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual |{Budget Basis) - District Managed Student Activitles [continued)

Special Revenus Fund - For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2001

YVariance with
Final Budpget
Ciriginal Final Fositive
Budget Budget Actual {Negative)
Net Change in Fund Balance [580,581) ($80,432) (554,638) $25,794
Fund Balance - Beginning of Year B0, 432 B0, 432 80,432 .
Encumbrances - End of Year - - 24,113 24,113
Fund Balance - End of Yaar 5148 5 - 548,907 $45.907
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Bedford City School District

Schedule of Hevenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual (Budge! Basis) - Mmiliary Senices
Epecial Revenue Fund - For the Figcal Year Ended June 30, 2001

Revenuss
Eariings on Iivesimenls
Restricted Grants in Al - State
Toial Eevenues

Exzpenditures
Current:
Operation of Mon-Instruchonal Services
Community Sefvices.
Salaries and Wages
Fringe Benefits
Purchased Services
Maleriale arnd Supplies
Capital Outlay - Menw
Total Community Services

Total Dperation of Mon-instructicnal
Srrvices

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Cwar (Under) Expandilures

Other Financing [Uses)
Contingencies
Total Other Financing Sowrces (Liseg)
Met Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance - Beginning of Year

Encumbrances - End of Year

Fund Balance - End of Year

Wariance with

Final Budget
Qriginal Final Fositive
Budget Budget __ Actual (MNegative)
$ - £2,495 54,029 51,534
435,486 440,528 440,548 -
439,456 443 023 444 557 1,534
107,783 102,067 84,143 17,924
32,8560 32,164 26,003 6,181
203,450 185,550 161,456 34,124
78,353 213,733 210,066 3,667
10,685 34,804 32,850 1,854
432,840 578,348 514,518 3,630
432,340 578,348 514 518 #3830
432,940 578,348 514,518 63,830
6,546 (135,325} (69,061) &5, 364
(145,408} - - -
(145 408) - - -
(138,862) {135,325} (69,961) 65,364
130,005 139,005 128,095 -
- - - 8,147 68,147
$233 $3,770 $138,281 $134,511
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Bedford City Schoaol District
Schedule of Revenwes, Expendifures and Changes in Fund Balanca
Budget and Actual [Budget Basis) - Disadvantaged Pupsl Frogram
Special Revenue Fund - For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2001

Warianoe with
Final Budget
Ciriginal Final Posithe
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
Fund Balance - Beginning of Year 3 - 5005 2905 5 -
Encumbrances - End of Year - - : -
Fund Balance - End of Year ¥ - 005 o055 £ -




Bedlond City School District
Schedule of Revenues, Expendiures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual (Budget Basis) - Career Development
Special Revenue Fund - For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2001

Variance with
Final Budgst
Criginal Final Fositive
Budget Budget Actual {Megativa}
Revenues
Restricted Grants in Aid - State $36.454 $26.454 $26454 5 -
Total Revanues _ 36,454 26 454 26,454
Expenditures
Currant;
Instructian;:
Vocational Education
Salaries and Wages 5,182 43,083 33883 -
Fringe Benefits 2,703 = . -
Tedal Vocational Education 38 BES 23583 33 083 :
Total Instruction 38 BES 33983 33,983 -
Tolal Expenditures 38,885 33 983 33,583 -
{Deficiency) of Revenues
(Under) Expendiures (2.431) (7,529) (7528) -
Other Financing Sources [Uses)
Advances |n - 12,000 12,000 -
Advances Out {14,000 [14,000) {14,000 =
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) {14,000) {2,000} {2,000 -
Nat Change in Fund Balance (16,431) [9.529) (9,529) -
Fund Balance - Baginning of Year 16,432 16,432 15,432 -
Encumbrances - End of Year " = - -
Fund Balance - End of Yaar $1 $6,003 $6903 § -




Bedford City School District

Sehedule of Revenues, Expendiures and Changes in Fund Balanco

Budget and Aciual (Budget Basis) - Teacher Development

Special Revenue Fund - For the Fiscal Year Ended Junse 30, 2001

Warlance wilh
Final Budget
Driginal Final Positive
Budget Budpet Actusl (Megative)
Revenuas
Restricted Grants In Ald - State $18873 _ $19073  $19073 S -
Total Revenues 18,873 18.073 19073 -
Expenditures
Curnent;
Support Services:
Instructional Staff;
Salaries and Wages 14, Tdd 20 454 12,357 8,13r
Fringe Benefits aro 1,881 536 1,345
Purchased Services 6,835 7402 7077 325
Materials and Supplies 4 592 164 164 -
Capital Qutfay - New 2,500 - - -
Crtvar 1,210 1,210 1,204 &
Total Imstructional Staff 31,151 31,151 21,338 BE13
Operation of Non-Instructional Services:
Community Services:
Furchased Services 1,211 1,211 - 1,211
Total Community Sanvices 1,211 1,211 - 1,211
Total Qperation of Man-Instructanal
Bervices 1,211 1,211 - 1,211
Total Expenditures 32,352 32,362 21,338 11,024
Met Change in Fund Balance (13,488) (13,269) [2 265) 11,024
Fund Balance - Beginning of Year 13,489 13,483 13,489 -
Encumbrances - End of Year - - 2,541 2,541
Fund Balance - End of Year § - $200 $13,765 £13,565
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Bediord City Schocl District
Schedule of Bevenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balanca
Budget and Actual (Budget Basis) - Educational Mobiliy Assistance Program
Special Revenue Fund - For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2001

Variance with
Final Budget
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual [Megative]
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Oparating Transters In £11,144 £11,141 £11,141 £ -
Advances Out {12,000} {12,000) {12,000} =
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 1559) 1853) L85}
Net Change in Fund Balance {859) (B53) (855} -
Fund Balance - Beginning of Year 859 53 &859 -
Encumbrances - End of Year . . - -
Fund Balancs - End of Year 5 - B - ¥ - £ -
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Bedford City School District
Schedule of Revenuses, Expendifures and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget and Actual (Budget Basie) - Education Management Information Services
Special Revenue Fund - Fof the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2001

Revenuas
Restricted Grants in Ald - Stata

Tatal Revenues

Met Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balanca - Baginning of Year
Encumbrances - End of Year

Fund Balance - End of Year

Variance with
Final Budget
Original Final Positive
Budget Budgat Actual _ (Negatve)
5 - $16.348 516,248 5 -
- 16 348 16, 348 E
= 16,348 18,348 &
10,883 10,9453 10,523 =

$10,983 $27.341 £27.341

412



Beadiord City School District

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual {Budget Basis) - Disadvantaged Pupd Impact Ald
Special Revenue Fund - For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

Revenues

Restricted Grants in Akd - State

Total Revanues

Expenditures
Current;

Instrustion

Special
Salaries and Wages
Total Special

Total Expendilures

Met Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance - Beginning of Year
Encumbrances - End of Year

Fund Balance - End of Year

Vartance with
Final Budget
Criginal Final Positive
_Budget Sudget Actusl [Negative]
$175, 722 $175,722 §175,722 5 -
175,722 175,722 175 722 -
175,722 17572 175722 -
175,722 175722 175,742 -
175, T2 175,722 175,722 -
. SR _§ - __5 -
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Bedford City School District
Schedule of Revenues, Expendifures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual (Budget Basig) - Data Communications
Special Revenue Fund - For the Fiscal Year Ended Juna 30, 2001

Variance with
Final Budget
Original Final Puositive
Budget Budget Actual {Wegative)
Hevenues
Resftricted Grants in Ald - Stale $12 000 £12,000 $12.000 5 -
Tolal Revenues 12,000 12,000 12,000 .
Expenditures
Current:
Support Senvices:
Instructional Siaff:
Capital Qutiay - New 12,000 12,000 4,356 7.644
Tatal Instnectional Stafl 12,000 12,pug 4;155 T T.644
Tatal Support Sarvices 12,000 12,000 4 355 7 6844
Total Expenditures 12000 12,000 4358 7,644
Net Change in Fund Balance - - T.644 T.644
Fund Balance - Beginning of Year - - . =
Encumbrances - End of Year - - 4 336 4 358
Fund Balance - End of Year 5 - 5 - $12,000 $12,000
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Bedford City School District
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual (Budget Basis) - Schoolhet Professional Developmant
Special Revenue Fund - For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2001

Variance with
Final Budget
Crriginal Final Positive
El.hull Budget Actsal __(Negative)
Revenues
Restricted Grants in Ald - State 34000 §4.000 54,000 5
Total Revenues 4000 4000 4 000
Expenditures
Current:
Instruction:
Regutar
Purchased Sandces 7,000 7,000 7,000 -
Total Regular 7,000 7,000 7,000 .
Total Instruction 7.000 7.000 7,000 - =
Suppan Services:
Adminsstration;
Purchased Services 1,000 1,000 1,000 -
Total Administration 1,000 1,000 1,000 -
Total Support Services 1,000 1,000 1,000 -
Total Expenditures 8,000 8,000 8,000
Met Change in Fund Balance (4,000) [4,000) (4,000}
Fund Balance - Baginning of Year 4,000 4,000 4,000 -
Encumbrances - End of ear - - 2,000 2.000
Fund Balance - End of Year 5 - $2,000 £2.000

-115-



Bedford City School District

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budpet and Aciual (Budget Basis) - Ohio Reads
ESpecial Revenue Fund - For the Fiacal Year Ended June 30, 2001

Hevenues
Resiricted Grants in Ald - State
Total Revenues

Expandilunes
Curnent:
Imstruction:
Regular
Zalaries and Wages
Fringe Benefils
Total Reguiar

Tetal Instruction
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Orver (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing (Usas)

Refund of Prior Yearns Receaipts
Tatal Other Financing (Uses)

et Change In Fund Balance
Fund Balance - Beginning of Year
Encumbrances - End of Year

Fund Balance - End of Year

Vanance with
Final Budget
Crriginal Final Positive
__ Budget _Budget _ Actual (Negative]
58,000 g8 000 $8.000 i -
8000 & 000 8 000 -
6 550 & 540 . 5940 =
1,311 1,060 1,049 11
8. 261 8 000 7.588 11
8,261 8,000 7 689 11
8,261 8,000 7.089 11
[261) 1" 11
- [261) [261) =
- (261] [261] -
[261) (261) [250) 11
251 251 261 -
£ - ¥ - 511 511

-116-



Bedford City School District
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual (Budget Basis) - Summer School Subsidy
Spetial Revenue Fund - For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2001

Varianoe with
Final Budget
Criginal Firal Positive
Budgst Budget Actual (Negative)
Revenues
Resiricted Grants in Aid - State §8 385 $8,385 58,205 § -
Total Revenues 8,385 B38s 8385 -
Expenditures
Current
Instruction:
Regutar:
Furchasad Services B 385 8385 B 385 -
Total Regular 8,385 8,385 8,385 -
Tatal Instruction 8,385 8,385 8,385
Total Expendiiures 8,385 & 385 8,385 -
MNat Change in Fund Balance - = = -
Fund Balance - Beginning of Year - - . -
Encumbrances - End of Year - . = r
Fund Balance - End of Year 5 - 5 - 5 - 5 -
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Bedford City School District

Echedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual (Budget Basis) - Vocational Education Enhancemeant
Special Revenue Fund - For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2001

Revenues
Restricted Gramts in Ald - State
Total Revenues

Expenditures
Cument:
Instruction:
‘Yocational Education:
Salaries and Wages
Fringe Benefits
Purchased Services
Materials and Supplies
Capital Oullay - New
Tokal Viecational Education

Total Instruction

Total Expenditures

Wet Change in Fund Balanca
Fund Balance - Beginning of Year
Encumbrances - End of Year

Fund Balance - End of Yaar

Variance with

Firal Budget
Original Final Positive
Budge! Budget Actual {Negative]
£30,000 $30,000 $30,000 g -
30,000 30,000 30000 -
500 500 S00 -
100 3 30
400 158 158 -
4 185 4 606 4 808 -
24 815 24,703 24,703
30,000 30,000 30,000
30,000 30,000 30,000 3
30,000 30,000 30,000 ;
= - . 425
_$- 5 - a5 _ 425
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Bedford City School District

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual (Budget Basis) - Extended Learning Opporiunity
Speclal Revenue Fund - For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2001

Revenues
Resirictad Grants [ Ald - State
Toial Revenues

Expenditures
Currant:
Instnection;
Ragular
Salaries and Wagea
Fringe Benefits
Purchased Services
Materials and Supplies
Capital Outlay - Mew
Tofal Regular

Total Irsirection

Total Expenditures

MWat Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance - Beginning of Year
Encumbrances - End of Year

Fund Balance - End of Year

‘Wariance with
Firal Budgst
Criginal Final Posflive
_ Budget Budget Actual _[Negative}
552,?1!_0 $52 700 552,700 5 -
EE.’?EEI' 52,700 52,700 .
16,120 16,120 16,120
2600 Z.600 - 2,600
1,000 1.000 - 1,000
34,980 30,880 14 601 168,375
2,000 2,000 1,747 253
__E;_E.TIJD- £2 700 16,348 36,352
=2, 7O o2, 700 15,348 36,352
E-E.?EIE_F 52,700 18,348 36 352
5 - 36,352 36,352
= " 3,548 3,548
8- _ % - 530900 __ $39,900
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Bedford City School District
Schedula of Revenues, Expanditures and Changes in Fund Balanca
Budget and Actual [Budgel Basis) - Miscellaneous State Granis
Special Revenue Furd - For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2001

Variance with
Firal Budget
COriginal Final Fositive
_Budget Budget  Actual (Megative)
Revenues
Restricted Grants in Al - State 575,387 77,188 577,188 i -
Total Revenues ) 75,387 778 T7188 -
Expenditures
Current:
Iregfruct|om;
Regular:
Salaries and Wages 3,808 3,808 1,845 2,053
Fringe Benefits &2 E02 156 446
Purchased Services 3,538 3,538 3,553 (15)
Materials and Supplies 110,887 110,887 108,638 852
Other 12,778 12,770 12,744 35
Total Regular 131,704 131,704 128,233 3,471
“ocational Educstion;
Purchasad Services 8,500 2 500 8,500 -
Materials and Supplies 7336 8,086 8,088 -
Capital Outiay - Mew 20,355 20,355 20,355 .
Total Vocational Educallen 37,181 35541 35,941 -
Total Instruction 168,895 167,645 162,174 d.471
Support Services:
Instructional Staff.
Ealaries and Wages 3,550 3,550 3,550 -
Total Instructional S1aff 3 550 3 550 3,550 -
Administration:
Materials and Supplies 5.00 5.00 5.00 -
Total Administration 5.00 5.00 S5.00 -
Total Support Services ) 3,555 3555 3,585 -
Total Expendiiures 172,450 171,200 167,725 3,471
{Deficiancy] of Hevanueas
(Under] Expanditures (97 053] {94.012] (20,547) 3,471
Other Financing (Uses)
Advances Qut (74,000} {74,000 (74,000) -
Refund of Prior Years Receipts . {1,250 {1,250) -
Total Ciher Financing (Uses) {74,000} {75,250) {75,250) :
Net Change in Fund Balance [171,063) (169,262) (165,791) 34T
Fund Balance - Beginning of Year 171,063 171,083 171,063 -
Encumbrances - End of Year 5 = 27,355 27,355
Fund Balance - End of Year __ 5 - 1801  $32637 _  $30,B26
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Bedford City School District
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Chanpges in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual (Budget Basis) - Title Il
Special Revenua Fund - For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2001

Variance wilth
Final Budcget
Cirigimal Final Positive
_ Budget ~ Budget = Actual = [MNegative]
Revenues
Restricted Grants in Aid - State §25,675 522,579 $22578 I
Total Revenues __26ETS 22 578 22 578 .
Expanditures
Crrent
Support Services:
Instiuctional Staff:
Salanies and Wages 15,580 15,580 12,365 3,215
Fringe Benefits 2,453 2196 1611 5B5
Purchased Senvices 12,288 13,567 10,557 3,00
Materiale and Supplies 4820 2,605 1,610 2,995
Capital Outlay - New 3,000 3,000 - 3,000
Todal Instructional Staff 38,141 38,938 26 143 13,785
Total Support Services 38,141 39,538 26,143 13,785
Total Expenditures 38,141 30,038 26,143 13,795
[Deficiency} of Revenues
{Under) Expenditures {12,466) (17,359) (3,584) 13,795
Dther Financing Sources (Uses)
Advances In = 5,000 5,000 -
Advances Dut {11,000) (11,000 (11,000} -
Refund of Prior Yaars Recaipts {3,977) {2,181) (2,181} =
Taotal Other Financing Sources (Uses) {14,977) {B,181) {8,181}
Met Change in Fund Balance (27.443) (25,540) (11,745} 13,795
Fund Balanoe - Beginning of Year 27,443 27,443 27 443
Encumbrancss - End of Year - - 1,468 1,466
Fund Balance - End of Year $ - $1803 _ $i7,464 __ $15261
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Bedford City School District

Schedule of Revenues, Expendilures and Changes in Fund Balanoce

Budget and Actual (Budget Basis) - Title VIB

Epecial Revenue Fund - For tha Fiscal Year Ended June 20, 2001

Revenues
Restricted Grants in Aid - State
Tatal Revenues

Expendltures
Currenit
Instruction:
AdultiContinuing:
FPurchased Sarvices
Total Adul'Continuing

Total Instruction

Operation of Mon-Instructional Senices:
Communily Services:
Ezlaries and Wages
Furchased Services
Materials and Supplies
Total Community Services

Total Operation of Non-Instructional
Senices

Total Expeandituras

(Deficiency) of Revanues
i{Under) Expanditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Operatng Transfers In
Ardvances In
Advances Out
Taotal Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Met Change In Fund Balance
Furd Balance - Beginning of Year
Encumbrances - End of Year

Fund Balance - End of Year

Variance wilh
Firal Budget
Qrriginal Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual {Megative)
5303679 595,589 $95589 _ § -
303,679 85,589 85,589 £
278,500 278,500 279,500 -
278,500 219,500 275,500 -
279,500 278,500 275,500 -

30,308 30,308 30,308 -

7,704 7,704 7,704 .

1,118 1,118 1,058 60

38,130 39,130 35,070 B0

39,130 39,130 38,070 BD
318,630 318,630 318,570 B0
(14.851) (223.047)  (d22881) = B0

- ] g -

- 210,000 210,000 -
{175.000) {175,000) {175,000} -
{175.000) 35,005 35,005 =
(188,851) {188,036) (187 .976) 60
189,951 168,951 189,951

B, - 22,951 22,951
$ - $1,015 24,926 $23.011
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Bediiord City School District
EBchedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual (Budget Basis) - Vocational Education
ESpecial Revenue Fund - For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2001

arlance with
Final Budget
Driginal Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
Revenuss
Restricted Grants in Aid - State $135,332 $75,163 §75163 _ § -
Tedal Revenues 135,332 75,163 75,163 L
Expandituras
Current:
Imstruction:
Vocational Education:
Purchased Services 5,175 208 208 -
Materials and Supplies 17,103 20,418 20,391 28
Capital Outiay - New 5,244 10,531 10,531 -
Other 39,848 41,261 31,436 8,625
Total Yocational Education B7,370 72419 B2, 566 0.B53
Tatal Instrustion 67,370 72,418 B2 565 8 853
Support Sanvices:
Fupil;
Salaries and Wages 7,641 7,541 8,035 1,606
Fringa Banalits 12,000 12,000 10,471 1,528
Purchased Sarvices 50 50 15 35
Matentals and Supplies 7,785 6,741 6,831 (0]
Cther 11,0684 10,240 8,901 1,335
Total Pupil 30,560 J5ETE a2 283 44149
Instructional Staff:
Purchaged Sanvices 11,540 10,032 T.BOT 2,225
Other 30,178 28 880 27,788 1.081
Total Instructional Staff 41,718 28812 35,588 3,318
Adminisiration:
Materials and Supplies 6,588 5,428 6,354 34
Tatal Administration 6,588 6,428 6,384 34
Cerntral
Purchased Services 6,313 5,574 5,173 401
Materials and Supplies 7,214 &, TE1 B,761 -
Other 10,154 B,773 £, &40 1,774
Total Cemntral 23,681 21,108 18,933 2173
Total Suppan Services 110,547 103,120 93,1786 5,544
Total Expendilures 177817 175,535 155, 742 18,797
iDeficiency) of Revenues
{Under) Expenditures {342 585) (§100,376) {($80,579) 519,797
{continued)
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Bedford City School District

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budgat and Actual (Budgel Basis) - Wocatianal Education (continued]

Special Revenue Fund - For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2001

Other Financing Sources [Uses)
Operating Transfers [n
Aovances In
Advances Ot
Refund of Prior Years Receipts
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Met Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance - Beginning of Year

Encumbrances - End of Year

Fund Balance - End of Year

Wariance with
Final Budget
Criginal Final Positive
Budgat Budget Actual {Negative]
§ - 13 513 5 -
- 80,000 60,000 -
(32,000) (32,000} {32,000) -
H (5B8) (G8E) :
{32,000} 27,325 27.325 -
{74,585) (73,051) (53,254) 19,797
74,585 74,585 74,585 -
= . T.BZd T.522
§ - $1,534 $28,953 $27,419
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Bedford City School District

Schedule of Rewenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balanca
Budget and Actual (Budget Basis) - Title |
Special Revenus Fund - For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2001

Reveniies
Restricled Grands in Ald - State
Total Revenues

Expenditures
Current
Instruction;
Special:
Salaries and Wages
Fringe Benefits
Purchased Senices
Materials and Supplies

Total Special
Total Inatruction

Support Services:
Instructional Staff
Purchased Sefvices
Tofal Instrectional Staff

Total Support Services

Operation of Non-Instructional Services:
Communily Sefvices!
Salarles and Wages
Fringe Bensfits
Purchased Services
Materials and Supplles
Capital Cutlay - New
Total Community Services

Total Operation of Non-Instructicnal
Services

Total Expenditures

{Ceficiency ) of Revanuas
{Under) Expanditures

Othar Financing Sources [Uses)
Operating Transfers In
Advances R
Adwvances Out
Refund of Prior Years Receipis
Tatal Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Wariance with
Final Budget
Original Final Positive
_ Budget Budget Actual _{Megative]
5438 015 $280 574 §280 574 $ -
436,018 280,574 260,574 5
374,698 338,768 241,437 98,331
74,957 79,039 60,453 18,586
23,435 850 - B50
10,801 2 801 2234 567
433 801 422 458 304 124 118,334
483,901 422 458 304,124 118,334
600 £00 = 800
&00 EO0 = &00
00 00 - &00
34,337 35,002 20,989 14,003
9635 9 427 4,059 5,358
4150 . 5 _
7118 ¥.0a1 1,163 5,018
3,000 3,000 - 3,000
5B 241 54 §10 26 221 28,285
58 241 54,510 26 721 28,269
542 742 477 568 330,345 147,223
(44,723 {196 954) {48, 771) 147 223
= oed =] -
- 150,000 160,000 .
{115,000) {115, 000) {115,000} .
- (2,78T) 2787
__(§115,000) 343,173 $45,960 $2,787
{continuead)
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Bedford City School District
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual (Budget Basis) - Title | (continued)
ESpecial Revenue Fund - For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2001

Varnance with

Final Budget

Crigimal Firal Fositive

__ Buoget Budget Actual {Megative)

Net Change in Fund Balance ($159,723) ($153,821) ($3.811) §150,010
Fund Balkance - Beginning of Year 158,723 158,723 158,723 -

Encumbrances - End of Year - = 938 ee8
Fund Balance - End of Year _ 5 - $5,902 $156 910 $151,008




Badford City School District
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Batance

Budget and Actual [Budget Basis) - Title W

Special Revenue Fund - For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2001

RviEnies
Rastricted Grants in Aid - State
Total Revenues

Expenditures
Current:
Irskruction:
Regular
Salaries and Wages
Fringe Benefits
Purchased Services
Materlals and Supplies
Total Regular

Total Instruction

Support Services;
Pupil:
Salaries and Wages
Fringe Banafits
Furchased Ssrvices
Todal Pupil

Imstructional Staff:
Salaries and Wages
Fringe Bensfits
Purchaszed Sarvices
Total Instructional Staff

Total Support Services

Operation of Mon-Instructional Services:
Community Servicas:
Materials and Supplies
Capital Qutlay - Mew
Total Community Senvices

Total Operation of Mon-Inatructional
Sernvices

Total Expenditures

i Deficiency) of Revenues
[Uinder) Expendifures

Other Financing Sources (Usas)
Advances In
Advances Out
Refund of Prior Years Receipts
Tatal Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Vanance wilh
Final Budget
Crriginal Final Fosite
Budget Budget Actual (Negative )
$39,144 $13.258 $13,250 5 -
39,144 13.258 13,255 3
5,000 5,000 5,000 -
4912 40812 4012 -
3 500 3,500 3,261 238
4768 4,760 3422 1,338
18,181 18,172 165585 1,577
18,181 18,172 18,595 1,577
2,000 2,000 - 2,000
1,000 1,000 - 1,000
__3,000 3,000 2,797 203
6,000 6,000 2797 3,203
2,000 2,000 - 2,000
1,000 1,000 - 1,000
4000 4,000 88 3,801
7,000 7.000 93 6,801
13,000 13,000 2,896 10,104
£812 5713 3,203 2410
6,599 5,295 3,040 2259
11,211 11,012 6,343 4659
21 11,012 6. 343 4 BB
42,352 42 184 25834 16,350
(3,248) (28 825) (12575 18380
- 30,000 30,000
{12,000) {12,000} (12,000}
SRR ARl {198y (188} -
(§12,000) 517,801 $17 801 5 -
[continued)

-127-



Bedford City School District
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual (Budget Basia} - Title Vi {continued)
Special Revenue Fund - For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007

Criginal Firal
Budgst Budgst Actual
Wet Change in Fund Balance {$15.248) {$11,124) §5,226
Fund Balance - Beginning of Year 15,248 15,248 15,244
Encumbrances - End of Year - 7,262
Fund Balance - End of Year 5 - 54,124 $27,738

1123"’

variance with

Final Budgst
Positive
_{Negative]

$16,350

7,262
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Bedford City School District
Schedule of Revenues, Expendifures and Changes In Fund Balance
Budpget and Actual (Budget Basis) - Drug Free Education
Special Revenue Fund - For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2001

Variance with
Final Budget
Driginal Final Posithve
Budget Budget Actual {Megative)
Revenueas
Restiicted Grants In Ald - State $32.176 §10345  $10345 £ -
Total Revenues 32176 10345 10,345 I
Expenditunes
Cument:
Insfruction:
Ragular:
Purchased Services 17,086 13,5346 2,587 11.358
Matariass and Supplies 5 080 7,078 5,937 1,141
Tatal Regutar 2217H 21,024 8524 12 504
Tedad Instruction 22178 21,024 8,524 12,500
Support Services:
Fupil:
Salaries and Wages 7,033 4,748 4,748 -
Fringe Benefits 1,345 268 258 .
Purchased Sarvices 2Mm2 1,187 1,187 -
Materiats and Supplias 53 - - -
Tatal Pupil 10,443 6,203 6,203 -
Instructional Staff.
Salaries and Wages £, 200 7,200 4,585 2,233
Fringe Benafis a74 1,413 241 572
Purchagsed Services 8610 9435 3665 5770
Tatal Instructicnal Staft 15__.?'!-4 16,048 5.4 8577
Total Support Services 26,227 24,251 15,674 8577
Total Expenditures 48,403 45 275 24,188 21.077
|Deficiency) of Revenues
{Under) Expendifures {16,227 [ 34, 530} (13,853} 21,077
Other Financing Sources (Usas)
Operating Transfers In - - 24 2
Advances In - 25,000 235,000 -
Advances Out {15,500) (15,500) (15,500} -
Refund of Prior Yeans Recelpls - - 13,128) - 3.128
Tokal Other Financing Sources {Uses) {15,500] 6,372 9,524 3.150
Het Change In Fund Balance [31,727) (28, 558) (4,331) 24,227
Fund Balance - Baginning of Year a1 e 31,727 31, 7ET -
Encumbrances - End of Year - - _ 450 450
Fund Balance - End of Year 5 - $3.169 S2TH4E  S24BTT




Bedford City School District

Schadule of Revenues, Expendiiures and Changesa in Fund Balance

Budget and Aclual (Budget Basis) - Preschool Handicapped
Speclal Revenue Fund - Faor the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2001

Yarnance with
Final Budget
Ciriginal Fimal Positive
_ Budget = Budget Actual {Negalive]
Revenues
Restricted Grants in Aid - State §40,239 531 469 $31.489 5 -
Total Revenues 40,239 31,469 31,469 -
Expenditures
Current:
Instruction:
Salaries and Wages 4814 4 638 4,638
Total Special 4,814 4,638 4,638
Total Instruction 4,814 4,638 4 638 -
Support Services:
Ealaries and Wages 26,589 26,689 24 023 2,556
Total Instructional Staff 26,589 26,583 24 023 2,566
Total Support Senices 26,589 26,589 24,023 2,586
Dperation of Non-Instructional Senices:
Community Services:
Purchased Services 6,145 5742 5,736 ;]
Total Community Services 6 145 5,742 5,736 []
Total Operation of Non-Instructional
Services 6,145 b.742 5,736 L]
Tatal Expenditures 37,548 36,964 34,357 2572
Excess [Deficiancy] of Revenues
Cneer (Under) Expenditures 2651 [5,500) [2.928) 2,572
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Advances [n - 10,000 10,000 -
Advances Out {23,000) {23.000) (23,000} -
Total Other Financing Sources {Uses) {23,000) {13,000) {13,000}
MNet Change in Fund Balanca (20.309) (18,500) [15,928) 2,572
Fund Balance - Beginning of Year 20,308 20,308 20,309 =
Encumbrances - End of Year - - 205 05
Fund Balance - End of Year 5 - §1808  s4888 53077
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Bedford City School District

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual (Budget Basis) - Goals 2000

Special Revenue Fund - For the Fiscal Year Emded June 30, 2001

Revenues
Restricted Grants in Aid - State
Total Revenues

Expandilures
Current.

Support Services:
Irstructhonal Staff;
Ealaries and Wages
Fringe Benefits
Furchazed Services
Materials and Supplies
Total Instructional Staff

Total Suppart Services
Total Expanditures

Met Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance - Beginning of Year
Encumbrances - End of Year

Fund Balance - End al Year

Wariance with
Final Budget
Criginal Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negativa)
$45,000 45 000 545 000 5 -
45,000 A5, 000 45,000 -
21,000 21,000 7,528 13,474
3,700 3,700 1,145 2355
12,100 12,100 10,300 1,800
8,200 _B,200 7,200 1,000
45,000 45,000 261711 18,829
45,000 45,000 26171 18,829
45,000 45,000 26171 18,829
- - 18,820 18,829
3 - 3,200 4,200
5 - § - $£22.029 $22 028
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Bedford City School District
Schedule of Revenues, Expendilures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual {Budget Basis) - Title VIR
Special Revenue Fund - For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2001

Wariance with
Final Budget
Driginal Final Posltive
Budget Eudget Actual {Megativa)
Revenues
Restricted Grants in Ald - State $72220 848260 _sa8200 % -
Total Revenues 72,220 48 250 48 280 -
Expenditures
Curment:
Insfruction
Regular.
Balaries and Wages B0, 262 60,282 53 6B7 6,545
Fringe BeneMs 11,938 11,830 & 601 3329
Total Regular T&,220 Te212 G2 288 D od
Total Instruction 72,220 72212 52 288 9,524
Total Expenditures. 72,220 72,212 62,268 9,524
iDeficiency) of Revenues
{Under) Expenditures 5 (23 922} (13 908) 9524
Other Finanzing Sources
Advances In - ~ 25,000 25,000
Total Other Financing Sources - 25,000 25,000 i
Net Change in Fund Balance . 1,078 11,002 9,924
Fund Balance - Beginning of Year - = - -
Encumbrances - End of Year - - -
Fund Balance - End of Year ! - _l-i.l.'l]_"g_ $11,002 $9,924
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Bedford City School District

Schedule of Revenues, Expandilures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Aclual (Budget Basis) - Miscellaneous Federal Grants
Special Revenus Fund - For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2001

Revenues
Rastriched Grams in Ald - Stale
Total Revenues

Expendifunes
Curnenl:
Instruction:
Reqular:
Ealaries and Wages
Fringe Benefits
Purchased Sendices
Malerials and Supples
Tatal Regular

YWocational Education:
Salanies and Wages
Fringe Benefits
Furchased Services
Materials and Supplies
Capital Outlay - New
Total Vocational Education

Total Instruction

Support Services;
Central:
Purchased Senvices
Total Central

Total Suppon Services
Total Expendifures

Excess of Revenuss
Cwier Expendiures

Oither Financing Sources [Useas)
Advances In
Advances Out
Refund of Prior Years Receipis

Tofal Cther Financing Sources | Lises)

Met Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance - Beginning of Year
Encumbrances - End of Year

Fund Balance - End of Yaar

Variance with
Final Budget
Crriganal Final Positive
_ Buaget Budget Actual __[Negative)
3108 808 358,200 F102 431 5423
108,808 88,200 102,431 4 231
- 9,317 a.21r -
B,367 3,050 3,082 {42)
1,582 - = E
2401 4 =
12, 350 8,367 & 408 (42
1,035 1,035 1,035 -
162 162 152

11,153 11,148 11,144

16,326 16,347 16,347

42,494 42 478 42478 -

71,160 71,160 71,160 2

A3,510 79,527 75,568 (42)

85 a5 5 -
85 85 95 -
g5 895 8h -

83,605 79,622 70 664 (42)

25,203 18,578 22 767 4185

. 20,000 20,000 -
(83,500} (83,500) (83,500) -

- (3 9B3) {3,841) 42
(83,500) (67 483} (67 441) 427
[58,287) (48,9035) (44,674) 4,21

55 TET 55, 78T 55 77 =

746 _T48
($2500)  s6892 _  $11.869 $4.077
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Bedford City School District
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Achual (Budget Basis) - Debt Service Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2001

Wartancoe with
Final Budget
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual {Megative)
Revenues
Tanes £007 053 51,055 350 51,080,545 £5,188
Unrestricted Grands in Aid - State 100,000 100,713 100,713 -
Tatal Hevenuss 1,082 053 1,156 072 1,161,258 5,186
Expenditures
Current:
Cebt Serdce:
Principal 465,000 465,000 485,000 .
Interast o4l 335 &48, 325 648, 325 -
Total Debt Service 1,113,325 1,113,325 1,113,325 .
Total Expenditures 1,113,325 1,113,325 1,113,325 &
Net Change in Fund Balance [21.272) 42 74T 47,833 5188
Fund Balance - Beginning of Year 1,996 274 1,186 274 1,188 274 -
Encumbrances - End af Year - - - -
Fund Balance - End of Year 51,175,002 51,238,021 51,344 207 $5,188



Bedford City School District
Echedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual (Budget Basis) - Permanent Improvement
Capital Projects Fund - For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2001

Revenues
Taxes
Unrestricted Grants in Aid - Stale
Total Revenues

Expenditures
Current:
SUppo Senices
Ciperation and Maintenance of Plant
Purchased Services
Capital Cutlay - New

Total Operation and Maintenance of Plant

Pupi Transportation:
Capital Cutlay - Replacemant
Total Pupll Transportation

Taotal Support Senvices

Capital Outlay
Total Capital Outlay

Total Expenditures

| Deficiency) of Revenues
{Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources

Sale of Assets
Tot@l Other Financing Sources

Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance - Beginning of Year
Encumbrances - End of Year

Fund Balance - End of Year

Variance with
Final Budget
Ciriginal Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual [Megative)
$566,673 §507 681 5551,154 853,473
50,000 47,158 47,153 ;
616,673 554 840 608,313 53,473
. 175 175 .
503,676 337,434 594,757 2,637
£03 876 557,609 554 872 2,637
458 208 "5912‘]@_ e ; q"':.JEI ED'E -
459 208 453 208 459,208 :
863,084 1,016,817 1,014,180 2637
7,803 17,700 17,700 I
7,803 17.700 17,700 =
970,687 1,034,517 1,031,860 2 637
{354,214) (479,677) {423,567) 56,110
. 246,110 245,110 o
- 246,110 245,110 "
{354,214) (233.567) {177,457} 56,110
500,325 500,325 500,325 .
a - 515,250 515,250

$146,111 $266,758 $838,118 _ $571,360
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Bedford City School Disfrict
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual (Budget Basis) - Building
Capital Projects Fund - For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2001

Warlance with
Final Budget
Criginal Fireal Positive
Budget Budgei Actual (MNegative)
Revanuas
Eamings on Investments 11,192 $13,059 £35,618 323,550
Total Revenues 11,182 13,058 35618 23,560
Expenditures
Current;
Support Services:
Crperation and Maintenance of Plant
Capital Outlay - New - 313,301 313,301 -
Total Operation and Maintenance of Plant - 313,31 313,30 -
Tolal Support Sarvices - 313,30 413,30 -
Total Expenditures - 413,39 413,30 -
Net Change in Fund Balance 11,192 (300,242) (276,682) 23,580
Fund Balanca - Beginning of Year 301,784 301,784 301,794 -
Encumbrances - End of Year . : - o
Fund Balance - End of Year $312,986 $1,552 $25112 $23,560



Bedford City School District

Schedule of Revenues, Expendiures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual [Budget Basis) - Capital Replacement

Capital Projects Fund - For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2001

Other Financing Sources
Operating Transfers In

Total Other Financing Sources

Wet Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance - Beginning of Year
Encumbrances - End of Year

Fund Balance - End of Year

Variance with
Firal Budget
Ciriginal Final Puositive
Eu-:lgul E-l.ﬂgal. Actual [Megative]
!15_;3,_1:_!011_ $163 000 _$1683,000 5 -
163,000 163,000 163,000 I
163,000 163,000 163,000
5163000 $163,000 _‘Ii‘.'r v B
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Bedford City School District
Echedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual (Budge! Basis) - Vocational Equipment
Capital Projects Fund - For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2001
Warance with

Final Budget
Criginal Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual {Negative}
Revenuas
Restricted Grants in Aid - State 524 883 %24,883 $24 BA3 5 -
Total Revenues 24 BEI 24,883 24 83 -
Other Financing Sources
Cperating Transfers In . BE0 B20 -
Total Dther Financing Sources . 880 B0 -
Met Change In Fund Balance 24 883 25,773 25773 i
Fund Balancs - Beginning of Year 16,382 16,382 16,382
Encumbrances - End of Year . - - -
Fund Balance - End of Year — iR $42165  $42165  § -




Bediord City School District

Schadule of Revenuses, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual (Budget Basis] - SchoolMet

Capital Projects Fund - For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2001

Revanues
Restricted Grants in Aid - Siate
Total Revenues

Expenditures
Current:
Support Services
Instructional Staff:
Materials and Supplies
Capital Outiay - New
Tofal Instructional Staff

Total Support Sendoes
Tolal Expandilures

Excess of Revenues
Cver Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Dperating Transfens In
Advances Qul
Total Other Financing Sources {Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance - Beginning of Year

Encumbrances - End of Year

Fund Balance - End of Year

‘Variance with

Final Budge!
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actusl {Negative]
£33.471 £33.471 533,471 i -

33,471 33,471 33,471 r
1,736 1,736 1,506 230
21,000 21,000 21,000 -
22,736 22,736 22,506 230
22738 227 22,508 230
22,736 22,736 22,508 230
10,735 10,735 10,565 230

- - 31 a

(12,471) {12.471) {12,471}

(12,471} {12,471) {12440} 31
(1,736) (1.738) (1,475} 261
1,736 1,736 1,735
- - 21,031 21,031

_% - 5 - §21,292 $21,202
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Bedford City Schoal District
Schedile of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balancs

Budget and Actual (Budget Basia] - Power Up Technology
Capital Projects Fund - For the Fiscal Year Ended June 20, 2001

Expanditures
Current
Support Services!
Operation and Maintenance of Plant

Capital Qutlay - New
Total Qperation and Maintenance of Plant
Total Support Senvices
Total Expenditures
QOther Financing Sources [Uses)

Ciperating Transfers In

Refund of Prior Years Receaipts
Tetal Other Financing Sources | Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balanca
Fund Balance - Beginming of Year
Encumbrances - End of Year

Fund Balance - End of Yaar

Variance with
Final Budget
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual [Negative)
__§196788  $196,788 3196, 758 5 -
196, 788 196, 788 196, 7568 z
196, 788 186 TEE 186,788 .
196,788 196,768 186,728 .
2,195 2,185 2,185
(90,609) {90,609} {90,608} _ *
(BB, 414) (88,414} {BB.414) =
(285 .202) (285,202) {285,202)
285,202 285,202 285,202 -
5 - £ - £ - 5 -
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Badford City Schools District
Schedule of Revenies, Expendilures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual [Budget Basis) - Special Trust
Expendable Trust Fund - For the Flscal Year Ended June 30, 2001

Variance with
Final Budget
Qriginal Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual {Negative)
Revenues
Other 5 - £2 156 $2,156 5 -
Tatal Revenuss g 2,158 2,166 -
Expenditures
Current;
Instruction:
Reqular:
Fringe Banefis 72 T2 - 72
Purchassed Semvices 562 562 - 562
Materials and Supplies 11,534 9,514 2,140 Targ
Criher 1,660 1,680 - 1,660
Tatal Regutar 13 828 11,813 2140 B fE73
Special:
Purchased Services . o0 100 - 100
Total Special 100 120 - 100
Total Instructicn 13,828 11,8913 2140 4773
Operation of Mon-Instructionsl Servces:
Community Senvices:
Ciher 7. 730 11,801 1,822 10,078
Total Community Serdices T, 730 11,801 1,822 10,079
Total Operation of Nan-Instructional
Services 7.730 11,801 1822 10,079
Capital Qutlay 254 254 . 254
Total Capéal Cutiay 254 254 - 254
Total Expendidures 21812 24 088 3,962 20,108
Mat Change in Fund Balance (21,912) (21,912) {1,806) 20,106
Fund Balance - Beginning of Year 21,912 21,912 21,092 .
Encumbrances - End of Year - - 1,160 1,100
Fund Balance - End of Year £ - § - 1,206 $21,206
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Bediord City School District
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual (Budget Basis) - Food Service
Enterprise Fund - For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2001

WVariance with
Final Budget
Original Final Positive
Budpet Budget Auctual (Megative)
Operating Revenues
Sales §763,800 $798,201 5801532 $3.31
Total Operating Revenues 763,600 738 201 801,532 3,33
Qperating Expenses
Salaries and Wages 401 200 482,200 491,927 273
Fringe Beneftis 118,522 120,722 120 626 86
Purchased Sendces 12 B67 12 867 11,507 1,360
Materials and Supplies 06,320 535320 535 301 15
Capital Ouiay 15000 15000 1145 13,855
Total Operating Expenses 1144808 1,176,109 1,160,506 15,603
(Deficiency) of Operating Revenuss
(Under} Operating Expenses (381,10%) (377 908) (356.,974) 18,834
Mon-Operating Reveniues
State and Federal Granis 288,000 316,487 316,487 -
Total Mon-Operating Revenusas 288 000 316 457 316 497 -
(Deflciency) of Revenues
{Under) Expenses Before Operaling
Tranafers and Advances (83, 109) (B1,411) (42.477) 18,934
Dperating Transfers In 100,000 63,281 63291 -
Advances In 125,000 100,000 100,000 o
Advances Out (220.000)  (220000) (2200000 -
Met Change in Fund Balance (&8, 109) (118,120) (99,188) 18,934
Fund Balance - Beginning of Year 142 847 142,947 142,847 -
Encumbrances - End of Year - - 20088 20,088

Fund Balance - End of Year

. $54.838 24827 @ 363849 @ §39.022
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Bedford City School District

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Budget Baslg) - Uniform School Supplies
Emtarpsise Fund - For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2001

Operating Revenues
Classroom Materials and Faes
Tatal Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses
Purchased Services
Total Operating Expanses
Mat Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance - Beginning of Year
Encumbrances - End of Year

Fund Balance - End of Year

‘Variance with
Final Budget
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual __{(Negative)
$16.000 $16,101 £16,101 5 -
16,000 16,101 16,101 .
19,400 18,400 19,230 170
19 400 10 400 19,230 170
{3,400) (3.299) 3,129) 170
TAE36 ThE3G 78,626 !
$75,236 §75,337 $75,.507 $170
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Bedford City School District
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual (Budgel Basis) - Summer School
Enterprize Fund - For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2001

‘Wariance with
Final Budget
Original Final Posifive
Budget Budget Actal (Megative)
Dperating Revenues
Tuition S40000 540,042 $45,190 $5,148
Total Operating Revenues 40,000 _ 40,042 45,190 5,148
Operating Expenses
Salaries and Wages 26,885 40,658 40,642 25
Fringe Beneftis 4 807 3,655 3,655 -
Purchased Senvices a0 = - )
Materials and Supplies 3,038 115 115 -
Toltal Operaling Expenses 37,130 44 428 44 412 26
Excess (Deficiency) of Dperating Revenues
Chver (Under) Operafing Expenses
Before Advances 2870 (4,386) 7T 5174
Advances In . 20,170 20,170 -
Adwvances Out __{58,000) (58,000} _{38,000)
Net Change in Fund Balance (55,120) {42,228) {37,052) 5.174
Fund Balance - Beginning of Year 68,281 68,281 68,281 -
Encumbrances - End of Year - - - -
Fund Balance - End of Year $13,181 _ $26,085 $31,228 $5,174




Bediord City School District
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual (Budget Basis) - Adutt and Community Education
Enterprise Fund - For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2001

Warlance with
Final Budget
Ciriginal Finai Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
Operating Revenues
Tuition $35,000 35,766 511,833 56,067
Total Operating Revenues 35,000 5,766 11,833 6,067
Operating Expenses
Salaries and Wages 26,155 25 B35 26913 2582
Fringe Benefiis 4,178 5178 4 3304 44
Purchased Services 2,581 6 561 5460 101
Matesials and Supplies 2,000 30 B14 116
Total Operaling Expenses 35,364 42 564 38,521 4,043
(Deficiency) of Cperating Revenuwes
{Under) Operating Expenzas (364) (35,798)  (26,688) 10,110
MNon-Operating Revenues
State and Federal Grants - 32 32 -
Total Men-Operating Revenues - ) a2 32 .
(Deficlency) of Revenues
{Under) Expenses Before Operating
Transfers and Advances [(364) (36, TE6) (26.656) 10,110
Operating Transfers In - 24, 488 24,499 -
Advances In - 10,000 10,000 -
Advances Oul (48 000) {48,000) (48,000) .
Met Change in Fund Balance (48 384) (50,26T) (40,157) 10,410
Fund Balance - Beginning of Year 53329 53329 53,329 -
Encumbrances - End of Year = = -
Fund Balance - End of Year $4 865 $3.062 $13,172 $10,110
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Bedford City School District
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual (Budget Basis) - Recraation
Enferprise Fund - For the Fiscal Year Ended Jume 30, 2001
Yariance with
Final Budgei
Original Final Positive

_Budget =~ Budget = Actual  (Negative]
Operating Revenues

Classronm Materisls and Fees £10,000 %EEH §8,638 32,040
Total Operating Revenues 10,000 X B85350 2,040
Operating Expenses
Salaries and Wages 7,000 7000 5914 &8
Fringe Benefts 725 T25 T10 15
Purchased Services 775 78 105 670
Materials and Supplies 1.000 1,000 80 10
Capital Outlay 500 500 5 500
Total Operating Expenses 10,000 10,000 7819 2 181
Net Change in Fund Balance - (3,402) 819 4221
Fund Balance - Beginning of Year 7382 7322 Tid =

Encumbrances - End of Year - - - -

Fund Balance - End of Year §7,322 $3,920 $8,141 £4.221




Bedford City School District
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes In Fund Balance
Budget and Actual (Budgel Basis) - Special Enterprises
Enterprise Fund - For the Fiacal Year Ended June 30, 2001

Operating Revenies
Sales
Total Operating Revenues
Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance - Beginning of Year
Encumbrances - End of Year

Fund Balance - End of Year

Varlanoe with
Final Budget
Original Final Pasitive

Budget Budget Actual {(Nepative)
'§ $12,750 §12750  § -
- 12,750 12,750 -
- 12,750 12,750 -
67 508 67,508 7,508 -
~ §&7 508 $680.258 $80,258 £ -
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Bedford City School District
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual (Budgel Basis) - Warehouse
Intermal Service Fund - For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2001

Warianoce with
Final Budget
Crriginal Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual {Negative]
Operating Revenues
Other $25,000 514,573 $15,523 $950
Total Operating Revenues 25,000 14,573 15,523 950
Operating Expenses
Materials and Supplics 25,000 25,000 11,830 13,070
Total Operating Expensas 25,000 25,000 11,530 13,070
Net Change in Fund Balan - {10,427) 1,693 14,020
Fund Balance - Baginning of Yaar 25,724 25,724 25724 -
Encumbrances - End of Year - - 2.5 2,501
Fund Balance - End of Year $25724 $15,297 $31.818 $16,521
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Bedford City School District

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual {Budget Basis) - Self-funded Benefils

Intemal Service Fund - For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2001

Operating Revenues
Other

Total Operating Revenues
O perating Expenses
Purchased Services
Total Operating Expenses

Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balanoe - Beginning of Year
Encumbrances - End of Year

Fund Balance - End of Year

‘\Variance with
Final Budget
Oiriginal Final Positive
_ Budget ~ Budget Actwal  (Megative)
$520000  $920 000 $021,672 $1,672
820,000 920,000 821 672 1,672
925,000 925,000 821,027 3,973
925,000 925,000 921,027 3,973
(5,000) (5,000) 645 5,645
813,746 813,748 913,746 .
$908 746 $908. 748 £914,391 _$5.645




Bedford City School District
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual (Budget Basis) - Computer Network
internal Serivee Fund - For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2001

Wariance with
Final Budget
Original Final Fositive
Budget Budget Actual (Megative)
Fund Balance - Baginning of Year 5578 578 5578 5 -
Encumbrances - End of Year " - - -
Fund Balance - End of Year §5TE $578 __ §5Té8 % -
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Bedford City School District

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual (Budget Basis) - Mon-expendable Trust

Internal Serivee Fund - For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2001

Oparaling Revenuas:
Other

Total Cperating Revenuses
Dperating Expenses:

Cither
Total Operating Expenses

Met Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance - Beginning of Year
Encumbrances - End of Year

Fund Balance - End of Year

\ariance with
Final Budget
Diriginial Final Positive
_ Budget ~ Budget Actual __{Negative)
$1,800 $1,800 $8,088 $6,288
1,800 1,800 8,088 6,268
1,800 1,800 1.800 -
1,600 1,800 1800 _ -
- - 5,288 6, 28R
dd 44 44 444 44 444
544,444 544 444 £50,7T32 56,268
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Bedford City School District
Rafio of Nef General Obligation Bonded Debt to Assessed
Value and Net Bonded Debr Per Capita
Last Teh Fisca! Years

Net General Ratio of Net
Obligation Assessed Debt to Met Debt
Year Bonded Debt Walug Population (1)  Assessed Value Per Capita
2009 511,135,000 $005 568,111 31,656 1.38 % 5361.73
2000 11,615,000 720,522 517 32.716 1.59 355.03
18588 12,050,000 728,200 650 J2. 716 1.85 368.32
1858 12,440,000 727,594,880 X218 1.7 38024
1997 12,600,000 B9, 247,745 3276 1.83 30125
15996 13,090,000 GET, 591,848 32,716 1.80 400.11
1585 13,450,000 GE3 682 580 32,718 157 41111
1854 13,480,000 837,792 5568 32,716 211 412 03
1953 13,815,000 624,877,003 32,716 22 42227
1552 220,000 611,844 454 32,718 .08 1584

Source: Cuyahoga County Auditor and Disirict Financial Reconds.

i1} Information through 2000 ablained from the Cleveland Plain Dealer Municipabty Frofile.

Crata for 2009 from the U5, Census Bureau, Census 2000,



Bedford City School District
Computation of Legsl Debi Margin

June 30, 2001

Assessed Valuation
Debt Limit - 9% of Aszsessed Value (1)
Amount of Debt Applicaible to Debt Limit:
Genaral Obligation Bonds
Less: Amount Available in the Debt Sendce Fund
Amount of Debl Subject to the Limi

Voted Debt Margin

Dbt Limidt - 0_9% of Assessed Value (1)
Amount of Debt Applicable
Unvoled Energy Conservation Debi Margin

Drebt Limit - 0.1% of Assessed Value (1)

Amaunt of Debt Applicable
All Oriver Unvoted Debt Margin

Source: Guyahoga County Auditor and District Financial Recards,

805,869,111
§72,537,220
11,135,000
1,354 436
9,780,564

——— e

$62,756,656

$T.253.722

£10,000

38443722

$805,960
225,000

3580 969

(1) Ohio Bond Law sels a limit of 3% for voted debt, 8110 of 1% for umvoted
energy conservation projects and 1710 of 1% for all other unvoted debt.



Bedford City School District
Computation of Direct and Overiapping General Obligafion Bonded Debt
December 31, 2000

General Cbligation Percentage Armount

Bonded Debt Applicable to Applicable 1o

Jurksdiction __Owtstanding  School District (1) _School Districl
Bedford City School District §11,135,000 100.00 % $11,135,000
Cuyahoga County 231,044 636 2.85 6,584,772
Badford City 12,145,000 31.1% 3,783,168
Bedford Heights City 8,045 000 29.99 2,412 695
Cakwood Village 1,968,000 13.99 275,323
Walton Hillz Village 180,000 21.87 38,366
Regional Transit Authority 98,030,000 2.82 2,764 446
$362 547 838 $26,994, 771

Source:
District: district records, Other: Cuyahoga County Auditor. Data is presented on a
calendar year basis (incheding District data) because that is the manner in which
information is mantained by the County Auditor.

{1} Percentages were determined by dividing the essessed valuation of the political

subdivision kocated within the boundaries of the District by the total assessed
valuation of the subdivision. The valuations used were for the 2000 collection year.
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Bediord City School District
Ratio af Anncal Dedt Senvice Expendifures for
General Obligation Bonded Debl o General Governmaental Expendilures
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Ratio Of Debt
Service (o
Total Total Governmental Fund
Debt Governmental Fund Expenditures
Year Principal (1) Interest (1) Service  Expenditures [2){3] (Percentages)
2001 §750,000 $702,849 1,452,840 $3B8,633,713 3TE %
2000 690,000 737,011 1,427,011 36,151,341 398
1949 £35,000 767421 1,402,424 36,532,877 384
1508 590,000 794,362 1,384,362 35,900,937 375
1947 510,000 &28,061 1,338,061 35,784 803 374
1906 520,000 800,150 1,329,150 32207776 413
1995 485,000 832233 1,317,233 35,194,539 3s4
1904 12 480,000 1,071,118 13 551,118 52135711 2599
15903 3,505,000 130,634 3635634 33,512,808 10,85
1992 2,125,000 80,103 2215103 28,580,430 748

Sowca: Distnct Financial Records

11] Includes general cbligation bonds and enerngy consersation bands,

2] Includes, general, special revenws, capilal projects and debt servce funds

{3} Fiscal years 1853-2001 are reported on the US GAAP modified acorual Dagss
1852 = reported on the cash basis
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Bedford City School District

Demographic Stalislics

Le=f Ten Yearz

Cuyahoga Bedford  Walton Hills  Oakwood
County Bedford City Heights City  Village Village School Unemployman:
Year Population Population Population Population Population Enrollment (1) Fate (2}
2001 1,383,878 14,214 11,373 2,400 3,667 3,844 45 %
2000 1,412,140 14,822 12,131 23M 3,392 3,B67 4.5
1940 1,412,140 14,822 12131 2371 3,882 3,888 4.6
1996 1,412,140 14 822 12,13 2371 4,382 3,873 45
1997 1,412,140 14 822 12,131 2,371 3,392 4,004 41
1998 1,412,140 14 B2Z 12131 231 3,382 3,877 a7
1895 1,412,140 14,822 1213 2,374 3,392 4,003 49
1994 1,412,140 14,522 12,131 23T 3,352 3,821 53
1843 1,412,140 14, 822 1213 2,371 3,352 4, 7O6 76
1942 1,412,140 14,822 12,131 2,371 3,392 3,740 E3

Sources. Population data in this table through 2000 was provided by the Cleveland Plain Dealer

Municipality Profile {1990 Federal Census). Population data for 2001 was provided by the U, &, Census
Bureau, Census 2000. Other data in this table was provided by the State Employment Bureau and fram
[isfrict records.

(1} June Educational Management Information System data.

(2} Represents Cuyahoga County, Data from Chio State Employment Bureauw.
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Bedford City School District
Properfy Value
Financial institution Deposits and Building Permiifs
Last Ten Calendar Years

Financial
Property Inetitution Value Of
Value Depaosits (000's) Building
Year {Real Estate Only) Banks Permits Issued (1)
2000 5512 354 242 551,542 754 $33,825 855
1698 508,628,070 57,816,942 28,575,569
1898 S0 682 510 58,904 556 21253286
1997 4632 475 340 53,541,871 8,621 626
1896 463 433,1T0 27 088,211 8.715.925
1995 458 816,500 22 458 573 14,760,742
1204 418786220 20,885 453 11,833 283
1993 415423200 21,009,421 5,005,201
1982 403,888 520 19,379,280 1,449 493
1984 361,181,050 18,352,242 16,494 070

Sauree: Federal Ressarve Bank of Cleveland, Cities
of Bedford and Bedford Heights, and the Cuyahoga County Auditor,

(1} Includes the cities of Badford and Bediord Helghts for 1991 - 1097 the
cities of Bedford, Bedford Heights, and vilage of Cakwood for 1998-1990;
the cifies of Bedford, Bedford Heights, and villages of Cakwood and Walion
Hilts for 2000 and 2001,
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Bedford City School District
Principal Taxpayers
Feal Estate Froparly Tax
December 31, 2000

Percent of
Tatal Destrict
Assessed Real Azsessed
Mame of the Taxpayer Value (1) WValue
. Ford Motor Company $11,332,200 1.95 %
Rizer Foods Company TA1T 410 1.27
Bear Creek Investment Company 6,976,800 1.20
Bear Creek Properties Company 5,661 850 0.897
. Bedford Colony Club Apartmants 3,850,560 0.66
Mayfred Company 3617980 0.52
. Sysco Food Service 3,577 480 0.61
. South Pointe Towers LTD 3,575,500 0.61
Southgate Towers LLC 3,323,210 0.57
Aspen Woodside Village LLC ___ 3,097,570 _052
Taotal $52.432 BEQ B

Total District Real Estate
Assessed Value iﬁfﬁ,ﬁ_ﬂ 0,700

Spurce: Cuyshoga Couwnty Auditor

(1} Assessed values are for 2000,
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Bedford City School District

1.
2.

LR

10,

Frincipal Taxpayers
Tangibla Personal Property Tax
December 31, 1988
Pearcent of
Total District
Tangible
Aszessed Assessed
Name of the Taxpayer Value (1) Value
Ferd Mator Campany $30,955 140 18.07 %
Rini Rego Supermarkets 11,825,030 680
Ben Venue Lab, Incorporated 6,798,510 386
Ferro Corparation 3,820,470 223
Commanwealth Alsminum 2827 520 165
ITT Lester Industries, Inc. 2679270 1.58
Hertz Equipment Rental Corporation 2,481 200 1.45
Jay Pontiac Incorporated Z 404 560 1.40
Earie M. Jorgensen Company 2,180.110 1.27
. Schumann & Company 2,050,480 1.20
Total $68 083 290 3068 %
Total Destrict Tangible Personal
Assessed Value 5171,559 370

Source: Cuyahoga County Auditor
(1) Assessed values are for 2000.
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Bedford City School District

Frincipal Taxpayers
Bublic Utites Tangihie Propery Tax
December 31, 2000
Percent of
Tatal District
Public LitiEty
Assassed Assassad
MNama of Taxpayes Value (1] Valua
Cleveland Electric llluminating Company 341,719,081 80.38 %
Cihio Bell Telephone Company 4 880, 780 260
East Dhio Gas Company 4 461,000 860
Harfalk Bourthern Combined 738,170 1.42
Total 251 899 041 100.00 %
Total District Public UHility
Ascessed Value §51.899,041

Spurce: Cuyahoga County Auditor

i1) Assessed values are fior 2000
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Bedford City School District

Per Pupil Cosf
Last Ten Fiscal Yaars (1)
General Average
Fund Student
Year  Expenditures(2) Enrcliment
2001  §34,070,230 3,844
2000 32 851127 3,867
1909 33,233 088 3,888
1608 A2 687 087 3472
1897 31,883 282 4 039
1998 28,153,278 3,977
1995 27,887,073 4,003
1994 29607 298 3,821
1993 27,089,216 3,786
1892 24 B54 891 3,790

Source: Distrliet Financlal Records

Per Pupil
_Cost

53 8583
8 444
8,548
8,442
7,896
7,078
6,967
7551
7,158

6,558

Fiscal years 1993-2001 are reported on the US GAAP
imodified accrual) basis; 1992 is reported on the cash

basis

General Fund expenditures before other
financing (uses}.
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Bedford City School District
Certficated Slaff Education and Experience

June 30, 2001
Mumber
of Teachers
Degres and Administrators
Bachelor's Degres 45
Bachelor Including 150 Hours 65
Bachelor Including 180 Hours ar
Masler's Degree 54
Master's Degrea + 9 Hows 43
Master's Degree + 18 Howrs 12
Master's Dagree + 27 Houwrs 11
Master's Degree + 36 Hours 8
Master's Dagree + 45 Hows 16
Master's Degres + 54 Hows _ &
Total 208
Years Mumber
of of Teachers
Experience and Adminstrators
0-5 1M
6-10 56
11-15 38
18- 20 21
21-25 20
26 and over N
Total 288

-516-

Percentage
af
Total
15,10 %
21.81
12.42
1812
14.43

4.03

8.7

2047

100.00 %
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REPORTS ON COMPLIANCE AND ON THE
INTERNAL CONTROL STRUCTURE



REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Education
Bedford City School District

We have audited the basic financial statements of the Bedford City School District (the "District") as of and
for the year ended June 30, 2001, and have issued our report thereon dated October 26, 2001. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States of America.

Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District's basic financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we petformed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under
Government Anditing Standards. However, we noted certain immaterial instances of noncompliance, which we
have reported to management of the District in a separate letter dated October 26, 2001.



Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and petforming our audit, we considered the District's internal control over financial reporting
in order to determine our auditing procedutes for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the basic
financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporting. Our
consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters in the
internal control over financial reporting that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a
condition in which the design ot opetation of one or more of the internal control components does not
reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements in amounts that would be material in relation to
the basic financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by
employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the
internal control over financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, we noted other mattets involving the internal control over financial reporting, which we have
tepotrted to management of the District in a separate letter dated October 26, 2001.

This report is intended for the information of the Boatd of Education, management, the Auditor of State,

federal awarding agencies, and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by
anyone other than these specified parties.

th WLLP

Cleveland, Ohio
October 26, 2001



REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO
EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

Board of Education
Bedford City School District

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of the Bedford City School District (the "District") with the types of
compliance requirements described in the UJS. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133
Compliance Supplement that are applicable to its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2001.
The District's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors' results section of the
accompanying Schedule of Findings. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grants applicable to its major federal programs is the responsibility of the District's management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on the District's compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contamned in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States of America; and OMB Circular A-133,
Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133
requite that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on
a major federal program occutred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the
District's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessaty in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our
audit does not provide a legal determination of the District's compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the District complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above that
are applicable to its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2001.



Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of the District is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control
over compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to federal
progtams. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the District's internal control over
compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in
order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and
to test and report on the internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133.

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all matters in the
internal control structure that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness 1s a condition in which
the design or operation of one or mote of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively
low level the risk that noncompliance with applicable requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grants that would be material in relation to a major federal program being audited may occur and not be
detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions.
We noted no matters involving the internal control over compliance and its operation that we consider to
be matetial weaknesses.

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

We have audited the basic financial statements of the District as of and for the year ended June 30, 2001,
and have issued our report thereon dated October 26, 2001. Our audit was performed for the purpose of
forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The accompanying Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by OMB
Circular A-133 and is not a required part of the basic financial statements of the District. Such information
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in
out opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a
whole.

This report is intended for the information of the Board of Education, management, the Auditor of State,

federal awarding agencies, and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by
anyone other than these specified parties.

/jMMLLP

Cleveland, Ohio
October 26, 2001
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Bedford City School District

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2001

Federal
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/ CFDA Grant
Program or Cluster Title Number Number Receipts Expenditures
U.S. Department of Education via
Ohio Department of Education
Special Education Cluster:

Special Education - Grants to States 84.027 043562-6B-SF-01 95,589 $ 295,619
Special Bducation: Preschool Grants 84.173 043562-PG-51-00 24,140 29,254
043562-PG-51-99 7,329 4,637
31,469 33,801
Total Special Education Cluster 127,058 329,510
Vocational Education - Basic Grants to States 84.048 043562-20-C1-01 65,788 99,681
043562-20-C1-00 9,375 48,345
043562-20-C1-98 - 94
75,163 148,120
Title I Grants to Local Educational Agencies 84.010 043562-C1-§1-01 189,265 251,483
043562-C1-SD-01 2,295 -
043562-C1-51-00 21,818 25,352
043562-C1-SD-00 6,797 14,861
043562-C1-51-99 35,353 5,808
043562-C1-51-99C 31,842 31,842
287,370 329,346
Innovative Education Program Strategies 84.298 043562-C2-51-01 8,522 10,328
043562-C2-S1-00 4,737 8,244
13,259 18,572
Safe and Drug-Free Schools and Communities: 84.186 043562-DR-51-01 5,050 2,420
State Grants 043562-DR-51-00 5,295 9,883
043562-DR-51-99 - 11,446
10,345 23,749
Goals 2000: State and Local Education Systemic 84.276 043562-G2-82-01 18,000 -
Improvement Grants 043562-G2-52-00 23,059 22,971
41,059 2297
Eisenhower Professional Development - 84.281 043562-MS-S1-01 13,261 -
State Grants 043562-MS-S1-00 7,157 14,098
043562-MS-51-99C - 7,523
043562-MS-51-98C - 3,057
20,418 24,678
Class Size Reduction 84.340 043562-CR-S1-01 48,290 62,288
TOTAL U. S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION 622,962 $ 959,234




Bedford City School District

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS - CONTINUED

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2001

Federal
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/ CFDA Grant
Program or Cluster Title Number Number Receipts Expenditures
U.S. Department of Agriculture via
Ohio Department of Education
Nuttition Cluster:
National School Lunch Program 10.555 043562-LL-P1-01 $ 174,823 $ 174,823
043562-1.L-P4-01 35,714 35,714
043562-1L.L-P1-00 56,717 56,717
043562-LL-P4-00 12,969 12,969
280,223 280,223
School Breakfast Program 10.553 043562-05-PU-01 14,770 14,770
043562-05-PU-00 4,435 4,435
19,205 19,205
Food Distribution 10.550 N/A 48,631 49,385
Total Nutrition Cluster 348,059 348,813
TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE $ 348,059 $ 348,813
U.S. Department of Labor via
Ohio Department of Education -
Employment Services and Job Training 17.249 043562-WK-BE-00 $ 94,259 $ 78,823
043562-WK-BE-97 - 95
94,259 78,918
TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR $ 94,259 $ 78,918
TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
(from previous page) 622,962 959,234
GRAND TOTAL $ 1,065,280 $ 1,386,965
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BEDFORD CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

June 30, 2001

General

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards presents the activity of all
federal financial assistance programs of the District. The District's reporting entity is defined
in Note 1 to the District's basic financial statements.

Basis of A :

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditutes of Federal Awards is presented on the cash
basis of accounting. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the
requitements of OMB Citcular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations.

Noncash Suppart

The District receives noncash support in the form of food subsidies from the Food
Distribution Program, CFDA 10.550. The value of the food subsidies is determined by using
the fair market value of the food items as quoted by local food suppliers.
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Bedford City School District

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS
OMB CIRCULAR A-133 §.505

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2001

1. SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS

(DM Type of Financial Statement Opinion Unqualified

Were there any material control weakness
CENE) conditions reported at the financial statement No

level (GAGAS)?

Were there any other reportable control
(D)@ weakness conditions reported at the financial No

statement level (GAGAS)?

Was there any reported material noncompliance
(d)(1) () at the financial statement level (GAGAS)? No

Were there any material internal control
(DD av) weakness conditions reported for major No

federal programs?

Were there any other reportable internal
DD)av) control weakness conditions reported No

for majot federal programs?
CHENY) ‘Type of Major Programs' Compliance Opinion Unqualified
(D) (v1) Are there any reportable findings under §.510? No

. Tite I Grants to Local Educational
(D) (@) (vii) Programs tested as Major Programs (list): Agencies (CFDA #84.010)
Special Education Cluster
(d)(1) (vin) Dollar Threshold: Type A/B Programs Type A: > $300,000
Type B: all others

(HD)x) Low Risk Auditee? Yes

2. FINDINGS RELATED TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REQUIRED
TO BE REPORTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GAGAS

NONE

3. FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS FOR FEDERAL AWARDS

NONE
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Bedford City School District

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
OMB CIRCULAR A-133 §.315(b)

For the year ended June 30, 2001

The June 30, 2000 audit reported no audit findings as defined in OMB Circular A-133

§.510. Therefore, there are no prior audit findings to report the status of.

Mr. J. K. Byrne
Treasurer
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Bedford City School District

CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN
OMB CIRCULAR A-133 §.315(c)

For the year ended June 30, 2001

The June 30, 2001 audit teported no audit findings as defined in OMB Citcular A-133

§.510. Therefore, preparation of a cortective action plan is not applicable.

Mr. J. K. Byrne
Treasurer
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88 East Broad Street
STATE OF OHIO P.O. Box 1140

OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR Columbus, Ohio 43216-1140

Telephone  614-466-4514
JiM PETRO, AUDITOR OF STATE 800-282-0370

Facsimile  614-466-4490

BEDFORD CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

CUYAHOGA COUNTY

CLERK'S CERTIFICATION
This is a true and correct copy of the report which is required to be filed in the Office
of the Auditor of State pursuant to Section 117.26, Revised Code, and which is filed
in Columbus, Ohio.

desan Toubbitt

CLERK OF THE BUREAU

CERTIFIED
MARCH 21, 2002
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